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Michael W. Marino 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. 
Four Stamford Plaza 
1107 Elm Street 
Stamford, CT 06902 

December 20, 2011 

Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 
Docketing Division 
13"'Floor 
180 East Broad Street 
Columbus, OH 43215-3793 

Dear: Sir or Madam; 

We are pleased to submit the enclosed application for Certification as a Competitive Retail Natural 
Gas Supplier in Ohio. We have included one original application and ten (10) copies together with 
exhibits and attachments thereto. 

Please direct all correspondence with regard to this application to me at the above address or contact 
me at (203) 326-8361. Thank you very much for your assistance in this matter. 

20i 

Sincerely 

Michael W. Marino 
Legal Counsel 

a-hia i s t o c e r t i f y t h a t tht. irn^g^^ ^iJy^^x.xi^ ^ t^ an 
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Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp 
A membDr of the Noble Group 

Four Stomford Plaza, 107 Elm Street Stamford, CT 06902, USA 
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CERTIFICATION APPLICATION 
COMPETITIVE RETAIL NATURAL GAS SUPPLIERS 
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Please type or print all required information. Identify all attachments with an exhibit label and title (Example: Exhibit 
A-16 - Company History). All attachments should bear the legal name of the Applicant. Applicants should file completed 
applications and all related correspondence with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, Docketing Division, 13'^ Floor, 
180 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3793. 

This PDF form is designed so that you may directly input information onto the form. You may also download the form by 
saving it to your local disk. 

SECTION A - APPLICANT INFORMATION AND SERVICES 

A - 1 Appl icant intends to be certified as: (check all tha t apply) 

I I Retail Natural Gas Aggregator LJRetail Natural Gas Broker | / 1 Retail Natural Gas Marketer 

A-2 Appl icant information: 

, ^, Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 
Legal Name 
Address ^^ '̂̂  Stamford Plaza, 107 Elm Street, Stamford, CT 06902 

Telephone No. (203)363-8018 Web site Address www.thisisnoble.com 

A - 3 Appl icant information unde r which appl icant will do business in Ohio : 

^, Emerald Energy Retail 
Name 
Address 5555 Perimeter Drive, Dublin, OH 43017 

Web site Address www.emeraldenergyretail.com Telephone No. 1-866-793-3582 

A-4 List all names under which the appl icant does business in Nor th Amer ica : 

Nobie Americas Gas & Power Corp. 

A-5 Contac t person for regulatory or emergency mat te r s : 

Name Anna Ciiacko Title Energy Compliance Manager 

Business Address f̂ ûr Stamford Plaza, 107 Elm Street. Stamford, CT 06902 

Telephone No. (203) 326-8364 Fax No. (203) 326-6515 Email Address AnnaChacko@Thisisnoble.com 
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A-6 Contac t person for Commission Staff use in investigating customer complaints : 

Name Anna Chacko Title Energy Compliance Manager 

Business address ^°^'" Stamford Plaza, 107 Elm Street, Stamford, CT 06902 

Telephone No. (203) 326-8364 p^^ ̂ ^ (203) 326-6515 Email Address AnnaChacko@Thlsisnoble.cc,g 

A-7 Appl icant ' s address and toll-free n u m b e r for customer service and complaints 

Customer service address Emerald Energy Retail, 5555 Perimeter Drive, Dublin, OH 43017 

Toll-Frce Telephone No. 1-866-793-3582 fax No. (614)339-2700 Email Address "^^^ 

A-8 Provide "Proof of an Ohio Office and Employee ," in accordance with Section 4929.22 of the Ohio 
Revised Code, by listing name, Ohio office address , telephone n u m b e r , and W e b site address of the 
designated Ohio Employee 

Name David Sopko Title Vice President, Supply and Sales 

Business address 555 Perimeter Drive, Dublin, OH 43017 

Telephone No. t^'''^) 339-2605 p^x No. (^''^) 339-2700 Email Address Dsopko@emeraldenergyretail.com 

A-9 A p p l i c a n t s federal employer identification n u m b e r 27-0846540 

A-IO Appl ican t ' s form of ownership : (Check one) 

I I Sole Proprietorship L j Partnership 

I I Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) Q Limited Liability Company (LLC) 

1/1 Corporation HH Other 

A-11 (Check all tha t apply) Identify each na tura l gas company service a rea in which the appl icant is 
cur ren t ly providing service or intends to provide service, including identification of each customer 
class tha t the appl icant is current ly serving or intends to serve, for example : residential, small 
commercial^ and/or large commercial/industrial (mercantile) customers, (A mercantile customer, as defined 
in Section 4929.01(L)(1) of the Ohio Revised Code, means a customer that consumes, other than for residential use, more 
than 500,000 cubic feet of natural gas per year at a single location within the state or consumes natural gas, other than for 
residential use, as part of an undertaking having more than three locations within or outside of this state. In accordance with 
Section 4929.0i(L)(2) of the Ohio Revised Code, "Mercantile customer" excludes a not-for-profit customer that consumes, 
other than for residential use, more than 500,000 cubic feet of natural gas per year at a single location within this state or 
consumes natural gas, other than for residential use, as part of an undertaking having more than three locations within or 
outside this state that has fded the necessary declaration with the Public Utilities Commission.) 
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/ 

Columbia Gas of Ohio 

Dominion East Ohi 

Duke Energy Ohi 

Vcctrcn Energy Delivery of Ohio 

/ 

/ 

Small Commercial 

Small Commercial 

Residential:!/I 

Residential [ / | 

Residential I I Small Commercial 

Residential I Small Commercial 

/ 

Large Commercial / Industrial 

Large Commercial /Industrial 

Large Commercial / Industrial 

Large Commercial / Industrial 

n 
I IDominion East Ohio 

Residential Beginning Date of Service 

Small Commercial Beginning Date of Service 

Large Commercial Beginning Date of Service 

Industrial Beginning Date of Service 

I [Duke Energy Ohio 

Residential Beginning Date of Service 

Small Commercial Beginning Date of Service 

Large Commercial Beginning Date of Service 

Industrial Beginning Date of Service n 
I I Vcctren Energy Delivei-y of Ohio 

Residential Beginning Date of Service 

Small Commercial Beginning Date of Service 

Large Commercial Beginning Date of Service 

Industrial Beginning Date of Service 

A-12 If applicant or an affiliated interest previously participated in any of Ohio's Natural Gas Choice 
Programs, for each service area and customer class, provide approximate start date(s) and/or end 
date(s) that the applicant began delivering and/or ended services. 

I I Columbia Gas of Ohio 

Residential Beginning Date of Service 

Small Commercial Beginning Date of Service 

•Large Commercial Beginning Date of Service 

Industrial Beginning Date of Service 

End Date 

End Date 

End Date 

End Date 

End Date 

End Date 

End Date 

End Date 

End Date 

End Date 

End Date 

End Date 

End Date 

End Date 

End Date 

End Date 

A-13 If not currently participating in any of Ohio's four Natural Gas Choice Programs, provide the 
approximate start date that the applicant proposes to begin delivering services: 
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I / I Columbia Gas of Ohio intended Start Date April1,2012 

I / I Dominion East Ohio Intended Start Date April 1, 2012 

Duke Energy Ohio . IntendedStartDate 

Vecfren Energy Delivery of Ohio Intended Start Date 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED. 

A-14 Exhibit A-I4 "Principal Officers, Directors & Partners," provide the names, titles, addresses and 
telephone numbers of the applicant's principal officers, directors, partners, or other similar officials. 

A-IS Exhibit A-15 "Corporate Structure," provide a description of the applicant's corporate structure, 
including a graphical depiction of such structure, and a list of all affiliate and subsidiary companies that 
supply retail or wholesale natural gas or electricity to customers in North America. 

A-16 Exhibit A-16 "Company History," provide a concise description of the applicant's company history 
and principal business interests. 

A-17 Exhibit A-17 "Articles of Incorporation and Bvlaws," if applicable, provide the articles of 
incorporation filed with the state or jurisdiction in which the applicant is incorporated and any 
amendments thereto. 

A-18 Exhibit A-18 "Secretary of State," provide evidence that the applicant is currently registered with the 
Ohio Secretary of the State. 

SECTION B - APPLICANT MANAGERIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED 

B-1 Exhibit B-1 "Jurisdictions of Operation," provide a current list of all jurisdictions in which the 
applicant or any affiliated interest of the applicant is, at the date of filing the application, certified, 
licensed, registered, or otherwise authorized to provide retail natural gas service, or retail/wholesale 
electric services. 

B-2 Exhibit B-2 "Experience & Plans," provide a current description of the applicant's experience and 
plan for contracting with customers, providing contracted services, providing billing statements, and 
responding to customer inquiries and complaints in accordance with Commission rules adopted pursuant 
to Section 4929.22 of the Revised Code and contained in Chapter 4901:1-29 of the Ohio Administrative 
Code. 

B-3 Exhibit B-3 "Summary of Experience," provide a concise and cuirent summary of the applicant's 
experience in providing the service(s) for which it is seeking to be certified to provide (e.g., number 
and types of customers served, utility service areas, volume of gas supplied, etc.). 

B-4 Exhibit B-4 "Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations," provide a description of all existing, 
pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent liabilities, revocations of authority, regulatoiy 
investigations, or any other matter that could adversely impact the applicant's financial or operational 
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status or ability to provide the services it is seeking to be certified to provide. 

B-5 Exhibit B-5 "Disclosure of Consumer Protection Violations," disclose whether the applicant, 
affiliate, predecessor of the applicant, or any principal officer of the applicant has been convicted or held 
liable for fraud or for violation of any consumer protection or antitrust laws within the past five years. 

(71 No n ^ e s 

If Ves, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-5 "Disclosure of Consumer Protection 
Violations," detailing such violation(s) and providing all relevant documents. 

B-6 Exhibit B-6 "Disclosure of Certification Denial, Curtailment, Suspension, or Revocation," disclose 
whether the applicant or a predecessor of the applicant has had any certification, license, or application 
to provide retail natural gas or retail/wholesale electric service denied, curtailed, suspended, or revoked, 
or whether the applicant or predecessor has been terminated from any of Ohio's Natural Gas Choice 
programs, or been in defauh for failure to deliver natural gas. 

0 No DYes 
If Yes, provide a separate attachment, labeled as Exhibit B-6 "Disclosure of Certification Denial, 
Curtailment, Suspension, or Revocation," detailing such action(s) and providing all relevant documents. 

SECTION C - APPLICANT FINANCIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED 

C-1 Exhibit C-I "Annual Reports," provide the two most recent Annual Reports to Shareholders. If 
applicant does not have annual reports, the applicant should provide similar information, labeled as 
Exhibit C-1, or indicate that Exhibit C-1 is not applicable and why. 

C-2 Exhibit C-2 "SEC Filings," provide the most recent 10-K/8-K Filings with the SEC, If applicant does 
not have such filings, it may submit those of its parent company. If the applicant does not have such 
filings, then the applicant may indicate in Exhibit C-2 whether the applicant is not required to file with 
the SEC and why. 

C-3 Exhibit C-3 "Financial Statements," provide copies of the applicant's two most recent years of 
audited financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement). If audited 
financial statements are not available, provide officer-certified financial statements. If the applicant has 
not been in business long enough to satisfy this requirement, it shall file audited or officer-certified 
financial statements covering the life of the business. 

C-4 Exhibit C--4 "Financial Arrangements," provide copies of the applicanfs current financial 
arrangements to conduct competitive retail natural gas service (CRNGS) as a business activity (e.g., 
guarantees, bank commitments, contractual aiTangements, credit agreements, etc.) 

C-5 Exhibit C-5 "Forecasted Financial Statements," provide two years of forecasted financial statements 
(balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement) for the applicant's CRNGS operation, along 
with a list of assumptions, and the name, address, email address, and telephone number of the preparer. 
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C-6 Exhibit C-6 "Credit Rating," provide a statement disclosing the applicant's current credit rating as 
reported by two of the following organizations: Duff & Phelps, Dim and Bradstreet Information 
Services, Fitch IBCA, Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poors, or a similar organization. In 
instances where an applicant does not have its own credit ratings, it may substitute the credit ratings of a 
parent or affiliate organization, provided the applicant submits a statement signed by a principal officer 
of the applicanfs parent or affiliate organization that guarantees the obligaUons of the applicant. 

C-7 Exhibit C-7 "Credit Report," provide a copy of the applicant's current credit report from Experion, 
Dun and Bradstreet, or a similar organization. 

C-8 Exhibit C-8 "Bankruptcy Information.," provide a Hst and description of any reorganizations, 
protection from creditors, or any other form of bankruptcy filings made by the applicant, a parent or 
affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the applicant or any officer of the applicant in the 
current year or since applicant last filed for certification. 

C-9 Exhibit C-9 "Merger Information," provide a statement describing any dissolution or merger or 
acquisition of the applicant within the five most recent years preceding the application, or at any time as 
a participant in the Ohio Natural Gas Choice programs. 

S E C T I O N D - A P P L I C A J V T T E C H M C A L C A P A ^ i y T Y 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED. 

D - 1 Exhibit D-1 "Operations," provide a current written description of the operational nature of the 
applicant's business. Please include whether the applicant's operations will include the contracting of 
natural gas purchases for retail sales, the nomination and scheduling of retail natural gas for delivery, 
and the provision of retail ancillary services, as well as other services used to supply natural gas to the 
natural gas company city gate for retail customers. 

D-2 Exhibit D-2 "Operations Expertise," given the operational nature of the applicant's business, provide 
evidence of the applicanfs current experience and technical expertise in performing such operations. 

D-3 Exhibit D-3 "Key Technical Personnel," provide the names, dtles, email addresses, telephone 
numbers, and background of key personnel involved in the operational aspects of the applicant's current 
business. 

Applicant Signature and Title ^ ^ ^ ^ . - ^ ^ ^ X ^ ^"tCtoAi^^^.^ W{(/ti/ 

Sworn and subscribed before me this o ( ^ day of l y ^ j O t ^ t y i h c ^ Month ^ ^ ^ i Year 

" ^ M M ^ - ^ ' 'P^at^Mk^ idAibsa yidhieu - hfo^^l FuHf 
Signature of official administering oath Print Name and Title 

/ J ^ . ' ' A ^ ^ ° ' ^ ^ ^ ' ^ V - 5 ^ ' ^ ' ' My commission expires on ^ ^ 0/ 3^ / ^VJS^ 
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The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 
Competitive Retail Natural Gas Service 

Affidavit Form 
(Version 1.07) 

In the Mat t e r of the Application of ^ \ 

for a Certificate or Renewal Certificate to Provide \ 

Competi t ive Retail Na tura l Gas Service in Ohio- \ 

County of p d f f f i c i d 
State of (2X 

Case No. - -GA-CRS 

[Affiant], being duly swom/affirmed, hereby states that: 

(1) The information provided witliin the certification or certification renewal application and supporting information is 
complete, true, and accurate to the best icnowledge of affiant. 

(2) The applicant will timely file an annual report of its intrastate gross receipts and sales of hundred cubic feet of 
natural gas pursuant to Sections 4905.10(A), 4911.18(A), and 4929.23(B), Ohio Revised Code. 

(3) Tile applicant will timely pay any assessment made pursuant to Section 4905.10 or Section 4911.18(A), Ohio 
Revised Code. 

(4) Applicant wiil comply with all applicable rules and orders adopted by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 
pursuant to Title 49, Ohio Revised Code. 

(5) Applicant will cooperate with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and its staff in the investigation of any 
consumer complaint regarding any service offered or provided by the applicant. 

(6) Applicant will comply with Section 4929.21, Ohio Revised Code, regarding consent to the jurisdiction of the Ohio 
courts and the service of process. 

(7) Applicant will inform the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio of any material change to the information supplied in 
the certification or certification renewal application whhin 30 days of such material change, including any change in 
contact person for regulatoiy or emergency purposes or contact person for Staff use in investigating customer 
complaints. 

(8) Affiant further sayeth naught. , - x y% 

Affiant Signature* Title €Z -^ ^ - L^ ^ v v* 

Sworn and subscribed before me this 5^^**^ day of 0 C C & - ^ I ? - C ^ Month ^ 0 / I "^ear 

//î .̂ f̂c^>f̂ ^ y^{ssa A 4 M / ^ Y -NoHir^ Jvb/iX 
Sigarffus^WOTS'<5]ik^^Jministering Oath Print Name and Title 

• :§' / ^ o"̂  '^" ̂  '•- c 
'"^ ~ ' ; My commission expires on C(fP/y'/ 3 O o5t) f S ' 

At̂  .a i ? ' \ V -* (CRNGS Supplier -Version 1.07) Page 7 of 7 
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Exhibit A-14—Principal Officers, Directors & Partners 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Principal Officers, Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. 

Directors 

Theodore W. Robinson 
Four Stamford Plaza 
107 Elm Street 
Stamford, CT 06902 
Phone: (203) 326-6507 

Robert Jan van derZalm 
XŜ ^ Floor, MassMutual Tower 
38 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong 
Phone: +852 2861 3511 

Officers 

William Cronin 
President 
Four Stamford Plaza 
107 Elm Street 
Stamford, CT 06902 
Phone: (203) 326-8147 

Robert Jan van derZalm 
Executive Vice President 
18*̂  Floor, MassMutual Tower 
38 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong 
Phone:+852 2861 3511 

Thomas t\/l. Coletti 
Executive Vice President—Power & Gas Trading 
Four Stamford Plaza 
107 Elm Street 
Stamford, CT 06902 
Phone: (203) 326-8147 

Gregg Penman 
Executive Vice President-
Four Stamford Plaza 
107 Elm Street 
Stamford, CT 06902 
Phone: (203) 326-3532 

•Gas Trading 

Arnon Staffer 
Executive Vice President-
Four Stamford Plaza 
107 Elm Street 
Stamford, CT 06902 
Phone: (203) 326-3536 

•Gas Trading 
Eric B. Twombly 
Treasurer 
Four Stamford Plaza 
107 Elm Street 
Stamford, CT 06902 
Phone: (203) 326-8143 

Joseph P. Limone 
Secretary 
Four Stamford Plaza 
107 Elm Street 
Stamford, CT 06902 
Phone:(203)363-7536 



Exhibit A-15—Corporate Structure 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Corporate Structure 

[Please see attached page] 
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Exhibit A-16—Company History 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Company History 

Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. ("NAGP") was originally formed under the name "Nobie Jade Corp." 

on July 8, 2009 as an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Noble Group Limited ("NGL"). It has since 

changed its name to Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. NAGP will do business in Ohio as "Emerald 

Energy Retail" and will serve the retail natural gas supply needs of customers in the state. NAGP is 

licensed to transact business in the state of Ohio. 

NAGP is an energy company transacting in physical and financial electricity and natural gas markets in 

the U.S. and Canada. Each member of NAGP's team has a minimum of 10 plus years of experience in 

these gas and power markets. NAGP uses hedging activities to reduce risk and to create both short and 

long term price certainty as well as to maximize opportunities on the physical power grid and natural gas 

pipelines. NAGP's business activities allow it to provide liquidity to its counterparties in the utility, 

public power, retail and generation sectors. NAGP's expansive physical knowledge of the gas and power 

grid will enable it to be an effective and efficient supplier of natural gas In Ohio's retail markets. 

In 2010, NAGP bolstered its expertise in the area of retail energy and gas supply by acquiring Sempra 

Energy Solutions, now known as Noble Americas Energy Solutions LLC. ("NAES"), one of the top retail 

energy marketers in the country. NAES provides its nationwide customers with an integrated mix of 

services such as commodity supply, portfolio management, energy information management, 

scheduling, settlements and billing management. The commercial and industrial business energy 

commodity products and services that NAES offers help it successfully manage Its costs In volatile energy 

markets, and provide its customers with a wide range of solutions to help meet or beat their budget 

goals for energy expenses. 

NAGP is a wholly owned subsidiary of Noble Group Limited {''Noble Group"), an investment-grade\ 

publicly-traded^ company, with revenues of $60.6 billion for the 9 months ending Sept 30, 2011, and an 

equity market value of approximately USD 7.5 Billion. Operating income for the same period in 2011 is 

$1.2 billion. Noble Group is listed in the top half of both the Fortune Global 500 and Forbes Global 2000 

lists. It is a world leader in managing supply chains that deliver key bulk energy, industrial and 

agricultural products. With over 14,000 employees and a global presence. Noble Group has been 

involved in the North American energy markets for many years. 

^ Investment Grade unsecured ratings of: (Baa3) from Moody's, (BBB-) from S&P, and (BBB-) from Fltch2009. 
Noble Group is a publically traded company on the Singapore stock exchange under the ticker "NOBL". 



Exhibit A-17—Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws 

[Please see attached 7 pages] 



etaware PAGE 1 

iHe !FiTst state 

I , JEFFREY W, BULLOCKr SECnETARY OP STATE OF TBE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY "NOBLE AMERICAS GAS & POWER CORP. " 

I S DULY INCORPORATED UNDER TBE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAt^ARE AND 

I S I N GOOD STANDING AND SAS A LEGAL CORPORATE EXISTENCE SO FAR 

AS THE RECORDS O F T H I S OFFICE SHOW, AS O F THE TWENTY-SIXTH DAY 

OF A P R I L , A . D . 2 0 1 0 . 

AND I DO HEREBY FORTHER CERTIFY THAT THE ANNUAL REPORTS HAVE 

BEEN F I L E D TO DATE. 

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE FRANCHISE TAXES 

HAVE BEEN P A I D TO DATE. 

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE S A I D "NOBLE 

AMERICAS GAS & POSTER CORP. " WAS INCORPORATED ON THE EIGHTH DAY 

OF JULY, A . D . 2 0 0 9 . 

4 7 0 7 1 5 4 8 3 0 0 

1 0 0 4 2 1 7 6 1 
Jfou may verify t h i s c e r t i f i c a t e online 
a t cozp.dolanare.gov/auttiver.shtml 

Jeffrey W. euflock, Secretary of State 
AUfHENT^CATZON: 7 9 5 3 3 4 8 

DATE: 0 4 - 2 6 - 1 0 



^etaware PAGE 1 

*Ihe J îrst State 

I , JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED ARE TRUE AND CORRECT 

COPIES OF ALL DOCUMENTS ON F I L E OF "NOBLE AMERICAS GAS & POWER 

CORP. " AS RECEIVED AND F I L E D I N T H I S O F F I C E . 

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN C E R T I F I E D : 

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION, F I L E D THE EIGHTH DAY OF JULY, 

A . D . 2 0 0 9 , AT 1 1 : 3 9 O'CLOCK A.M. 

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT, CHANGING I T S NAME FROM "NOBLE JADE 

CORP. " TO "NOBLE ENERGY MARKETING & TRADE CORP. " , F I L E D THE 

ELEVENTH DAY OF DECEMBER, A . D , 2 0 0 9 , AT 1 2 : 2 5 O'CLOCK P . M . 

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT, CHANGING I T S NAME FROM "NOBLE 

ENERGY MARKETING & TRADE CORP. " TO "NOBLE AMERICAS GAS & POWER 

CORP. " , F I L E D THE FIFTEENTH DAY OF MARCH, A . D . 2 0 1 0 , AT 1 : 5 3 

O'CLOCK P . M . 

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE AFORESAID 

CERTIFICATES ARE THE ONLY CERTIFICATES ON RECORD OF THE 

AFORESAID CORPORATION, "NOBLE AMERICAS GAS & POWER CORP. " . 

4 7 0 7 1 5 4 8 1 0 0 H 

1 1 1 2 1 0 3 2 8 
You may verify t h i s c e r t i f i c a t e online 
a t corp.delaf/sre.gov/authver. shtml 

AUTHEN 
Jeffrey W. Bullock, Secretary of State 

TION: 9 1 6 6 5 3 6 

DATE: 1 1 - 1 8 - 1 1 



(DeCazuare PAGE 1 

Ifte !First State 

I , JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED ARE TRUE AND CORRECT 

COPIES OF ALL DOCUMENTS ON F I L E OF "NOBLE AMERICAS GAS & POWER 

CORP. " AS RECEIVED AND F I L E D I N T H I S O F F I C E . 

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN C E R T I F I E D : 

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION, F I L E D THE EIGHTH DAY OF JULY, 

A . D . 2 0 0 9 , AT 1 1 : 3 9 O'CLOCK A , M . 

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT, CHANGING I T S NAME FROM "NOBLE JADE 

CORP. " TO "NOBLE ENERGY MARKETING <S TRADE CORP. " , F I L E D THE 

ELEVENTH DAY OF DECEMBER, A . D . 2 0 0 9 , AT 1 2 : 2 5 O'CLOCK P . M . 

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT, CHANGING I T S NAME FROM "NOBLE 

ENERGY MARKETING & TRADE CORP. " TO "NOBLE AMERICAS GAS & POWER 

CORP. " , F I L E D THE FIFTEENTH DAY OF MARCH, A . D . 2 0 1 0 ^ AT 1 : 5 3 

O'CLOCK P . M . 

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE AFORESAID 

CERTIFICATES ARE THE ONLY CERTIFICATES ON RECORD OF THE 

AFORESAID CORPORATION, "NOBLE AMERICAS GAS Si POWER CORP. " . 

4 7 0 7 1 5 4 8 1 0 0 H 

1 1 1 2 1 0 3 2 8 
You may verify t h i s c e r t i f i c a t e online 
a t corp.delaware.gov/avthver.shtml 

AUTHEN 
Jeffrey W. Bullock, Secretary of State 
TION: 9 1 6 6 5 3 7 

DATE: 1 1 - 1 8 - 1 1 

http://corp.delaware.gov/avthver.shtml


StatB of Delaware 
Secre tary of S t a t e 

Division of Corporations 
Delivered 11:42 AM 07/08/2009 

FILED 11:39 AM 07/08/2009 
SRV 090681404 - 4707154 FILE 

STATE (^/DELAWARE 
CERTIFICATE ^^/INCORPORATION 

A STOCK CORPORATION 

First: The name of this Corporation is Noble Jade Corp. 

Second: Its registered office in the State of Delaware is to be located at 
271 i CcntcrviUe Road, Suite 400 Street, in tlie City of V/ilmiiigton 
County of New Castle Zip Code ^9808 The registered agent in 
charge thereof is Corporation Service Company 

Third: The puipose of the corporation is to engage in any lawftil act or activity for 
which corporations may be organized under the General Corporation Law of 
Delaware. 

• Fourth: The amount of tlie total stock of this corporation is authorized to issue is 
0»e Thousand (1,000) shares (number of authorized shares) with a par value of 

^^-^ __ per share. 
• Fifth: The name and mailing address of the incorporator are as follows: 

Name Nancy Thomas 
Mailing"Addi-ess 333 Lndtow Street, Suite 1230 

Stamford, CT 2.ip Code f*̂ 0̂2 
I, The Uiidersigueri, for t\iQ purpose of foitning a coiporation under the laws of the 
State of Delaware, do make, file and record this Ceilillcate, and do certify that the 
facts herein stated are tr'ue, and I have accordingly hereunto set my hand this 
^ ± day of i^ily , A.D. 20 09 

BY: /U^^^ju ^^^J-{l&-m/̂ ^ 
(Incorpotadbr) 

NAME: Nancy Thomas 

(type or print) 



S t a t e of Delaware 
Secre ta ry of S t a t e 

Division o r Corporations 
Delivered 12:44 PM 12/11/2009 

FILED 12:25 PM 12/11/2009 
SRV 091091416 - 4707154 FILE 

STATE OF DELAWARE 
CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT 

OF CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 

The corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the General 

Corporation Law of the State of Delaware does hereby certify: 

FIRST: That at a meeting of the Board of Directors of 
NOBLE JADE CORP. 

resolutions were duly adopted setting forth a proposed amendment of the 
Ceitlficate of Incorporation of said coiporation, declaring said amendment to 
be advisable and calling a meeting of the stockholders of said corporation for 
consideration thereof. The resolution setting forth the proposed amendment is 
as follows: 

RESOLVED, that the Certificate of Incorporation of this cor^ioratton be amended 
by changing the Article thereof numbered" ^^^^T " ĝ^ jî ^̂ ^ gg 

amended, said Article shall be and read as follows; 

THE NAME OF THIS CORPORATION IS NOBLE ENERGY MARKETING & TRADE 
CORP. 

SECOND: That thereafter, pursuant to resolution of its Board of Directors, a 
special meeting of the stockholders of said corporation was duly called and held 
upon notice in accordance with Section 222 of the General Corporation Law of 
the State of Delaware at which meeting the necessary number of shares as required 
by statute were voted in favor of the amendment. 
THIRD: That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of 
Delaware, 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said corporation has caused this certificate to be 
signed this tOTH aay ofPBCEMBBR 200^ . 

Authoriz«d/Ofncer 
Title: PRESIDENT 

Name: DAVID BBRINGER 

Print or Type 



S t a t e of Delaware 
Secre ta ry of S t a t e 

Division o f Corporations 
Delivered 01:58 PM 03/15/2010 

FILED 01:53 PM 03/15/2010 
SRV 100279700 - 4707154 FILE 

STATE OF DELAWARE 
CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT 

OF CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION 

The corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the General 

Coiporation Law of the State of Delaware does hereby certify: 

FIRST: That at a meeting of the Board of Directors of 
NOBLE ENERGY MARKETING & TRADE CORP. 

resolutions were duly adopted setting forth a proposed amendment of the 
Certificate of Incorporation of said corporation, declaring said amendment to 
be advisable and calling a meeting of the stockholders of said coiporation for 
consideration thereof The resolution setting forth the proposed amendment is 
as follows; 

RESOLVED, that the Cerdiicate of Incorporation of this corporation be amended 

by changing the Article thereof numbered " P l ^ f " so that, as 

amended, said Article shall be and read as follows; 

FIRST: The Name of this Corporation is Nobie Americas Gas & Power Corp. 

SECOND: That thereafter, pursuant to resolution of its Board of Directors, a 
special meeting of the stockholders of said corporation was duly called and held 
upon notice in accordance with Section 222 of the General Corporation Law of 
the State of Delaware at which meeting the necessary number of shares as required 
by statute were voted in favor of the amendment. 
THIRD: That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 242 of the General Coiporation Law of the State of 
Delaware. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said corporation has caused this certificate to be 

signed this ^̂ ^̂  day of ^^^ '̂̂  , 20^^ ,. 

?-j i~^m By:_ 
Authorized Officer 

Title: President 

Name: Richard A. DiDonna 
Print or Type 



Coiporation Details Page 1 of 1 

Jon Husted & the Agempy I. iliol; IS! 

^ r ir BUSjNESSL^JOjr^ -'f* 

fMQcm Itifortnatlon !§ 

Business Name 
Business Name -Exact 
Mumbor Search 
AaonUContect Namo 
Prior Buelnoss Name 
Church Name 

jBusiness Search ^ ^ i U C C Search ^ ^ ^ r a d e Mark /Service Mark Search ^ j P r e p a y m e n t Accounts ^ ^ H e ! p I 

Corporation Details 

Corporation Detaas | 

Entity Number 

Business Nsme 

Filing T/ps 

Status 

Original Filing Dale 

Expiry Date 

2CK7S3S 

EMERALD ENERGY RETAIL 

REGISTERED TRADE NAME 

AcSive 

12/14^)11 

12^1^/2016 

Location; County: State: i 1 

Agent / Registrant Inforrnallon 

NOBLg AMl^RICAS GAS & POV'iS.R CORP. 
4 STAMFORD PLAZA 107 ELM STREET 

STAMFORD,CT(B&02 
EtTective Date: 12/14/2011 

Confaci Sfaius: Aciive 

Fiiinss 1 
Filing Type • 

TRADE NAME/ORIGINAL FILING 
Date or Filing 

12/l'5/2011 
Document Number/Image 

201134900131 

^ 

Return To Search Page Return To Search Ligfc U Printer Friendty Report 

http://www2.sos.state.oh.us/pls/bsqry/f?p=100:7:243202319089... 12/16/2011 

http://www2.sos.state.oh.us/pls/bsqry/f?p=100:7:243202319089


Exhibit A-18—state of Ohio Secretary of State Registration 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

State of Ohio Secretary of State Registration 

[Please see attached 4 pages] 
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^ 201011800065 * 

DATE tXXUVBfT ID DESCRIPTION 
04/28/2010 201011800065 FOREIGN UCeNSE/FOR-PR0FrT(FLF) 

FILING 
125.00 

EXPED 
100.00 

PENALTY 
.00 

Receipt 
Tliis is not a bill. Please do not remit paymeni. 

DIAMOND ACCESS 
ATTN: LISA VAIDO 
887 SOUTH HIGH STREET 
COLUMBUS. OH 43206 

CERT 
.00 

COPl' 
.00 

S T A T E OF O H I O 
C E R T I F I C A T E 

Ohio Secretary of State, Jennifer Brunner 

1932060 

It is hereby certified that the Secretai7 of State of Ohio has custody of the business records for 

NOBLE AMERICAS GAS & POWER CORP. 

and, that said business records show the filing and recording of: 

Docunient(s): Document No(s): 

FOREIGN LICENSE/FOR-PROFIT 201011800065 
Authorization to transact business in Ohio is hereby given, until smrender, expiration or cancellation 
of this hcense. 

Witness my hand and the seal of the 
Secretary of State at Columbus, Ohio 
this 26th day of April, A.D, 2010. 

United Stales of America 
State of Ohio 

Office of the Secretary of Slate Ohio Secretary of State 



rSf^lfe^ 

Prescribed by • 

The Ohio Secretary' of Slate 
Ccntrnl Ohio: (614) 460-3910 

Toll Free-. 1-877-SOS-FILE0-877.767-34S3) 

WVAViSOSiSt3tC.Oh.U3 
e-mail: bussBrv@eos.state.oh.u3 

Expedite this Form: (scioctonoi 

Mail Form to one of the Following: 

O Yes 

o 

PC Box 1390 
Columbus, OH 43216 

No 
PO Box 670 
Columbus, OH 43216 

FOREIGN CORPORATION APPLICATION FOR LICENSE 
OR REGISTRATION OF CORPORATION NAME 

(For Foreign Profit or Nonprorn) 

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY STATES THE FOLLOWING: 

(CHBCK ONLY ONE (1) BOX) 
(1) Foreign Corporation 

g j For-profit (151-nF} 
P Nonprofit (152-H.N) ORG 1703 

rmnif FftF. si?R.nt> 

(2) Registralion of Corporals Name by Unlicensed Foreign Corporation 

IZJ Original (158.RCO) 

• Renewal (i72-RNft(RCR)) ORCUoa 

Fmng fifie $50.00 

Complete the gyner^l information In this secttonfor fhe box checked above. I 

Corporate Name Noble Americas Gas & ?ower Corp. 

Under the Laws of the Stale of Delaware 

(Horn state} 

Date of Incorporation in Home State 07/08/2009 

The corporation's principal office Is located at 

333 Ludlow Street, Suite 1230 

(Street) 

Stamford 

HOTE: P.O. Box Addresses ara NOTacceptabh. 

CT 06902 

iCit/i (Stale) flip Corfe) 

The corporate purpose it proposes to exercise in the state of Ohio are as follows; (Please provide a brief but specific 
description; a general purpose clause Is not sufficient) 

Trading pliysical & financial electricity & natural gas in the U.S., Mexico and Canada 

The corporation is carrying on or doing business. 

\ I}check iiere ifaddWonal previsions are attached 

^> 

CO 
CO 

530 Page 1 at 3 Ust Revised; Jan. 2002 
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Complete the InformaUort iti this section It box (1) Is checked. 

The corporalion hereby appoints the following as its statutory agent upon whom process against the corporation may 
be served in Ohio 

CSC - Lawyers Incorporating Service (Corporation Sei-yice Company) 
(Name) 

50 West Broad Streel> Suite 1800 
(Stroel) NOTt;.- P.O. Box Addresses are NOT acceptable. 

Columbus Ohio 43215 
(City) (Stale) (Zip Code) 

The entity above irrevocably consents to service of process on the agent listed above as long as the authority of the 
agent continues, and to service of process upon the OHIO SECRETARY OF STATE If: 

A. the agent cannot be found or 
B. tho above listed fails to doslgnate another agent when required to do so, ot 
C. the above slated registration to do business In Ohio expires or is cancelled 

Complete tho Informailon In this section If profit Is checked Inbox (1). \ 

The applicalion is made to socuro a [E permanent Q temporary license 

The corporation's principal office within Ohio Is to be located in [^Corporation v/lll not have an office 

In Ohio 

fSlroof) NOJF.: P.O. Box Addresses ere NOT acceptable. 

Ohio (CHy) (Cour^ty) (Siste) (lipCOdo) 

Has the corporation obtained a license to transact business In Ohio at any lime in the past? CD Yes ] ^ No 
If yss, prior License Wo. issued 

(Dm 

The date on which the corporalion began transacting business in Ohio 

Doate 
OR 
[5^Wi)l begin business upon approval of application 

Is this application being made to enable the corporation to prosecute or defend a legal action? [ U Yes 0 No 

ComjgfefQ the Informstlon Iti this section If non-fjroflt is checketi in box (1). | 

The location of its principal office in the state of Ohio is 

(Stfeol) NOTE: P.O. Box Addresses ere NO T acceptable. 

Ohio 
(Ciiy) (County) (Slate) (Zip Cade) 

(Putsuant to ORG 1703.27 must have an Ohio address) 

530 Page 2 af 3 Last Revised: Jan. 2002 



ss. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the corporation has caused this application to be executed by an authorized 

officer on -*4" " I '^ - > O 
(Dale) 

STATE OF d o ^ A J C - C T - I C O - T 

COUNTY OF f^^^X.| A . f ^ \ fci, L - Q 

Richard A. DiPoima .being first duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she Is the 
(Name of Officer) 

President of Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. 
{(Hl5) 

the corporation described in the foregoing application, and ttiat the statements contained in said application are true and 
correct to tlie best of my knowledge and belief, 

.̂ rxteii Signature: 

Name; l^chord A. DiDonna 

Sworn to before me and subscribed In my presence, CAji}/l*-C^ n , P^ / O 
V (dale) 

(Notary Public) 

NOTARY SEAL Expiration date of Notary's Commission: NANCY THOMAS 
/date) NOTARY PUBLIC 
STATe OF CONNECTICUT 
My Commission Expires 

Februaty 28,2012 

530 Page 3 Of 3 U a l Revised; Jan.20D2 



Exhibit B-1—Jurisdiction of Operation 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Jurisdiction of Operation 

Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. currently does not supply retail electricity or retail gas anywhere 

within the United States but transacts In wholesale electricity and natural gas throughout the country. 

Noble Americas Energy Solutions ("NAES"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Noble Americas Gas & Power 

Corp, provides retail electricity service in: Oregon; California; Texas; Illinois; Michigan; Ohio; 

Pennsylvania; New York; Maryland; New Jersey; Delaware; Connecticut; Rhode Island; Massachusetts; 

New Hampshire; and Maine. NAES also provides retail natural gas in California and is licensed to provide 

gas supply in Maryland, New Jersey and Pennsylvania (no license required in California), 

18 



Exhibit B-2—Experience and Plans 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Experience and Plans 

Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. ("NAGP"); a Delaware corporation, has been in the power and 

natural gas business since 2009. NAGP is comprised of seasoned power and gas traders and marketers, 

each of which has at least ten years of experience in the natural gas and power markets, including 

offering customized energy management services for energy consumers and producers as well as 

providing natural gas supply and transportation. 

The NAGP team's experience also includes multiple strategic supplier relationships, operational 

expertise and exceptional competencies around the wholesale electricity and gas markets. This 

experience allows NAGP to use its expertise to participate in complex transactions with its 

counterparties. NAGP will use its experience and strengths to expand its business model and enable it 

to serve the demand of small, medium and lage commercial and residential customers in the State of 

Ohio. NAGP's existing billing and customer service group that handles industrial customers is capable of 

providing billing services to its potential SCO customers should the need to do so arise in the future. 

We will use the LDC billing option to combine gas supply pricing on the IDC invoice for all SCO Standard 

Choice Offer ("SCO") eligible customers. A toll-free 800 telephone number for customer service 

activities, including enrollment and answering questions will also be available for all customers. 

19 



Exhibit B-3—Summary of Experience 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Summary of Experience 

Presently, NAGP does not provide service directly to retail customers, but it is currently participating in 

Ohio's Standard Service Offer through a contractual relationship with Delta Energy. NAGP's wholly 

owned subsidiary, Noble Americas Energy Solutions ("Solutions"), has significant experience providing 

retail electric energy services to large commercial customers in the deregulated states in the United 

States. Its customer portfolio includes commercial and industrial customers as well as utilities, 

municipalities and co-ops. Solutions also provides natural gas supply services to customers in the State 

of California. NAGP will draw on Solutions' expertise to implement a business plan which focuses on 

meeting the needs of the Ohio SCO customers with the highest level of customer satisfaction. 

20 



Exhibit B-4—Disclosure of Liabilities & Investigations 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Disclosure of Liabilities & Investigations 

Not Applicable. 

21 



Exhibit B-5—Disclosure of Consumer Protection Violations 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Disclosure of Consumer Protection Violations 

Not Applicable. 
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Exhibit B-6—Disclosure of Certification Denial, Curtailment, Suspension, or Revocation 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Disclosure of Certification Denial. Curtailment. Suspension, or Revocation 

Not Applicable. 

23 



Exhibit C-1—Annual Report 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Annual Report 

Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of Noble Group Limited, and 

does not provide annual reports. Please see Annual Report for Noble Group Limited attached separately 

at the end of this application. 

24 



Exhibit c-2—SEC Filings 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

SEC Filings 

Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of Noble Group Limited, and 

does not make SEC filings. Please see attached Annual Report for Noble Group Limited, attached as 

Exhibit C-1. 

25 



Exhibit C-3—Financial Statements 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Financial Statements 

Please see attached Annual Report for Noble Group Limited, attached as Exhibit C-1. 
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Exhibit C-4—Financial Agreements 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Financial Agreements 

The business activities of Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail will be 

guaranteed by its parent. Noble Group Limited. Noble Group Limited currently has several guarantees 

outstanding to support NAGP's business. NAGP also has relationships with 13 banks providing aggregate 

credit lines in the high 9 figure range. 

27 



Exhibit C-5—Forecasted Financial Statements 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 

Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail C O N F I D E N T i A L 

Forecasted Financial Statements 

Forecasted financial statements are the confidential information of NAGP and pursuant to Part VI of this 

application, will be filed separately together with a motion of protective order filed pursuant to Rule 

4901:1-1-24 of the Ohio Administrative Code. 

28 



Exhibit C-6—Credit Rating 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Credit Rating 

Noble Americas Gas &. Power Corp. does not have its own credit rating, but Its indirect parent. Noble 

Group Limited, is currently rated Baa3 by Moody's and BBB- by Standard & Poor's. 

29 



Exhibit C-7—Credit Report 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Credit Report 

Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. does not currently have copies of a credit report from Experion or 

Dun and Bradstreet as its credit quality is typically assessed by the capital markets through the Moody's 

and S&P ratings of its parent. Noble Group Limited. 

30 



Exhibit C-8—Bankruptcy Information 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Bankruptcy Information 

Not applicable. 
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Exhibit C-9—Merger Information 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Merger Information 

Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. acquired Sempra Energy Solutions LLC on November 1, 2010, and 

simultaneously changed the name of Sempra Energy Solutions LLC to Noble Americas Energy Solutions 

LLC. 

There are no other dissolutions, mergers or acquisitions within the past 5 years. 
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Exhibit D-1—Operations 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Operations 

Noble Americas Gas & Power's gas marketing and trading activities, centered in Stamford, CT, are 

national in scope. NAGP has access to a diversity of supply and enjoys trading partnerships with 

multiple counterparties in the United States and Canada. NAGP's employees have extensive experience 

in the transportation of natural gas on major interstate pipelines utilizing transportation contracts to 

deliver natural gas to city gates throughout the country. 

NAGP's plans to serve the retail market include the contracting of natural gas purchases, the nomination 

and scheduling of retail natural gas for delivery, and the provision of retail ancillary services as well as 

other services used to supply natural gas to the appropriate city gates for its retail SCO customers. 

Though NAGP has extensive experience in the nomination of natural gas, it plans to nominate gas for its 

SCO customers though its agency relationship with Delta Energy^. 

NAGP ar̂ d Delta Energy are currently parties to a Gas Management and Agency Agreement dated March 

28, 2011 for the purpose of meeting NAGP's obligations as a successful bidder for two tranches in the 

Standard Service Offer auction of Columbia Gas of Ohio, Inc. for the April 2011 to March 2012 time 

period. NAGP and Delta will enter into a similar agreement for the purpose of providing service to retail 

customers in Ohio pursuant to the 2012 Standard Choice Offer and beyond. 

Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. is currently negotiating an agency agreement with Delta Energy, LLC which 
will be similar to the agreement currently in place between Noble and Delta for the Ohio SSO auction. The current 
SSO agency agreement is attached to the eu6 of this application. 
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Exhibit D-2—Operations Expertise 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Operations Expertise 

Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. is a national, full service power and gas supply company. It is active 

in all major trading hubs in the United States and Canada and transports gas on a majority of the 

interstate pipelines In the country. NAGP's wholly-owned subsidiary. Noble Americas Energy Solutions, 

has served its extensive retail C&l customer base for several years with exceptional customer 

satisfaction which is evidenced by Solutions' successful customer retention and growth. 

Our recent success in the SSO 2011 auction will extend our expertise in utilizing assigned assets to serve 

a retail customer base. 
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Exhibit D-3—Key Technical Personnel 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Scheduling: Billing: 

James ValWIo 
Manager, Natural gas Scheduling 
Four Stamford Plaza 
107 Elm Street 
Stamford, CT 06902 
Phone: (203) 326-8141 

Stephen Stepinac 
Manager, Power and Gas Operations 
Four Stamford Plaza 
107 Elm Street 
Stamford, CT 
Phone: (203) 326-8116 

Nominations: 

Nominations will be handled by Emerald Energy 
Retail through its agent, Delta Energy, LLC. 

Marketing And Trading: 

Arnon Storfer 
Executive Vice President—Gas Trading 
Four Stamford Plaza 
107 Elm Street 
Stamford, CT 06902 
Phone; (203) 326-3536 

Gregg Penman 
Executive Vice President—Gas Trading 
Four Stamford Plaza 
107 Elm Street 
Stamford, CT 06902 
Phone: (203) 326-3532 

Arnon Storfer has a B.A. from Yeshiva University 
and 15 years experience in natural gas trading, 
marketing and risk management. Prior to joining 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp., Arnon worked 
for AIG Trading and Sempra Energy Trading/RBSSC. 

Gregg Penman has a B.S. from Indiana University 
and an M.B.A. from Northwestern University. He 
has 20 years of experience in the utility and energy 
markets including 7 years with Nisource, 4 years 
with Enron, 7 years with Sempra Energy 
Trading/RBSSC and 2 years at Noble Americas Gas 
& Power Corp. 
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Attachment A—Contractual Arrangements for Capability Standards 
Application for Ohio Retail Natural Gas Supply 
Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. d/b/a Emerald Energy Retail 

Pursuant to Section Vll of this Application, NAGP is required to provide the nameof any third-party with 

which it may have contracted to meet any of the certification requirements. NAGP is a party to a Gas 

Management and Agency Agreement with Delta Energy LLC ("Delta"), pursuant to which Delta provided 

certain services related to NAGP's supply of natural gas to Columbia Gas of Ohio, Inc. ("Columbia") as a 

winning bidder for two tranches in Columbia's 2011 Standard Service Auction. NAGP desires to keep the 

terms of this contract confidential, and will provide a detailed summary of the contract, including all 

services provided thereunder, separately together with a motion for protective order filed pursuant to 

Rule 4901:1-1-24 of the Ohio Administrative Code. 

NAGP's contractual counterparty. Delta, is capable to meet the certification requirements of this 

application in its own right as evidenced by its own Public Utilities Commission of Ohio certification as a 

Competitive Retail Natural Gas Supplier. 
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The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 

CERTIFICATION FILING INSTRUCTIONS g 

COMPETITIVE RETAIL NATURAL GAS SUPPLIERS I 

Version: 1.07 
Page ] of 3 

'̂.:V>\::-:̂ A--\-\lî  i^m^m:i^M^^ :!4rrrifiliJLL|^[iLi[^ijLUL..IiLi^iLiiif^ 

I. Where to F i l e : Applications should be sent to: Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 
(PUCO or Commission), Docketing Division, 
Columbus Ohio 43215-3793. 

13'" Floor, 180 East Broad Street, 

11. Wha t to F i l e : Applicant must submit one original notarized application signed by a 
principal officer and ten copies, including all exhibits, affidavits, and other attachments. 
All attachments, affidavits, and exhibits should be clearly identified. For example. 
Exhibit A-15 should be marked "Exhibit A-15 - Corporate Structure." All pages should 
be numbered and attached in a sequential order. 

i n . Which F o r m s to F i l e : In order to supply competitive retail natural gas service 
(CRNGS), ail suppliers are required to become certified by the Public Utilities 
Commission of Ohio. The information one must file, however, differs depending on the 
type of CRNGS that the applicant will provide. For example, a broker and/or aggregator 
will not file the same infoiTnation as a competitive retail natural gas marketer apphcant. 
Because a qualifying marketer may also quahfy as a broker and/or aggregator, the 
iTiarketer applicant may, when applying for competitive retail natural gas marketer 
certification, use the form provided for competitive retail natural gas suppliers to also 
apply for broker and/or aggregator certification. Checkboxes are provided on the form to 
indicate desired status. 

A summary of CRNGS definitions (fi*om the Commission's certification rules) is 
provided below to help applicants determine which application form to use. Three 
separate application forms are provided, one each for the following services. 

• Competitive Retail Natural Gas Supplier (Marketer, Broker, Aggregator) 
• Competitive Retail Natural Gas Broker/Aggregator 
• Ohio Natural Gas Governmental Aggregator 

IV. Certified Entity Service Definitions: 

Competitive Retail Natural Gas Service - any retail natural gas service that may be 
competitively offered to consumers in this state. 

Competitive Retail Natural Gas Supplier - a person that is engaged in a for-profit or not-
for-profit basis in the business of supplying or arranging for the supply of a CRNGS to 
consumers in this state that are not mercantile customers. "Retail natural gas supplier" 
includes a marketer, broker, or aggregator, but excludes a natural gas company, a 
governmental aggregator, a billing or collection agent, and a producer or gatherer of gas 
that is not a natural gas company. 

180 East Broad Street • Columbus, OH 43215-3793 • (614) 466-3016 < www.PUCO.oluo.gov 
The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio is an Equal Opportunity Employer and Service Provider 
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Competitive Retail Natural Gas Marketins Service - assuming the contractual and legal 
responsibility for the sale and provision of CRNGS to a retail natural gas customer in this 
state and having title to natural gas at some point during the transaction. 

Competitive Retail Natural Gas Brokerage Service - assuming the contractual and legal 
responsibility for the sale and/or arrangement for the supply of CRNGS to a retail 
customer in this state without taking title to the natural gas. 

Competitive Retail Natural Gas Broker ~ a person who provides retail natural gas 
brokerage service. 

Competitive Retail Natural Gas Assresation Service - combining the natural gas load of 
multiple retail residential customers or small commercial customers via an agreement 
with the customers for the purpose of purchasing retail natural gas service on an 
aggregated basis. 

Competitive Retail Natural Gas Assresator - a person who contracts with customers to 
combine the customers' natural gas load for the purposes of purchasing CRNGS on an 
aggregated basis. 

Natural Gas Governmental Assresator - The legislative authority of a municipal 
corporation, the board of township trustees, or a board of county commissioners acting 
exclusively under Section 4929.26 or 4929.27 of the Revised Code as an aggregator for 
the provision of CRNGS. For the purposes of this definition, "governmental aggregator" 
specifically excludes a municipal corporation acting exclusively under Section 4 of 
Article XVIII, Ohio Constitution, as an aggregator for the provision of CRNGS. 

V. Appl ica t ion F o r m : The application form is available on the PUCO Web site, 
www.puco. Oiiio,sov or directly from the Commission located at: Public Utilities 
Commission of Ohio, Docketing Division, 13̂  Floor, 180 East Broad Street, Columbus, 
Ohio 43215-3793. 

VI. Confident ial i ty: If any of an applicant's answers require the applicant to disclose what 
the applicant believes to be privileged or confidential information not otherwise available 
to the public, the applicant should designate at each point in the application that the 
answer requires the applicant to disclose privileged and confidential information. 
Applicant must still provide that privileged and confidential information {separately filed 
and appropriately marked). Applicant must liilly support any request to maintain the 
confidentiality of the information it believes to be confidential or proprietary in a motion 
for protective order, filed pursuant to Rule 4901:1-1-24 of the Ohio Administrative Code. 

vn. Commission Process for Certification Approval: An application for certification 
shall be made on forms approved and supplied by the Commission. The applicant shall 
complete the appropriate application form, typewritten, in its entirety and supply all 
required attachments, affidavits, and evidence of capability specified by the form at the 
time an application is filed. The Commission certificafion process begins when the 
Commission's Docketing Division receives and time/date stamps the application. An 
incomplete application may be suspended or rejected. An application that has been 
suspended as incomplete will cause delay in certification. 

http://www.puco
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The Commission may approve, suspend, or deny an application within 30 days. If the 
Commission does not act within 30 days, the application is deemed automatically 
approved on the 3r* day after the official filing date. If the Commission suspends the 
application, the Commission shall notify the applicant of the reasons for such suspension 
and may direct the applicant to furnish additional information. The Commission shall act 
to approve or deny a suspended application within 90 days of the date that the application 
was suspended. Upon Commission approval, the applicant shall receive notification of 
approval and a numbered certificate that specifies the service(s) for which the applicant is 
certified and the dates for which the certificate is valid. 

Unless otherwise specified by the Commission, the competitive retail natural gas service 
(CRNGS) supplier's certificate is valid for a period of two years, beginning and ending on 
the dates specified on the certificate. The applicant may renew its certificate in accordance 
with Rule 4901:1-27-09 of the Ohio Administrafive Code. 

CRNGS suppliers shall inform the Commission of any material change to the information 
supplied in a certification application within thirty (30) days of such material change in 
accordance with Rule 4901:1-27-10 of the Ohio Administrative Code. 

VIIL Contractual Arrangements for Capability Standards: If the applicant is relying 
upon contractual arrangements with a third-party, to meet any of the certification 
requirements, the applicant must provide with its application all of the following: 

• The legal name of any contracted entity; 

• A statement that a valid contract exists between the applicant and the third-party; 

• A detailed summary of the contract(s), including all services provided thereunder; and 

• The documentation and evidence to demonstrate the contracting entity's capability to 
meet the requirements as if the contracting entity was the applicant. 

IX. Gove rn ing L a w : The certification/renewal of CRNGS suppliers is governed by 
Chapters 4901:1-27 and 4901:1-29 of the Ohio Administrative Code, and Section 4929.20 
of the Ohio Revised Code. 
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iils is noble 

Noble Group is a leading global, 

publicly listed, diversified 

commodities supply chain company 

with activities in mining, farming, 

processing, ports, shipping and 

marketing of metals and minerals, 

energy and agricultural products. 

We also transport these commodities 

through our own extensive 

chartering operations. 

By owning and operating key 

assets, we manage integrated 

supply chains from origination to 

final delivery to our end customers, 

industrial and commercial clients. 

Our origination assets typically 

produce and process our own raw 

materials, sourcing from low-cost 

producing countries and supplying to 

high-growth, high-demand markets. 

Our p i p e l i n e strategy allows us 

to maintain control over all stages of 

the process to ensure a smooth link 

between producers and consumers. 

Owning assets along the supply 

pipeline allows us to add value at 

each stage of the entire commodity 

delivery chain. 

Our a s s e t - m e d i u m strategy, risk 

management, market intelligence 

and experienced employees create 

powerful synergies - across geographies 

and across commodity categories -

providing us with the op t iona l i ty to 

gain competitive advantage and identify 

additional market opportunities. 

•IF Wlia t d o w e m e a n by "pipel ine"? 

Integration of the origination, processing, 

distribution and delivery of strategic 

commodities wdth financial and logistics 

senices within one supply chain. 

^ W h a t d o w e m e a n by " a s s e t - m e d i u m " ? 

Investing only in those assets that are most 

relevant to securing our trade flows. 

Wl ia t d o we m e a n by "opt ional i ty"? 

The flexibility to pick from various options, 

choosing only those opportunities that offer 

the greatest advantages to Noble. 
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iiiicord Group tonnage volume of 
ff^S4 million metrt&^tmes f̂  -
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^ ^ ^ s i c a l eotninodities divisifms 
¥i^prted an aggregate 29percent 
increase in tonnage volume 

Agricul ture a n d Energy 
segments repor ted record 
tonnage volume thanks to 
expansion of supply chain 
opera t ions a n d subs t an t i a l 
inves tments in p roduc t ion , 
process ing , sourc ing a n d 
dis t r ibut ion 

Our three hulk commodity 
segments reported record 
revenue primaHly driven by 
higher commodity prices and 

higher tonnage volume 

Revenue shifted to higher priced 
commodities as reflected in 
the weighting of our Energy 
segment, ivhich now accotmts 
fo r 6S percent of Group revejiue 

Growth of the Oil, Gas & 
Power division has benefited 
fi'om expansion activities 

I'lavio Xavlcr DeCa.sti'o 

Scale Oî ei-atoi-

Dry liulU ICxpoilTfiiiiiniil 12A 

-Santoy. I'.ra/.ii ^ 

Group total opera t ing 
income rose to record of 
US$1,719 million 



US$56.7 billion 
' i iuiiear 2€MO 

1 Hnci gy US$36,912 mill ion 

Noble's Energy segment attained record revenue and 

tonnage volume in 2010, also achieving record operating 

income of US$540.2 million with an operating income 

margin of 1.46 percent. The Coal & Coke di\dsion reported 

record revenue and tonnage volume, while the Oil, Gas & 

Power division also announced record revenue and a 

73 percent increase in tonnage over 2009. 

2 A| \ ru i4ni re US$12,035 mill ion 

Noble's Agriculture segment achieved record annual and 

quarterly tonnage volume in 2010, witli all divisions 

repoiting substantial growtli. The segment reported a i 

record operating income of US$761.5 million wath an m 

operating income margin of 6.33 percent. H 

3 •^>etalo, M^neral^ & Ores US$6,895 mill ion I 

The Metals, Minerals & Ores (MMO) segment \ 

reported record annual revenue and record * 

operating income of US$216.2 million in 2010. The 

Iron Ore division achieved a 51 percent increase in 

revenue, while the Aluminium division earned record 

revenue and record tonnage volume driven primarily by 

price normalisation and the improved economy in the US. 

4 ^ ogi? Hf̂  US$855 mill ion 

Noble's Logistics segment reported tonnage _ 

\'olume of 53.6 million metric tonnes and ^8^ \ 

revenue of US$855 million. For Chartering, ^ 

tonnage volume in the fourth quarter was the 

highest in 2010, reflecting an increase in in-

house tonnage volume. 

hnc rg i j 

12% 

606 
Record t o n n a g e vo lume g r o w t h Reco rd t o t a l o p e r a t i n g i ncome R e c o r d n e t p rof i t 



Diluted earnings per share" (US cents) 

As at 
31 December 2010 

As at 
31 December 2009 

(Restated) 

Net assets 
attributable to shareholders (US$'ooo) 3,972,977 2,955,437 

Book NAV/share'^ (US cents) 

'Adjusted lor bonus sliai'cs in Miiy 2010 

Book NAV / share Balance sheet cash 

1.69 
Adjusted current ratio 



Revenue 
(US$'ooo) 

Net profit 
attributable to 
shareholders 

(US$'ooo) 

56,696,058 

2006-13,76.5,43.'} 

2 0 0 9 - 3 M S 3 > I I 4 605,560 

2006-134,51a 
2007-258,121 

M 2008-1577,279 
2009-556,010 

/ Shareholders ' 
equity 

\ (US$'ooo) 

Net assets 
(US$'ooo) 

3,972,977 

2006-957)466 
;": 2007-1,549,573 
M 2008-1,851,145 

I 2009-2,955,437 
2010 4,431,189 

2006 - 963,^*17 
2007-1,557,778 

W 2008-1,860,868 
I 2009-3>"»«494 

Gross tonnage 
Cooo metinc) 

Book 
NAV/share 

(US cents) 

184,000 

2006 - 93)700 
: 2007-128,300 

I 2008 -141,500 
I 2009-180,300 

2006 - 21 
2007-27 
2008 - 37 
2009 - 50 

percent VS^ ̂ ^ ^ 5 ^" '̂̂  

Adjusted working capital/revenue Total bankfiicilities Shareholders ' equity 
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NobWs integrated supply ehmnsjensw t h e m n o o ^ 
long'termfloiv ofseabome 5ulfc eohiinodiffes 7 

Npfele Group's pipelines are inf^gr^ted 
supply chains that coyer tHeoi'igination,. 
transportation^ stomge, processing ari^ 
delive^ of key commodities jCdnneeted 
by our timely and effieient Logistics 
operations. Noble carefelly invests in 
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chairman's message 
Dear Shareholders, 

The Board of Directors of Noble Group 
Limited is pleased to present below 
the audited consolidated financial 
results for the year ended 31 December 
2010 together with corresponding 
results for the year 2009. Tonnage 
for the year increased to a record 184 
million tonnes as compared to 180 
million tonnes a year earlier, primarily 
due to record performances by the 
Agricultural and Energy segments. The 
revenue for the year increased by 82% 
to a record high of US$56.7 billion 
due to increases in commodity prices 
and shifting of revenue mix to higher 
priced commodities. 

Tlie Group total operating income 
and net profits for 2010 were, 
respectively, US$1,719 million and 
US$606 million, as compared to 
US$1,210 million and US$556 million 
for 2009. 

The Group's balance sheet remains 
strong with cash balances standing at 
US$1.6 billion and cash plus near-cash 
items (trade receivables and inventories) 
amounting to US$7.6 billion. 

The return generated on opening 

shareholders' equity for the year 
was 20.5%. 

I am happy to say it's been a good 
year, especially as I have watched much of 
the groundwork we have laid in previous 
years start to come onstream. Our new 
facilities and businesses have made early 
headway, underpinning the prospect of 
even greater growth in the hiture. 

The numbers tell you that 2010 has 
been Noble's best year to date, with 
record profits, tonnage and turnover; 
all along with a record net asset value 
backing per share; and more than that, 
it really has been our best year in many 
other ways. 

It has been over twenty years since 
Noble was founded, and I can tell you 
that it's been an amazing ride for me 
and my colleagues. We hope that our 
external shareholders have also found 
it worthwhile. Some have been with us 
since the eariiest days and we thank 
them for their confidence over the years. 

This time last year, on these pages, I 
talked about my new role as Chairman, 
succession plans, and the veiy 
unsuccessful bus that thankfully still 
hasn't managed to run me down. 

However, even with the record 

numbers and the evolution of the 
Group's management team, the year 
passed by much like every year since we 
started; we delivered on what we said we 
would, and we have pretty well ticked all 
the boxes that we intended to tick. 

We have done it our way, which has been 
the iTglit way for us in the last two decades 
and seems to dictate die way fomai-d. 

We have always strived to become 
more powerful, a company that one 
day would hit the big time. But, as 
2010 went on, there was a tangible 
change in how the company perceived 
itself. It dawned on many of us that a 
fundamental change had occurred. 

We weren't that little company 
anymore, we had become that big 
company already and it was about time 
that we started acting like one, keeping 
our original principles intact. 

Being one of "Asia's biggest 
commodity firms" described us in the 
past, but it did not reflect our global 
reach and neither did it reflect our 
undimmed ambitions. 

We realized that we are in a position 
to be the best in the world, and amongst 
the biggest. 

We have the people, we have the 
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tools and, more important, we have the 
drive - in my view it is only a question 
of "when" and not "if. 

During Qi we talked about the 
gym - doing what you know is best for 

Tt means sacrificing a few 
; the way. In Noble terms, 

that meant perhaps taking a few knocks 
in the short term, knocks that would 
position us well for the long term. 

We are now starting to see some 
of the benefit of that hard work and 
the sweat and pain that has made us 
stronger and more durable. 

It's now time to flex our muscles, to 
move forward. 

Earlier in the year I said that 
improvements would come as our 
investments and new businesses took 
shape. This is exactly what has happened. 

We are in great shape going into 
2011, looking to the future with 
eveiy confidence. New assets, such 
as our sugar mills in Brazil, which 
now combine with the new berth in 
Santos, the Timbties crush plant and 
the recently acquired Noble Americas 
Energy Solutions - our electricity 

distribution business in America - will 
be on board for a full year. 

As important as conditioning 
is, any athlete will tell you that the 
difference between "good" and "great' 

AUiiilblU ilM 
the stadium. 

For Noble, the mental game means 
getting to grips with who we are and 
what we represent. In the past I have 
stated that holding on to our culture is a 
key factor - if not the key factor - as we 
continue to grow, and this is still true, 
perhaps even more so than ever. 
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ceo s message 
In my CEO message last year, I outlined 

the need tor us to stay focused and to 

concentrate on evolution rather than 

revolution. Wliile global commodity 

and financial markets have remained 

volatile, our disciplined and pmdent 

approach through the financial crisis and 

subsequently has enabled us to continue 

to invest for growth. Tlie Group's business 

model is predicated on originating raw 

materials from low-cost producing 

countries, using our pipeline strategy 

to deliver diversified commodities into 

high-growth, high-demand destination 

markets. We have built strong foundations 

in key markets and we continue to ex]:>and 

into new geographies and new product 

categories, leveraging our knowledge and 

achieving significant economies of scale in 

the process. 

Our strategy is working, we have 

record results to report and we continue 

our commitment to consistently deliver 

growth and return on equity on a risk-

adjusted basis. Our continued focus on 

building long-life assets diversified by 

product, geography and market is paying 

dividends and we saw a number of 

these investments come online in 2010, 

fiirther strengthening our sustainable 

competitive advantage. 

Noble's physical commodities' 

divisions reported an aggregate 29 percent 

increavSe in tonnage volume, with a 

Group record 184 million metric tonnes. 

This increase in volume was a result of 

favourable origination and distribution 

margins, as well as the sourcing and 

distribution capabilities of our exceptional 

global network of offices. 

We continue to invest in most of 

our divisions and mainly in our largest 

business segments - Agriculture and 

Energy - and both reported record 

tonnage volume thanks to the expansion 

of our supply chain operations, as well 

as substantial investments in increased 

production, processing, sourcing and 

distribution activities. Each of our 

bulk commodity segments reported 

higher operating income, particularly 

Agriculture, which rose by 122 percent 

over last year. 

Our Oil, Gas & Power platform is 

coming into its own. Last year I stated 

that Noble was poised to become a global 

player in energy; we resolutely moved 

into that position, assembling one of 

the world's best energy platforms in the 

process, investing in strategic assets in key 

markets and we expect to see even greater 

contribution in future quarters. 

Noble is one of the world's leading 

commodity firms and we have the 

ambition to become the best. Our core 

competencies - our pipeline strategy, our 

risk management, our financial structure, 

our strong balance sheet and our hands on 

culture - continue to drive us fomard and 

generate results. Beyond our expanding 

portfolio of physical assets and our 

business strategies, it is the expertise of 

our talented teams that makes our entiy 

into new markets possible. Noble's most 

prized asset remains our people, driven 

by our unique culture and our strong set 

of values, 'lliey are the ones that nuiture 

and maintain our businesses, our growth 

and our continued success. Across all 

levels of the Gmup, including myself, 

we feel a shared commitment to proving 

ourselves and delivering our promises. We 

are a global company and our continued 

success depends on thinldng and acting 

like one, operating as we always have 

by upliolding our sense of responsibility 

and respect ^ for our people, for our 

environment and for local communities. 

I would like to thank our employees 

and also our shareholders, Board 

Members and banks for their support and 

contribution to the continued success of 

the Group. ^ 

-yiAAAA/\ 

Ricardo Leiman 

Chief Executive Officei 
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Rapid growth has seen Noble's workforce 
expand exponentially in recent years, as we 
continue to acquire new businesses and assets 
and build our corporate stnicture. Only five 
years ago, in 2006, Noble had just over 1,500 
employees. Now, we have over 8,000. As a 
fast-growing company, we face the challenge of 
maintaining, attracting and developing a deep 
pool of talent that will drive Noble's future as 
we continue to grow. We must also continue 
integrating new businesses and new people, 
ensuring that they understand, adopt and carry 
forward our systems and culture. 

We meet these challenges by investing in 
people as we do in our infrastructui'e and global 
pipelines. Noble's Human Resources team 
continuously adds to, and upgrades, our training 
programmes and leadership development 
initiatives, enhancing the skills required to 
mannge our ever-growing global operations. 

In parallel to developing existing cnu>loyees, 
we also attract the briehtest and best (o the 

business, providing the insight and expertise to 
become our futui'e. 

These are challenges that Noble is 
prepared for and that we are well-equipped to 
handle. We are focused on bringing on board 
the right people to accompany our grov^h, 
to maintain, operate and grow our assets, to 
execute our strategy and provide our people 
with the right tools to meet the objectives we 
have set for ourselves. 

Nurturing our existing talent pool 
Noble believes in developing its own people, 
cultivating talent from within and developing 
our own leadership culture. Our training 
enhances technical skills and specific, 
localised knowledge, such as divisional trainee 
programmes that focus on the skills needed 
for a particular segment and business. Career 
development, meanwhile, is a key element of 
Noble's greater talent management strategy, 
aiming to enrich employees' skills and 
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We attract ttie brigtitest and best, provi 
msighi and expertise to become our future 

LI leni lijith ttie 

preparing them for further grovrth and 
new project scope. 

Our first International Trainee 
Programme was launched in 2005 
with the mission of identifying, hiring 
and developing the full potential of 
young talent. In 2010 we continued 
to expand and make important 
contributions to the development of 
our talent base. Localised programmes 
have been established in South 
America, Asia and Europe. We work 
with 24 universities in ten countries 
to draw the best graduates for our 
various trainee programmes. 

In 2010, the Group strengthened 
its commitment to management and 
leadership development, with 360*̂  
Feedback and specific development 
plans for managers across business 
units and support functions. The 
executive education programme 
for senior managers from across 
the Group also continued at IMD 
Lausanne. Noble will continue to 
invest in management development, 
supporting the evolution of managers 
into future leaders. 

A Group-wide initiative was 
also launched during the year, 
working with managers to identify 
potential in their teams worldwide. 
The process examines implications 

for development, fast-tracking and 
succession planning. 

Careers@Noble 
In 2010 we rolled out the new Noble 
Careers website, which provides detailed 
descriptions of our businesses, trainmg 
and career opportunities, providing 
information on trainee programmes as 
well as job listings. 

The site also aims to provide a vivid 
first-hand sense of what it is like to work 
at Noble. Employees from around the 
world and across Noble's businesses 
share their personal stories and insights 
with colleagues present and future. 

The new website was designed with 
advanced human resources management 
tools, including an automated back-end 
system and centralised CV database to 
facilitate better response and processing 
of applications. 

Integrating Noble's culture 
Noble's unique culture is a defining 
quality for the Group and dates 
back to our beginnings. Our 
culture has guided our evolution as 
a global business and has been the 
guiding force behind our success. 
In short, our culture has gotten us 
where we are today. 

During 2010, Noble conducted 

a Group-wide exercise to assess the 
perceptions of our employees, taking an 
open and honest look at how our culture 
and values are defined, how they have 
evolved with our growth and how they 
are being adopted throughout the Group. 

Our employees participated in large 
numbers, offering many insightful 
and helpful comments. Among the top 
reasons cited to stay with Noble was our 
"People and Culture". Our goal in the 
year ahead is to protect and strengthen 
our culture and our values, ensuring that 
they are communicated and embraced 
as we continue to attract, integrate and 
develop personnel. '•'''' 

Sti*ength in 
numbers 

40 countries 
79 nationalities 

Wi 120 offices 
61 assets 
8,000+ employees 
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the noble way 
As a global business, our abihty to understand, embrace and operate in a multicultural world has proven key to our 
success and will continue to drive our operations. Diversity is a fundamental part of who we are, and within our employee 
base there is a rich mix of people, talent and ideas. Our unique hands on culture is defined by a number of core values. 

nimble & flexible 
Ability to adap t to f luctuating 
markets with swift and 
accurate execution 

flat & p ragmat i c 
Working alongside the industty^s 
best, collaborating with senior staff to 
achieve personal and business goals 

A \ ^ ^ t ^ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ A \ ^ ^ t ^ \ \ \ \ \ \ W \ \ \ \ W \ W \ \ \ \ \ \ W \ \ \ W \ \ \ 

r isk-aware 
All Noble operations a re managed 
f rom a risk-adjusted perspective^ 
focusing on long-term growth 

respect & relationships 
Noble's reputation as a reliable 
business pa r tne r is built on lasting, 
respectful relationships 

\ \ ^ ^ i f c v \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ W \ \ \ \ \ W \ \ \ ^ 

accountable 
We are open, responsible, 
accountable and committed to 
sustainable development 

entrepreneurial 
Our can-do atti tude: we move fas t 
and get things done, engaging others 
with innovation and creativity 

sW^^BfesWWW X V ^ 
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Liii Zheng 

Office SupeiTJsor 

Nanjing, .nang.su, China 
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Our culture has guided our 
evolution as a global business, 
and has been the guiding force 

behind our success 



strategy 
Noble Grotqfs objectwe is l:o maxirmse 
long-term sluireholder valui-i 

r -

We endeavour to generate yearly 

returns on equity in excess of 20 percent 

by building a sustainable business 

focusing on significant and relevant 

trade flows in bulk commodities. To 

achieve this, we have developed an 

industiy leading expertise in managing 

the myriad risks that arise in completing 

each of our transactions. 

Noble Group has become a market 

leader in providing key commodities to 

parts of the world that are relevant to 

our largely seaborne trade flows. Over 

the past 20+ years we have built strong 

foundations for the ftiture growtii of die 

Group, we have fine-Umed our strategies, 

attracted and nurtured the right people, 

accessed capital markets and built a 

shai'eholderbase of 25,000 institutions 

and indi\'iduals. 

We have achieved substantial and 

sustained gro\vth over the entire course 

of our histoiy, we run a conservative 

balance sheet and we risk a veiy low 

percentage of our capital. 

Our strategy is to build integrated 

supply chains of agricultural and 

energy products, metals and minerals. 

We manage a diversified portfolio of 

essential raw materials, integrating 

the sourcing, marketing, processing, 

financing and transportation of these 

commodity products. We aim to protect 

and control these supply chains by 

owning and managing a number of 

strategic assets, sourcing from low-cost 

producers and supplying to high-growth, 

higli-demand markets. Powered by a 

strong and unique company culture and 

a focus on sustainable development, our 

people help us execute and deliver this 

strateg>f, delivering better returns for 

our shareholders and managing 

risk effectively. 

Qui' p ipel ine sti 'ategy 

Our pipeline strateg)' consists of building 

integrated supply chains - pipelines - in 

key commodity sectors and managing 

and controlling the critical stages of 

the entire supply process. By owning, 

building and managing xdtal assets, the 

Noble pipeline strategy links together 

a supply chain network of natural 

resources that spans the globe, within 

product categories and geographies that 

we regard as offering the highest returns. 

Operating between the source of the 

product and the end user is how Noble 

uses its expertise, its financial resources 

and its network to ensure that either end 

of the supply chain is assured continuous 

rehable peiformance. Whether you are a 

small iron ore miner in India or a large 

coal mine in Indonesia, we have the 

resources to buy your output, manage 

all the risks throughout the supply chain 

and deliver on-time and on-specification 

to customers thousands of miles away. 

Noble has built an enviable 

reputation as a guarantor of good 

sourcing and good deliveiy and this 

standing has become an essential tool 

for our risk management processes. We 

are an attractive, reputable and reliable 

counterpait)' for customers and vendors 

and we have the financial strength and 

backbone to honour the terms of the 

transactions that we enter. We help our 

suppliers to manage their (and our) price 

exposure with our hedging capabilities 

and we help them with finance. We have 

the balance sheet, points of multiple 

origination, reliability and track record 

that allow us to deal with a variety' of 

customers. These factors also allow us to 

manage our counterparty risk. 

Our a s se t -med ium sti-ategy 

By owning, managing and operating 

assets at critical points of the supply 

chain, we not only achieve greater 

control over our existing supply 

streams and derive maximum benefit 

from them, we also secure access to 

future trade flows. This allows us to 
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diversify our origination, logistics and 
processing operations and to create 
additional revenue streams. 

We describe this approach as being 
an "asset-medium" investment strategy, 
meaning we only invest in those assets 
which are most important to the smooth 
running and well-being of our supply 
chains. Sometimes we ovm such assets 
jointly with strategic partners, in a way 
that allows us to exercise significant 
control and maximise the returns we 

ranges from mines in Australia to brand 
new sugar mills and oilseed processing 
facilities in South America, to crushing 
plants in China and energy storage 
facilities in North America and Europe. 

The completion and opening of 
our oilseed crushing plant in Timbues, 
Argentina and the opening of our diy 
bulk export terminal in Santos, Brazil 
are examples of important greenfield/ 
brownfield Agriculture projects that 
came online in 2010. 

Our asset-medium, strategy creates security 
and control It is also a visible assurance 
of our capabilities to our customers 

generate vrithout overly burdening 
our balance sheet. For example, in 
Ai'gentina we need to control our 
port access to move large volumes 
of soybeans to the global market -
therefore, we built the River Port Grain 
Terminal in Timbues, enabhng us to 
meet increasing demand from global 
markets, especially those in Asia. 

We also strive to provide value to 
our shareholders by investing in organic 
brownfield or greenfield businesses. By 
operating on the ground in key markets, 
we are able to detect and build value 
over time. 

Over the last five years, Noble has 
invested in excess of US$4 biUion 
in building assets to support our 
commodity pipefines. Our portfolio 

Sometimes we also take advantage 
of mutually beneficial opportunities, 
and the acquisition of Sempra Energy 
Solutions (and subsequent creation of 
Noble Americas Energy Solutions) in 
2010 helped vault our North American 
power business overnight into the fifth 
largest non-residential power marketer 
in the US. 

At its most basic level, our asset-
medium strategy creates security and 
control. It is also a visible assurance of our 
capabilities to our customers. Throughout 
this report, you will be reading about the 
assets we have completed or invested in 
during 2010. For a more comprehensive 
overview, you can also refer to our Asset 
Book available through our website at 
www.thisisnoble. com 

Our diversification strategy 
Noble's diversified origination strategy 
ensures that key natural resources 
come from a variety of locations around 
the world. Suppliers range from large 
multinationals to smaller family-run 
farming operations, and our diversified 
customer base - with thousands of 
buyers located in over 40 countries 
- enables and strengthens our global 
sourcing and distribution networks. 

Diversification reduces our reliance 
on single products and single markets, 
strengthening our attractiveness as a 
countei-party. Strategic diversification 
of our commodity sources and of our 
customer base has helped us successftiHy 
manage risk and navigate during times 
of uncertainty. 

http://www.thisisnoble
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We remain committed to building 
our business around three separate 
revenue sources: fbced assets, fees and 
trading. In addition to mitigating risk, 
diversifying our revenue sources opens 
up new opportunities for our business, 
as it strengthens our operations in times 
of volatility by giving us greater options. 

By striving for diversity. Noble has the 
flexibility to pick from various options, 
choosing onl}' those opportunities that 
offer the greatest strengths to the Group. 
The ability to integrate and leverage 
assets and resources across Noble's 
segments is one of our greatest strategic 
advantages. Examples of this include 
leveraging cross-product s}'nergies - such 
as utilising terminals both for oilseed and 
petroleum-based fuel storage at Botiek, 

Rotterdam - and leveraging market 
information as we do in our Agriculture, 
Energy and MMO segments to mitigate 
price risk. 

With diversity there is also focus. We 
are selective vrith the market segments 
we enter and when we do so, we go 
deep, investing for the long term with 
the objective of building high value 
sustainable businesses. 

Focus has been key to Noble's 
Energy segment strategy. Based on our 
experience in managing energy-product 
supply chains and our knowledge of the 
world's energy-user market, we clearly 
recognise that products such as coal, 
crude oil, distillates and natural gas 
will be increasingly interchangeable. 
This focus across the diversified 

energy poitfolio gives us a competitive 
advantage, greatly strengthened by our 
trading and logistics capabilities. 

Our synergy strategy 
Making the various arms and legs of 
the Group work together is as vital as 
becoming a larger company, and we 
continually look for ways to create 
synergies between supply pipelines 
and commodity categories. The Group 
benefits from its wide range of product 
pipelines by identifying areas where one 
division can use its expertise to offer 
strategic advantages to others. Sharing 
market information and industiy 
insight, and highlighting cross-selling 
opportunities veiy often allows us to hit 
the ground running when entering new 
business lines and provides us with a 
distinct competitive edge. 

We optimise our chartering activities 
with access to timely information 
regarding ship availability, port 
conditions and routing strategies across 
leading bulk commodities - iron ore, 
coal and grain. Our expanding oil 
and gas operations leverage market 
information between our oil and gas 
activities with coal to create more insight 
regarding supply and demand. 

During the past year. Noble built 
upon the solid foundation that has 
been laid for a full-semce global energy 
operation, facilitated by the acquisition 
of key assets and personnel that make 
us a major player in energy markets. 
This year's creation of Noble Americas 
Energy Solutions allows for trading and 
marketing synergies with our power and 
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gas business that Noble can leverage to 
further increase our customer base and 
market share. 

We also restructured our global 
energy coal and carbon business 
around our customers to capitalise 
on opportunities across product 
categories. We established dedicated 
new fuel oil and distillates trading 
teams and liquids chartering groups 
in key European, Asian and North 
American markets - enlisting skilled 
executives to penetrate previously 
untapped markets and stepping up our 
investment in energy sourcing, storage 
and distribution assets. 

Our finance strategy 
Providing support to our business 
operations around the globe - and 
also to our suppliers and customers -
Noble's corporate segment manages 
the financing of our operations, our 
investments and acquisitions, our risk 
and credit management together with an 
array of advanced financial semces. Our 
strong credit and liquidity position has 
enabled the Group to raise new funding 
while maintaining ample liquidity 
and a sound capital structure, and our 
diversified funding from suppliers, banks 
and capital markets has strengthened 
our ability to finance the integration of 
our supply pipelines while limiting the 
impact of adverse market conditions. 
Our ability to manage our liquidity and 

funding requirements represents a core 
competency of Noble and underpins 
the Group as a soundly capitalised, 
investment-grade borrower. 

We are committed to maintaining 
a robust balance sheet, supported by a 
strong capital base and access to diverse, 
competitively priced funding sources. 
Effective management of liquidity and 
worldng capital is maintained to finance 
the Group's business needs as they arise. 

Noble's financial arm also provides 
comprehensive financial solutions 
and analytical support to our business 
divisions. We have created a wide 
range of financing solutions: senior 
note facilities, Islamic funding, 

project finance, account receivable 
(non-recourse) financing, asset based 
financing, equity linked financing and 
straight equity issuances, allowing us to 
improve our competitiveness through 
access to tailored financing structures. 

In 2010, three umovatively structured 
and exceptionally well-received capital 
market transactions further strengthened 
our capital base and cemented our 
reputation as a Standard & Poor's, 
Moody's and Fitch rated investment 
grade issuer. 

Noble Group also went to the 
syndication market twice in 2010, 
including a guarantee facility of 
US$1.55 billion in August and the 
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establishment of revolving credit 

facilities of US$2.54 billion in December, 

which became the year's most widely 

participated syndication facility for an 

Asia-Pacific based borrower. 

Read more about our corporate 

finance, structured finance and treasury 

on pages 58 to 61. 

Our r i sk s t ra tegy 

We view management of risk not only 

as a way to mitigate the downside 

uncertainties from our investments, but 

more importantly as a true competitive 

advantage that allows us to identify and 

take advantage of market opportunities. 

We are in the business of managing 

risk and we regard it as one of our core 

competencies. We put at risk a very 

low percentage of our capital ~ what 

matters to us is that we always run 

the company from a risk-adjusted 

perspective and we are constantly 

striving to generate the best returns 

with the lowest possible risk. Our risk 

management structure allows us to 

allocate risk capital to areas where 

we are able to generate higher and 

more sustainable returns, and our risk 

governance ensures strong oversight of 

the entire process. 

See page 54 for an in-depth look at 

our risk management strategy. 

Our people s t ra tegy 

No strategy, however strong or 

sophisticated, will create success ^vithout 

the people to drive it forward. It is the 

Group's strategy, delivered through the 

sldlls, knowledge and connnitment of 

our people that has been the real driver 

of ourgrovrth. 

We focus on maintaining a deep 

reservoir of expertise and attracting the 

skills, capabilities and personalities that 

will propel the company. The people 

joining Noble display the same drive, 

passion, values and culture that have 

been the hallmarks of Noble employees 

throughout the years. 

See page 20 for an in-deptli look at 

our HR strategies and how we continue 

to develop our workforce to support the 

Group's growth.'-'.') 
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• \ have become a trusted, valued and 
respofisible global partner to suppliers and 
f buyers of commodity products 



agriculture 

Results for the Agriculture segment 

\vere strong in 2010, with all 

divisions reporting substantial 

growth in revenue and tonnage 

vohnne. This was achieved thanks 

to a combination of strong internal 

growth, agility in responding to 

changing business conditions and 

significant investment in processing, 

storage and port assets. 

Gra ins & Oilseeds 

Revenue rose by 45 percent 

Tonnage volume up 39 percent 

The Grains & Oilseeds division 

(formerly the Grain division) achieved 

unprecedented revenue and tonnage 

volume in 2010. This was primarily 

due to increased origination volumes, 

which can be attributed to supply 

chain asset investments. The start-up 

of our plant in Timbues, Argentina, 

doubles our yearly crushing capacity 

to 7 million tonnes with 800,000 

tonnes of diy storage capacity. 

Looking ahead, we expect to see 

substantial growth in Argentine 

soybean meal and oil export volumes. 

In Brazil, the laimch of Terminal 

12A at Santos, Brazil's largest port, 

added significant port and storage 

capacity. The new dry bulk export 

terminal pro\ides new capabilities for 

handling raw sugar, grains and meals, 

while improving our economies of 

scale and substantially increasing the 

Group's control over trade flows to 

destination markets. 

We will continue to add production 

capacity in Brazil with the construction 

of a soya processing and biodiesel plant 

in Rondonopolis, MatoGrosso. 

In Ukraine, Noble acquired a 

majority interest in a processmg 

plant that fits well with our Black 

Sea-based grain origination and 

warehousing operation. 

The Group entered the palm oil 

sector with the strategic acquisition of 

a 51 percent stake in PT Henrison Inti 

Persada, a leading developer of palm 

plantations in Sorong, Indonesia. 

This new asset will pro\ade a new 

stream of palm oil and palm products 

that \vill complement oiu' global 

agriculture and energy businesses 

and specifically supply our vegetable 

oils refining and distribution facilities 

in China and India, where a highly 

experienced new management team 

is in place. 

A global rice trading organisation 

was also launched in 2010, with 

teams established in South America, 

Swit/ei'land, West Africa and Asia. 

file:///vere
file:///vill
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All Agriculture 
divisions reported. 

record highs in 
revenue and. 

tonnage volume 

Sugar 

83 percent increase in tonnage 

volume 

• Tliree-fold increase in revenue 

The Sugar division is building a vertically 

integrated origination-to-destination 

pipeline that extends fi'om sugar cane 

production to processing to sales, 

positioning Noble to become one of 

Brazil's - and the world's - foremost 

sugar and ethanol suppliers. 

The division recorded increases to 

revenue and tonnage in 2010, primarily 

attributable to our Brazilian sugar 

and ethanol facilities and continuing 

expansion of our distribution activities in 

high-demand markets in the Middle East 

and Asia, including China and India. 

The start up of the Meridiano sugar 

mill in Brazil's Sao Paolo state was a key 

achievement in 2010. Production at full 

capacity is scheduled to commence with 

the April 2011 hai-vest. 

In December 2010, the Group agreed 

to acquire Cerradinho Acucar, Etanol 

eEnergia S.A., whose assets include two 

fidly operational mills, a refineiy and a 

premium refined sugar brand, along \rith 

its domestic distribution network. The 

acquisition nearly doubles our potential 

annual crushing capacity to 17.5 million 

tonnes, putting us firmly in the world's 

top tier of sugar cane milling companies. 

With the new plants 50 Idlometres apart 

and about 100 Idlometres from our UNP 

plant, we expect to realise cost savings 

in management and operation of the 

combined facilities. 

Our sugar operation approximately 

doubled its size, building business in 

its major markets, while capitalising on 

synergies with our Brazilian sugar and 

port assets and remaining profitable 

in the face of market volatilit)' caused 

by severe weather disruptions in key 

producing regions. With world stock-

to-use ratios low and witii Brazilian 

production expansion having been 

constrained by the global financial crisis, 

we expect sugar and ethanol price levels 

to remain favourable. 

Cocoa 

Record high revenue 

Record high tonnage volume 

The Cocoa division's record revenue was 

supported by record annual tonnage 

volume that was primarily related to 

the securing of Ivory Coast supplies, as 

well as a contango market that created 

additional profit expansion. 

Other contributing factors include 

larger trading volumes in fermented 

beans sourced wthin the Group, 

arbitrage opportunities created by new 

origin markets such as Ecuador and 

the development of new business based 

on the sustainable supply of traceable 

premium-quality cocoa. 

Noble Cocoa focused on 

strengthening creative partnerships 

with the chocolate industiy, seeking 

guaranteed quality and quantities and 

showing willingness to pay a premium 

for the management of price, supply 

and timing risk. Europe remained a 

file:///rith
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key destination market for our high 

quality products. 

Research capabilities were ftirther 

enhanced with an operational data basis, 

enabhng us to leverage our field scouting 

operations better in Asia and in Africa, 

where we continue to be among the top 

buyers and shippers. 

Cot ton 

• Record high revenue 

Record high tonnage 

Tlie Cotton di\'ision reported revenue 

and tonnage volume at record levels 

in 2010. This was primarily due to 

a doubling of cotton prices and the 

expansion of Noble's business in key 

markets including China, Turkey and 

the US. The division also recorded a 

substantial rise in operating income. 

Coffee 

• 44 percent increase in revenue 

• 27 percent increase in tonnage 

volume 

The Coffee division posted its second 

consecutive 3'ear of record profit, led 

by continuing expansion in European 

destination markets. This was achieved 

in a volatile environment, witii Ai'abica 

prices rising by 77percent. In Vietnam and 

Indonesia, our Robusta segment achieved 

a significant increase in yearly turnover. 

In 2010 Noble ranked among 

Brazil's top ten largest annual exporters, 

and our Stamford office was the largest 

participant in the terminal certified 

coffee market. 

The Group's wholly-owned 

processing and warehousing facility 

in Brazil went into operation during 

the year, giving us total control of the 

pipeline, from local farmers to global 

consumers. 2011 \\nll see the opening 

of an office in Colombia, enabling us to 

source cost-effectively from the world's 

largest washed Ai'abica producer and 

giving us a platform in the top four 

producing countries. The division will 

also be developing new coffee products 

based on sustainable practices along our 

entire supply chain. (''J 

file:////nll
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Timbues Oilseed Processing Complex 

The Group's state-of~the-industiy oilseed crushing plant, 
situated at the port terminal of Timbues in Argentina's 
Santa Fe province, commenced operation in 2010. 
Capable of producing 2.7 milion metric tonnes of soybean 
oil, meal and pellets annually, the facility doubles Noble's 
yearly crushing capacity to 7 miflion tonnes. The US$230 
milhon facility, supported by a US$75 million loan from 
the Inter-American Development Bank, includes 800,000 metric 
tonnes of dry storage capacity and 70,000 metric tonnes of liquid 
storage capacity, substantially adding to Noble's competitive advantage 
in worldvride oilseeds distribution. 

Santos Dry Bulk Export Terminal 

Noble has a 75 percent stake in Terminal 12A, a dry bulk export 
terminal in Santos, Brazil, which is also South America's largest port. 
First operational in 2010, the terminal covers an area of 10,000 square 

metres and has an export capacity of 30,000 metric tonnes 
per day. The terminal creates important synergies 

for the Group's grain and sugar businesses while 
hr-f̂ zll supporting the Group's pipeline strategy, providing 

control over trade flows from origination and 
processing asset locations to destination markets in 

China, Europe and the Middle East. 

MeAdiano Sugar Mill and Ethanol 
Production Facility 

Noble's sugar refining and ethanol processing facility 
at Meridiano in Brazil's Sao Paulo State commenced 
operations in 2010. Situated near the Group's UNP 
plant in Votuporanga, the new plant will reach its yearly 
sugar cane crushing capacity of 4 million metric tonnes 
during 2011. 

in'iiztl 
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energy 

Noble's growlh in the energy sector 

conlinucd to gain moiuendim in 2010, 

bolstered by a series of a.sset acquisitions 

(hat offer new opportunities foi- cros.s-

divisional synergies. 

The .segment achieved recoixl 

aiuuuil revenue, tonnage and opeiating 

income and accounted fbi' 65 percent of 

Ciioup revenue foi' the year. 

I^^nergy Coal & Carbon Complex 

Record tonnage volume driven by 

Record annual operating income 

In 2010, Noble's coal operations 

weic reorganised as the l-'ncrgy Coal 

& Carbon Complex, with two core 

business platforms - biluniinous/ 

subbituminous coal, and metallurgical 

coal and coke - grouped ai-oinid the 

customer base. 

Record revenue and tonnage 

vohnne was po.sted by the Energy 

Coal & Carbon Com|)k'x, due to 

three major factoi-s: higher market 

pi'ices in thermal and steel-making 

coals; liighoi' prochiction volume 

following Noble's investments in coal 

production capacily; and iiu'rea.sed 

origination volume from Indonesia, 

In the space of four years Nobie 

has attained a .sir-"''"'""' '•'-'••" 

for metallurgical coke, having 

customers and formed strong 

j)artnerKhips \vilh cokeries. The 

rebound of the global steel sector 

and sironii economic i 
Asia boosted 

volume and lee 

coal business. 

Weai'e \nu ' <iratei»ies to 
conlinue growing vohnne, niainl; 

positiorr 
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Our origination efforts have 

been further expanded in India, 

Indonesia, Mongolia, Colombia and 

the US, which has increased our 

market share and profitability. 

Oil, Gas & P o w e r 

73 percent increase in tonnage 

volume compared to 2009 

Record revenue driven bv maior 

acquisitions in the US 

In 2010, the division posted record 

revenue and a 73 percent growth in 

tonnage volume from 2009, reflecting 

the expansion of Noble's business 

activities - in particular the growth in 

gasoline and gasoline components. 

The purchase of fuel terminal 

and storage assets from SemFuel 

LP, incorporated as Noble Petro Inc, 

saw our entiy into middle distillates 

activities. Oiu* acquisition of North ville 

Product Services further boosted our 

position as a leading energy marketer 

and largest storage holder in the 

Magellan pipeline system. Noble also 

je capacit}' in Gushing, 

Oklahoma, which will facilitate our US 

crude oil trading activities. A new fuel 

storage facilit)' in Maranhao, Brazil 

also came onstream in 2010. 

In November 2010 Noble actiuired 

Sempra linci-g>^ Solutions, creating 

Noble Americas Enei"gy Solutions, tiie 

fifth-largest commercial, industrial 

and municipal i;>(nver marketei' in the 

US. This strategic acciuisilion adds 

breadth to the division's business and 

provides immediate synergies to a more 

integrated wholesale sourcing, retail 

marketing and distribution operation. 

During the yeai', the division 

established crude oil physical and 

futui-es trading desks in Stamford, 

Calgary and London and added 

resources in London, Houston and 

Singapore to capitalise on inci'easiug 
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A" Newcastle, Australia 

activity in Europe's distillate trading 

market. In Singapore, the world's 

largest bunker market, the division 

commenced an accredited bunker 

operation, working with Noble's 

worldwide chartering organisation. 

Po lymers 

Launched a polymers derivatives 

and futures hedging ftmction 

The Polymers division continued to 

deliver strong results by adhering 

to a growth strategy focused on 

investment in high-yield strategic 

assets along the supply chain, on 

profitable fee-based offtake and 

marketing activities and on polymers 

derivatives and futures trading. 

We entered into preliminary 

agreements with major multinational 

producers to originate or toll ethylene 

and propylene for finished polyolefin 

resin to be packaged under proprietary 

Noble brands. We have established 

multiple new trade routes from the 

Middle East to Latin America and 

Europe to capture international 

arbitrage opportunities. 

The division expects a dramatic 

rise in polyolefin consumption in 

China and India to drive a new period 

of demand, which we are well placed 

to supply. 

P e t r o c h e m i c a l s 

• Creation of a global naptha 

platform 

2010 saw the inception of a global 

naptha platform, resulting in an 

increase in volumes. Meanwhile, 

Noble's share of the key Venezuelan 

naptha market grew to 20 percent. 

Our competitive advantages 

in petrochemicals - a globally 

integrated paper and physical 

trading operation, geographically 

diversified portfolio and synergies 

with our gasoline and components 

business - position Noble for 

continued strong growth, ^v 
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Neiveastle Coal Terminal 

Through our lOO percent owned coal mine in Australia's 
Hunter Valley, Noble is an equity shareholder in 

Newcastle Coal Infrastructure Group's coal export iUL^iindia 
terminal at the port of Newcastle in New South 
Wales. The terminal's first phase was rolled out in 
2010 and has an annual loading capacity of over 30 million 
metric tonnes. Situated on Newcastle's Kooragang Island, it 
comprises rail and ship unloaders, stockpile facilities and two berths 
along the south arm of the Hunter River. On completion, the facility ̂ vill 
handle 66 miflion metric tonnes. 

Noble Petro Terminals 

The assets of Noble Petro (NPI), acquired 
by the Group in 2009, include a number uf̂ a 
of strategically-located fuel terminals 
and downstream storage assets seiving the 
central US. In 2010, NPI acquired Northville Product 
Semces, a leading blender, distributor and marketer of refined 
petroleum products. The integrated operations own terminals in Texas, 
Iowa, Wisconsin and Michigan. The working capacity of these assets 
combined with leased storage facilities in Texas, Illinois and Indiana, 
along with system storage in the Magellan, Plantation, Explorer, Teppco 
and Nustar pipelines, totals over 6 million barrels. 

UNP Votuporanga Sugar Mill and Ethanol 
Production Facilities 

Noble's sugar refining and ethanol production plant 
at Votuporanga in Brazil's Sao Paulo State was 
acquired in 2007 and has since been expanded 
in phases. It has an annual sugar cane crushing 
capacity' of 5 miflion metric tonnes and also produces 
ethanol. The plant burns sugar cane bagasse that generates 
55 megawatts of electricity that is sold to the grid. 

braxU. 
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metals, minerals & ores 
Noble^s Metals. Minejxds and Oren (MIVIO) segmejit sourceH €m.€l 
supplies raxv niaUiiiukfroin mine to mill to market^ supporting 
development in some, of the iDorkTs fastest groiving markets 

'-'M, 

As global economic conditions gradually 
improve, Noble's MMO segment is 
advantageously positioned to benefit 
in both high and low volume cycles. 
Record-high results were reported for 
revenue and operating income in 2010, 
and the Group continued to expand 
its global metals' sourcing and supply 
platform and concluded industry-first 
long-term supply contracts. 

I ron Ore 
51 percent increase in revenue 
Significant rise in operating income 

Despite a 13 percent decrease in 
tonnage volume, the Iron Ore division 
reported a 51 percent increase in 
revenue. Average iron ore prices 
increased in 2010, contributing to the 
higher revenue results. Volumes were 
adversely affected by the imposition of 
a complete ban on the transportation 
of iron ore from Karanataka, India to 

ports from July 2010. An unusually 
protracted monsoon season in India 
was also a contributing factor. 

Operating income rose significantly, 
however, reflecting our strategic focus on 
improving risk/return. 

Noble continued to diversify 
origination activities from Australia, 
Brazil and other origins, and we will 
continue to identify and im^est in existing 
and greenfield iron ore assets with a view 
to expanding our market coverage and 
integrating our sourcing operations. 

We are well positioned to capitalise 
on trends in the seaborne iron ore 
industiy. Favourable long-term supply 
and physical/swaps linked contracts 
were concluded in 2010, marking a 
first for the industry. In addition, our 
BOT loading facility at Paradip Port in 
India, close to the country's main iron 
ore resei-ves, Avill on completion have 
a throughput capacity of 10 million 
metric tonnes. 

The to segment 
reported record 
annual revenue and 
opera ting in corne 
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Territoiy Resources, Francis Crefek Project 
Dan^n, Australia 
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' t t i e G r o u p Aluminium 
- • Record revenue and tonnage 

connnuea m 
expand Us global 
metals' sourcing 

and supply 
'itform. 

volume 
• Record 50 percent rise in operating 

income 

The Aluminium division reported 
record levels of revenue and tonnage 
in 2010, predominantly driven 
by price normalisation and the 
improved economy in the US, our key 
destination market. 

The continuing expansion of our 
North American activities was also 
supported by Noble's acquisition of 

Deliveiy Network International LLC, 
a US-based manager of LME licensed 
warehouses which will serve as a 
platform for an independent global 
warehousing operation. 

The division deployed its global 
arbitraging resource and stock financini 
expertise to capitalise on abundant 
price-differential opportunities created 
by investment flows into the metal 
markets, growing share, volumes 
and geographic reach. The division 
is operating from a solid foundation 
with long-term sourcing now a key 
component of our business. ^̂'-̂  
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Territory Resources 
Noble's stake in this mining operation in Darwin, afs^nndut 

Australia includes a life-of-mine offtake agreement 

with Territoiy Resources Limited. More than 

2 million metric tonnes of iron ore were exported in 2010. 

The operation has access to bulk handling facilities at Darwin's 

port and benefits from the proximity of tiie Adelaide-Darwin railway 

fine. Haematite deposits identified in several uumined seams provide 

excellent prospects for iron mineralisation within the project area. 

Parad ip Por t 

Noble leads a consortium to build a US$110 miflion iron ore handling 

facility at Paradip Port in India's Orissa state, close to the country's 

largest iron ore reserves and production areas. The bufld-operate-

transfer project will have an annual throughput capacity 

of at least 10 million metric tonnes of iron ore, and 

features a 370-metre long loading berth able 

-i_ to accommodate 185,000-tonne vessels. The 

project covers a total area of more than 126,000 

square metres, including a stockpile area of over 82,000 

square metres. 

UHl. 

Mhag Servigos E Mineragao SA 

Noble is an equity shareholder in Mhag Servigos E Mineragao SA, 

or Mhag, a Brazflian iron ore producer witii 105,000 hectares under 

license in the states of Rio Grande do Norte and Paraiba, where there 

are five concessions holding estimated reserves of 3.8 billion metric 

tonnes. The company's holdings are undergoing 

geophysical analysis in phases. The first phase is 

yielding high-quality ore and will be expanded 

to include a pilot plant. A drilling programme 

is planned for certification of the reseives and 

the building of an industrial unit for pelletisatiou, as is 

investment in new logistics and dedicated port facilities. 

iyi''iji-:tl 
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logistics 
JMoble ily-ro'up s Logist ics opeii^itions t i n t o u r giooal sou rcb ig mu^i 
'Driffbiailon eaj}€imtM ivith ihi^h-arowtk de^ th ia l ion rmitket^i 

The Logistics segment's major 

strength continues to come from 

our strong relationships within 

the industry. Noble's reputation 

gives customers and partners the 

confidence that they are working with 

one of the world's most experienced 

shipping and logistics organisations. 

The segment reported revenue of 

US$855 million and tonnage volume 

of 53.6 million metric tonnes, with an 

operating income of US$114.2 million. 

Tonnage volume of commodities shipped 

by Noble Logistics includes both Noble's 

own commodity sales and commodities 

shipped for third parties. 

Noble Cha r t e r i ng 

Chartering tonnage volume continued 

to be impacted by a shift in third 

paiiy customers to in-house freight 

management as well as a lack of 

arbitrage opportunities caused by 

significant levels of new build. Our 

strategy of entering new trade routes 

and expanding our client base was 

upheld, and we expect to see an increase 

in tonnage volume in coming quarters. 

Tonnage volume in the fourth quarter 

was the highest in 2010, reflecting an 

increase in in-house tonnage volume. 

The division took deliveiy of two 

newbuilding capesizes, which have 

been chartered for five and ten years 

respectively. A ftuther two post panamax 

newbufldings were ordered, with a 2011 

delivery date, and two capesizes were 

chartered for a period of 12 years, also 

set to be delivered in 2011. 

The division also set up a dry bulk 

freight team in the US to service the 

needs of clients based in the Atlantic 

consolidating business and bolstering 

human capital. Fleet size totalled at 213 

ships as the division continued to select 

desirable owners. 

Twenty eight newbuilding vessels 

were added to the stable, reducing the 

average fleet age to slightly over six 

years, making it one of the 3'oungest in 

the world. Ten new ship owners were 

also added to Fleet's profile, providing 

additional diversity and resilience. 

Noble Logistics' uKgor strength conihmes 
to fxxrne from our strong i'elationships 
wittiin ttie industry 

basin. This four-person team enjoyed 

a strong start, building a book of over 

two million tonnes in the first six 

months of operation. 

Entering 2011, all of Noble's diy 

freighting offices have been integrated 

into a global freight desk. 

Fleet M a n a g e m e n t 

Fleet Management maintained its 

position as one of the top four ship 

management companies in the world in 

2010. During the year Fleet focused on 

Fleet Management was awarded 

'Best Performing Ship Management 

Company in Port State Control 

Inspection - Pi Xiu Management Award 

2010' by the Government of Hong 

Kong's Marine Department for the third 

consecutive year. 

At the same ceremony. Fleet was 

honoured with the 'Green Awareness 

Award,' and April 2010 saw the division 

honoured with the 'The Ship Manager 

Award' at the Seatradc Asia Awards 

2010 held in Singapore. ''-̂  
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We look for people who not only have the requisite 
professional skill sets and ethics, 

but who are also well-rounded and demonstrate 
an understanding of context. As our people realise 

their potential within our organisation, they become 
vigilant partners in our busings 
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risk management 

y\l Nol^le, we I'cgard I'isk management 

as one of our core competences, a 

coni]5etitive advantage thai allows 

us not (mly to mitigate the downside 

risks of our investments, but also to 

oi)timise the value from our supply 

chains and to identity and leverage 

market opportunities. 

PLffectively managing risk is the 

responsibility of eveiy person woi'king 

at Noble and that extends well beyond 

our rcjbust and independent risk 

function. It is ])art of our DNA and this 

strong culture of I'isk ownership and 

commimication allows Noble Group to 

maintain a consistentl^y low risk profile 

and to deliver steady year-on-year risk-

adjusted returns on cai")ilal and ec|uity. 

A deep cu l tu re of risk 

m a n a g e m e n t 

A few years ago, we said that risk 

is 90 percent about jjcople and 

10 percent about numbei's. While 

tlie risk analytical framework has 

developed to manage thegj-owing 

sophistication of the business, more 

than ever employees nuisl thoroughly 

understand Ihecontexl of the business 

and the risk that they are managing. 

with a minimum (jf capital risk along 

the entire value chain. At Noble, risk 

management begins at the start of 

the recruitment (Ji'ocess. We 1( 

eooie WHO no 

but who aj'e afso well-roundetl and 

denionslrate an understanding of 

context. We apprai.se and reward on 

peoj:ile haseti on theii- i'isk-adjusted 

perl'ormancc, and as our peojile 

oriianisalHjn, 

While we lake an iincompromi.sing 

line on the adoption of- ant! adherence 

to - Gnnip operational standards, 

procedures and .systems, our risk 

managers remain deeply involved 

professional .skill .sets and ethics, 

inlegralHig new team memljers, acting 

as channels ofconununicalion and 

seivinii as coaches to ensuix? that risk 

http://apprai.se
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ai)i:)etite and entrepreneurial initiative 

are kept in balance. 

As the Group continues to grow, 

one of the challenges we face in the 

near term is managing risks associated 

with integration as we build, acquire 

or merge sizeable new businesses and 

assets and absorb or hire management 

teams. Indeed, we have successfully 

anaged several large acquisitions 

included in the past year, such 
as Sempra Energy Solutions (now 

Noble Americas Energy SoliUions) 

and Northville Product Seivices in 

the US, and Etanol eEnergia S.A. in 

Brazil. When new teams are put in 

place, our risk managers are intimately 

involved in integrating new employees 

into Noble's established risk ctdture. 

Indeed, one of our many criteria for 

acquisition is to identify management 

teams ^rith whom we share common 

values and culture. 

In formed r isk governance 

A large factor in our success is om* 

company culture \vhich is built on 

open communication and the free flow 

of information up, dowai and across 

Noble's operations. Unobstructed 

communication is absolutely critical 

to managing an expanding universe 

of risk and as a result, Noble has 

championed the integration of all risk 

functions under one roof for a number 

of years. This allows us to manage 

risk transfer from market to credit 

to operational risk veiy effectively, 

and all our managers work as a 

team, sharing information from their 

resj: 

to anticii^ate and act on risks far more 

effectively than an organisation based 

on risk silos. The added benefit is tiiat 

strong links bet^veen our di\'isions 

management are quickl>' applied across 

the entire Group to minimise exposure. 

Pro\'iding mechanisms within the 

Group for i:)eople to share ideas on 

market conditions and transfer market 

intelligence within the comi)any turns 

threats into ojiportunities. 

Our risk management structiu'c 

file:///vhich




aUows us to quickly identify areas that 

need attention and empowers the people 

involved to act in a timely manner. 

Our risk governance structure ensures 

strong oversight of the entire process 

and facilitates rapid communication 

and decision making. In addition, we 

calculate our Value at Risk (VaR) on a 

daily basis across all our commodities on 

a net commodities position. 

Risk management at Noble also 

focuses on portfolio optimisation and 

we extract a significant amount of value 

fi'om our supply chain through optimising 

the timing on the routing, processing 

and hedging of our physical product. 

For example, decisions such as shipping 

soybeans immediately or storing them, 

or whether to ship them to China or 

crush in Argentina are made within this 

objective of optimisation across our 

entire portfoHo. 

S t ruc tu re 

We are exposed to a variety of risks 

including credit, market, operational, 

liquidity, political and countr}' risk. 

Also, risk to our reputation must be 

managed and we are mindful of the 

fact that our reputation as a leading 

international supply chain manager 

must be safeguarded. All of these risks 

are material and require a multi-tiered 

risk management strategy. 

The Group views risk as a powerful 

function and manages each category of 

risk strategically to significant advantage 

while minimising exposure. We only seek 

to manage risk ourselves where we feel 

there is an advantage to be gained, laying 

off other risks to third parties who have 

an ability to consolidate and price such 

risk more competitively. For example, 

we mitigate our political and countiy 

risk by transferring much of such risk to 

the political risk insurance market. This 

allows us to reallocate risk capital to areas 

where we are able to generate higher and 

more sustainable returns. 

Our risk management teams operate 

on the front fines of our businesses, and 

the combination of their quantitative 

and qualitative skills allows us to 

share and leverage both hard and 

soft data. We combine hard technical 

analysis with the power of our global 

office network to quicldy gather and 

disseminate information. The system of 

hard technical analysis is strengthened 

by our pipeline strategy connecting our 

various businesses, giving us the ability 

to identify and deal with changes in our 

portfolio in real time. 

Our risk managers are provided with 

a comprehensive suite of analytical tools 

to accurately quantify the risk exposure 

in their business, including the use of 

VaR, stress analysis, scenario analysis for 

market risk, potential future exposure 

analysis to measure credit, counterpaity 

and inventoiy risk - while our cash 

forecasting models allow us to effectively 

manage our liquidity. 

Main ta in ing a low r i sk profile 

In 2010, the Group continued to manage 

its portfolio of risk successfully. This 

is most clearly indicated by our risk 

adjusted return on capital (RAROC) and 

average VaR as a percentage of equity 

(see VaR chart on page 56). 

A full discussion of our risk 

management objectives and policies and 

analysis of our risk profile is found in the 

Notes to Financial Statements. -̂'-3 

\ . f _ 

Managing and growing an 

entrepreneurial business is a 

continuous exercise in change 

management. 

Reengineering of process not 

only reduces risk but also 

increases business effectiveness. 

For Noble, successful 

integration of a new business 

requires a harmonisation of 

risk culture. 

Rewarding people on a risk-

adjusted basis has ensured a 

better allocation of resources 

and capital. 
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finance 
Noble^sfinarmial hackhone idimtifi.es and creates 
eompelitive advantages fo r the Group aiulfor our eliijuts 

The year 2010 marked a landmark 

year for Noble. Revenues rose over 

82 percent to US$57 billion compared 

to US$31 billion in 2009. The gro^vth in 

our physical volume was nearly 

30 percent, fo^o^ving a 20 percent 

increase in 2009. 

Revenue growth was only one 

of several issues to challenge Noble 

Finance. We also had a year in which 

commodity markets, particularly in 

the soft commodities, reported record 

price levels attributable to both weather 

conditions and a continuing strong 

demand environment. Rising prices 

call for higher margin requirements 

associated with our hedging activities 

and risk management efforts. 

Financial markets remained volatile. 

Once again we witnessed turbulence 

from financial stress in the sovereign 

asset class impacting bond markets. We 

also experienced worries about a global 

sIoAvdown in overheated emerging 

markets, as well as higher interest 

rates that threatened to choke financial 

recoveiy in key markets. 

Noble Finance identifies investments 

that create competitive advantages 

in building production and process 

capacity. We analyse expansion 

projects to evaluate the potential 

to increase profitabflity. We assess 

the viability of new assets to expand 

our business into new geographic 

markets and broaden our sourcing and 

distribution footprint. 

We also fund these investments 

- Ave raise capital while ensuring 

sufficient liquidity. We plan a capital 

structure that ensures funding 

availabilit)^ while creating access to 

cost-competitive terms. We look ahead 

to new funding sources, Avidening our 

banker and investor community to fund 

our next growth phase. 

Our capabilities are not limited 

to serving Noble's business. We also 

help our customers achieve success. 

For example, our Structured Finance 

department finds innovative solutions to 

help clients access lower ftmding costs, 

or find new capital providers to expand 

their production assets. Our success 

strengthens our relationships and creates 

new profit opportirnities. It's simple - if 

we help our clients grow, so will we. 

Our Corporate Finance team looks 

after our capital investments across 

our global base of business. Over time 

we have developed strong expertise 

in key geographic markets and 

product sectors that provide us with 

a competitive edge in understanding 

a business, responding faster or 

recognising value beyond the numbers. 

Our Treasuiy team looks after our 

front and back office finance operations. 

We have built a talented, experienced 

team that is just as capable of managing 

the rising volumes of payments per 

day as raising bilfions in international 

capital markets. 

S t r u c t u r e d F inance 

Noble's Structured Finance department 

provides financial solutions and fund 

raising for our cfients on a global 

basis. We leverage our knowledge of 

the commercial bank and insurance 

markets to create financing solutions 

that allow us to build and strengthen our 

commercial relationships. 

The department has also tapped the 

development bank sector to help finance 

Noble investments, giving us access to 

attractively priced long-term funding. 

http://idimtifi.es
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Oilseed Processing Complex & Port Terminal 
Timbiies, Argentina 
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Our relationships include leading 

institutions like the IFC, lADB, BNDES 

and EBRD. We believe our access to 

these financing sources provides us vrith 

a competitive advantage, allowing us to 

build new funding sources, particularly 

in developing financial markets. 

Coi 'porate F inance 

Our Corporate Finance department 

oversees a number of important 

corporate objectives. Investment and 

acquisition activities are supported 

by a robust due diligence review and 

also supported the expansion of our 

Black Sea origination platform across 

several asset classes and entry into new 

business areas such as palm oil. 

The team is also increasingly focused 

on asset optimisation and monetising 

our existing investments. 

Our Corporate Finance team was 

successful in accessing debt and equity 

capital markets. In 2010 we concluded 

several capital market transactions, 

including a tap issuance of US$400 

million from our previously issued 

10 year 6.75 percent senior notes due 

Noble Finance identifies investments that 
create competitive advantages in building 
production and process capacity 

evaluation process. We have built 

an in-house investment merger and 

acquisition capability that allows us 

to leverage our industry expertise and 

our understanding of local market 

conditions to identify and execute our 

asset expansion. 

In 2010 we executed several 

important transactions, including our 

acquisition of Sempra Energy Solutions, 

the fifth largest non-residential power 

marketer in the US. We also announced 

the acquisition of Northvihe Product 

Sei-vices, a US-based international 

petroleum and ftiel trading, marketing 

and distribution business. Our efforts 

2020. Such transactions extended our 

debt maturity and maintained our 

diverse debt maturity profile. 

We also issued US$350 nnllion 

Perpetual Capital Securities which 

further strengthened Noble's capital 

base. The transaction was the first 

hybrid security globally to receive a 

combination of 100 percent, 75 percent 

and 50 percent equity credit from 

S&P, Fitch and Moody's, respectively, 

while getting full accounting equity 

treatment at the same time. 

Our team also manages relationships 

vvith rating agencies and in 2010 achieved 

a Positive Outlook ft-om Fitch Ratings. 

Treasui 'y 

Noble has a simple approach to 

managing its financial position, focused 

on several key strategies: sufficient 

liquidity to ftind growth; diversification 

in ftmding sources; access to long-

term funding to ensure a stable capital 

base; a debt maturity profile that 

creates vaiying debt repayment dates, 

and a capital structure that achieves 

a low cost of capital. Our efforts have 

been successful as the combination 

of improving business and financial 

performance, combined with our overall 

financial position, elevated our rating to 

investment grade in 2008 and 2009. 



In 2010 we continued to add 

sufficient liquidity to operate our 

business. After increasing our bank 

lines by over 30 percent to US$8 billion 

in 2009, we further expanded our bank 

lines to US$13.5 billion, including a 

US$3 biflion increase in our committed 

bank lines to US$7 biflion. 

The increase in committed bank 

lines was led by another record 

revolving credit facility. Our latest 

syndicated loan transaction, a multi-

year term facflity concluded December 

2010, involved 76 banks joining the 

US$2.5 billion facility. 

Historically, we have maintained a 

high level of liquidity as evidenced by 

our cash levels. In recent periods we 

have maintained higher cash levels due 

to increased volatility in commodity 

prices as well as in consideration of the 

turmofl in banking markets. 

We continue to maintain a 

conservative approach to our cash 

holdings, requiring a minimum single 

A investment grade rating amongst our 

larger deposit taking banks and capping 

the minimum amount of cash held at any 

one institution. 

We have also maintained a strong 

balance sheet as evidenced by the high 

quality of our assets. Working capital 

assets represent over 70 percent of our 

total assets with our accounts receivables 

and inventoiy accounting for 35 percent 

of total assets. 

Our inventoiy position refiects 

commodities that we hold in 

conjunction with future contractual 

sales or with respect to our processing 

activities. As of 31 December 2010, 

93 percent of our inventoiy represented 

inventories that were either pre-sold 

or hedged via futures exchanges or 

via over-the-counter markets. Due 

to the commodity price nature of 

these products, the existence of active 

markets and international pricing 

mechanisms for these products, we view 

these inventories as readily convertible 

to cash. 

In 2010, we successftflly continued 

our efforts to maintain access to a 

diversified ftmding base while increasing 

our financing flexibility. 

The Group's higher debt levels were 

attributable to higher working capital 

requirements, which in turn reflected 

the growth of our business and generally 

higher commodity prices as well as 

higher capital spending. 

An important part of our funding 

strategy is to maintain a diversified 

ftmding structure, which allows us to 

create a balanced debt maturity profile. 

In recent years we have sought greater 

stabflity in our capital structure, which 

has been achieved v^dth longer dated 

issuance of senior notes. .̂̂  
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At a Group level, and also at a local level, 

we continue to implement numerous 

voluntaiy^ initiatives that illustrate the 

fact that we truly operate on a local scale, 

and recognise our role in communities. 

Our initiatives go beyond 

emdronmental concerns. We address 

issues relating to our activities in the 

communities in Avhich we operate, such 

as education, health and safety, disaster 

relief, water and sanitation, or where we 

see prompt help and support is needed. 

As we often find ourselves developing 

new supply pipelines in regions where 

economic and social potential have 

pre\dousl>' been unfulfilled, we believe 

we have a positive role to play in 

implementing best practices that we 

currently employ in some of the world's 

most developed economies, and bringing 

them to areas where development has 

been slow. 

As a relatively young and fast-groAving 

company, we have undertaken a number 

of very successful activities. This year, 

rather than proAdding a shopping list 

of what we have done, who we ha\'e 

helped, or describing in detail the 

rigorous manner in which Gloucester 

Coal manages its mining operations, 

we wanted to focus on just a couple of 

the major overarching initiatives that 

we are pursuing that best represent our 

approach to our responsibflit>^ 

Cl imate change 

Our in-house Carbon Neutral Project 

and our commitment to the Clinton 

Global Initiative, for example, have seen 

us make significant progress in reducing 

and offsetting our footprint over the past 

three years. 

Up to now, our worldwide offices, 

ships, publications and management 

events have all become carbon neutral. 

In 2010, for the first time, we collected 

the necessaiy global data to offset the 

carbon footprint of the entire supply 

''There is a 
survival need for 
sound, energetic 
environmental 
practices" 
Ambassador Burton 
Levin, Independent 
Non-Executive Director 





chain for one of our commodities. 

Calculating the CO2 emissions of 

our operations helps us manage 

our emissions and identify possible 

mitigation measures, whfle also allowing 

us to pass our expertise on to other 

corporations and industries. We invested 

a lot in this initiative, but ensuring that 

carbon neutrality touches Noble at all 

levels is something we believe holds 

ongoing educational value and impact -

both internally and externally. 

Co rpo ra t e gove rnance 

2010 was a year of particular note 

as Noble became one of the few bulk 

commodity supply chain managers to 

commit to operating under the auspices 

of the UN Global Compact. A copy of the 

commitment letter sent by Noble CEO 

Ricardo Leiman to his ExceUency Ban Ki-

moon. Secretary General for the United 

Nations, is reproduced on the right. 

We have started implementing new 

initiatives to ensure that Noble covers 

aU ten of the UN Global Compact 

principles. Initially, we must ensure that 

we have a full inventory of our disparate 

initiatives across all of our locations, 

offices and assets and that we involve all 

Noble employees. Our aim is to make the 

ten principles of the UN Global Compact, 

which embrace the areas of human 

rights, labour, the environment and 

anticorruption become an integral part 

of Noble's DNA. 

All Noble's divisions will benefit from 

our engagement vrith these initiatives, 

as the topics and issues they address 

are equally important to all of us at 

Noble, as we operate and originate 

with locally-based management teams, 

whose famflies and friends live in the 

communities where we operate. 

''We seek to ploy a rjosituje role ui the 
coinniimMes wi ujhieti we oijorote and we 
recognise the mipact of our aefiijiries"' 
l lkxoxh Le'hnan^ Noble Gr^wp (jeiO 

C o m m u n i t y invo lvement 

An important part of Noble's coiporate 

philosophy is about giving back - to 

communities within which we operate 

and to individuals. This is not about being 

ideafistic. Successful companies commit 

substantial effort to such endeavours, 

which in turn have an impact on public 

perception of a company. For Noble, our 

motivation to be a caring company mns 

deeper and is driven by our core values 

- maintaining integrity and high ethical 

standards, commmuty collaboration 

and respect. Dtuing 2010 we were quick 

to respond when communities faced 

adversity, and our people dedicated great 

personal effort and passion to helping 

those in need. 

Following the earthquake 

in Haiti in January, Noble 

pledged its support to 

World Concern's relief 

efforts ~ specifically to 

building new homes. 

During the initial response, 

World Concern provided 

emergency supplies 

to more than 100,000 

earthquake victims. 

In response to 

October's devastating 

fioods in West Papua, 

Indonesia, Noble provided 

rapid assistance to 

victims, partnering vrith 

local agencies to provide 

.noble 
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essentials such as water and clothing. 

Noble staff also helped coordinate 

wdth the army to distribute emergency 

supplies, and the Group was one of the 

first corporations to respond. Several 

cofleagues visited affected sites to 

oversee the provision of aid. 

Noble was the first organisation 

to provide seed money for 1,000 

Enterprises for Chfldren~in-Need, a 

project carried out by the Singapore 

Children's Society with the goal of 

rallying 1,000 or more businesses to 

support the charity. Also in Singapore, 

Noble staff spent valuable time with 

around 60 elderly residents at Bright 

Hill Evergreen Home, a non-profit 

nursing home. 

In Hong Kong, Noble became a 

Diamond Member of WWF-Hong Kong's 

Corporate Membership Programme, not 

only supporting conservation efforts, 

but also helping members to move their 

business toward low carbon operations. 

Noble Americas employees helped 

almost 200 children in Stamford, 

Connecticut go back to school ftilly 

equipped. Twent>'-two Noble staff 

members hosted tables, distributed 

items, helped organise children and 

assisted with translating. Apart from 

contributing their time. Noble and 

staffers also donated US$13,500. 

In Brazfl, Noble staff held their first 

Winter Clothes Campaign, coflecting 

clothing, blankets and supplies to donate 

to local charities. Earlier in the year, staff 

also took part in the Recycle Cooldng Oil 

Project, partnering with an organisation 

that resells used oil to manufacturers of 

biodiesel, ground glass and soaps. 

For the second year. Noble Brazfl's 

UNP Sugar/Ethanol Mill hosted an 

event to honour Environment Day, 

dedicating it to the chfldren of the area. 

Entitled 'Greener Future', the project 

increases awareness and interest in 

the environment among local children. 

The two-phase project included 

an educational i^resentation about 

preseivation and a seed-planting activity 

held on Ai'bour Day. 

Noble demonstrated its commitment 

to higher education by partnering 



with the W.F. Albright Institute of 

Ai'chaeological Research (AIAR) to 

provide a research fellowship for 

the AIAR's international fellowship 

programme. Founded in 1900, the AIAR 

is the oldest research centre for ancient 

Near Eastern studies in the Middle 

East. The Noble Group Fellowships 

for Chinese Students and Scholars 

commenced in March 2010, open 

to Chinese citizens who are doctoral 

students and post-doctoral candidates. 

Noble Ai'gentina has been highly 

active in suppoiting education in the 

region. Working with several rural schools 

and kindergartens. Noble has provided 

food, computers, educational resources, 

gardening tools and security systems. 

Noble employees also trained teachers and 

students on health and safety measures, 

bringing benefits to hundreds of young 

underprivileged students. 

Noble Ai'gentina took part in a 

recycling programme to support the 

Fundacion Hospital Garrahan, a 

speciaHsed chfldren's hospital. Using 

funds from donated recycled goods, the 

foundation can purchase new medical 

equipment and supplies, train staff and 

provide social aid. 

Noble showed its support for the San 

Roque Foster Home, an instimtion that 

hosts 50 people of different ages with 

physical or mental disabilities. Its goal 

is to accomplish social reintegi'ation 

through rehabflitation. Noble made a lai'ge 

donation of day-to-day resources, installed 

five new fire extinguishers, supported 

the home's case with the San Lorenzo 

Chamber of Commerce, and provided 

contacts with other companies to help. 

Also in Argentina, Noble sponsored "La 

Chocleada", a scheme wherein smdents 

harvest coi'u to donate to people in need 

(as selected by the students). Proceeds 

went towards buying food in Pergamino 

y Chahar Ladeado, building tire city's first 

computer lab at a school in Mollinedo, 

Salta and funding for the construction 

of the Centre for the Prevention of 

Malnutrition in Venado Tiierto. 

Noble employees in Ai'gentina also 

provided much-needed assistance to 

a honey-processing factoiy in Lima, 

which is part of a technical college 

that helps young people enter the 

industry. The honey factoiy seives as 

an important career stepping-stone. 

A donation from Noble Argentina 

financed the new roof, allowing the 

factory to continue operations. ('9 

In the US, 21 Noble employees 

took part in Hope in Motion, an 

annual 5km event that combines 

walking, running and cycling in 

downtown Stamford in support of 

the Stamford Hospital's Bennett 

Cancer Centre. Noble employees in 

Singapore once again participated 

in the city's popular Bull Charge 

Fun Run. Noble's individual and 

corporate participation helped the 

event raise over S$i million, which 

goes to ten local charities. In Hong 

Kong, a ten-person Noble team 

took on the Matilda Sedan Chair 

Race for local charities, while over 

30 Noble runners took part in an 

annual charity race in Sao Paulo, 

Brazil. Showing that individual 

efforts also make a difference. 

Noble Europe's Tina Busby and 

biking partner Kay McGill cycled 

across 13 bridges in Britain, raising 

money for The Stroke Society. 
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Dr. K e n n e t h SUiart Cour t i s 

I n d e p e n d e n t Non-Execut ive Di rec to r 

Kenneth is a leading investment banker 

and analyst of Asian economies who has 

lived and worked in Asia for more than two 

decades. He is Founding Chairman of Next 

Capital Partners and an Independent Non-

Executive Director of Capitaland Limited, a 

Singapore listed company. 

R o b e r t Tze L e u n g C h a n 

I n d e p e n d e n t Non-Execut ive Di rec tor 

Robert is currently Chief Executive Officer 

of United Overseas Bank, Hong Kong. 

He holds a Bachelor of Science (Econ) 

Hons fi'om Uie University of London and 

a Master of Business Administration from 

the University of Liverpool, UK. 

R ica rdo L e i m a n 

Cliief Executive Officer 

Ricardo started his career with Credit 

Lyonnais Bank in Brazil followed by 

management positions with Louis Dreyfus 

in Sao Paulo and London, Eximcoop in the 

Netherlands and Trader Classified Media 

in London and Paris. He served as Noble's 

Chief Operating Officer before becoming 

Chief Executive Officer in January 2010. 

^ Mil ton M. Au 

Non-Execut ive Di rec to r 

Milton was Executive Director and Chief 

Financial Officer of Noble until December 

2003. He was also Managing Director of 

Noble Grain from April 2001 to Decembei 

2002. Before joining the Group, he 

worked for a number of listed companies 

including Hang Seng Bank Limited. 

David G o r d o n Eldon 
Sen io r I n d e p e n d e n t Non-Execut ive 

After 37 veni-sw 

Director of II SBC Holdings in 2005. He isciin-eiitl 

Senior Adviser to PricewateilionseCooix'i^, and is 

based in Hons Koiu 

Richard Samue l lUnian 

Founder and Chair inan 

Richai-d has more than r,() wnv^ oi 

or 01 incir Asi 
g l\vo years in New 

X'loi'. Richard tbiinded 
Noble CJronp in 1986. 



Our success strengthens our 
relationships and creates new profit 
opportunities. It's simple- if we help 

our clients grow, so will we 
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E d w a r d W a l t e r Rub in 

I n d e p e n d e n t Non-Execut ive Di rec tor 

Until 1989, Edward was Managing Partner 

of Phillips & Vineberg, Canadian Lawyers, 

Hong Kong Office (now Davies, Ward, 

Phillips & Vineberg). Since then, he has 

been Chairman and Managing Director 

of a private investment company. He is a • 

member of the Rolls-Royce Group South 

East Asia Advisoiy Board and a member 

of the board of the Alliance Fran^aise de 

Hong Kong. 

I a in F e r g u s o n Bruce 

I n d e p e n d e n t Non-Execut ive Di rec tor 

Iain joined KPMG in Hong Kong in 

1964 and was elected to its partnership 

in 1971. He was the Senior Partner of 

KPMG from 1991 until his retirement in 

1996 and served as Chairman of KPMG 

Asia Pacific from 1993 to 1997. Iain is 

a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants. 

Alan H o w a r d Smit l i 

I n d e p e n d e n t Non-Execut ive Di rec tor 

Alan was the Vice-Chairman - Pacific 

Region of Credit Suisse First Boston, 

Hong Kong (CSFB) from 1997 until he 

retired in 2001. Before joining CSFB, he 

was tlie Chairman from 1994 to 1996 and 

Managing Director from 1983 to 1994 

of the Jardine Fleming Group, which he 

joined in 1972. 

^ H a r i n d a r p a l Shigh Banga 

V i c e - c h a i r m a n E m e r i t u s 

Hariy is a Master Manner with extensive 

experience in the maritime and logistics 

industiy. Since 1979, he has worked in 

various levels of the industiy around the 

world, arri\ing in Hong Kong in 1984. 

Hany is an associate member of the 

Institute of Chartered Shipbrokers. 

A m b a s s a d o r B u r t o n I x v m 

I n d e p e n d e n t Non-Exeeut ive Di rec tor 

Ambassador Le\in lias moie than 38 years 

of experience in the diplomatic service 

for the US. He is a member of the Board 

of the Mansfield Foundation as well as au 

ad\isor to Sit Investment Associates and 

also Chairman Emeritus of the Hoi)kins-

Naniine Centre. 

Forfitll biographical delaih. .see pages 84 to 85 
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Rober t van d e r Zalin 

Group Chief fiiwiickd Officer 

Starting his career at Unilever, Robert managed finance for the company's operations in Europe and Asia. He then 

joined Shell, managing finance and M&A for the refineries and supply/distribution, and later its Gas and Power Trading 

business. Robert contributes 24 years' experience in the agriculture, gas & power and metals sectors, and has been 

based in nine different countries throughout his career. He holds a Chemistiy degree from Oxford Universit>', UK. Prior 

to joining Noble, Robert was CFG of Global Aluminium at BHP Billiton. He joined Noble in Januaiy 2011. 

Wi l l i am Randa l l 

Head of!\nergy Coal tV' Carbon Complex 

William's career started with Noble Group, establishing coal operations, mining and supply chain management 

businesses and sei'ving as Director of Noble Energy Inc before being appointed Global Head of Coal & Coke in 2006. He 

holds a Bachelor degree in Business from the Australian Catholic University', majoring in international marketing and 

finance. He joined Noble in Februaiy 1997. 

Wi ld i ' i kde Blank 

Group 'Vreusurcr 

Wildrik began his career in Financial Management with Shell Jakarta, followed by syndication, commodity finance 

and senior management roles at MeesPierson/Fortis Bank in the Netherlands, Sydney, Shanghai and Hong Kong. At 

Noble, Wildrik is responsible for all treasuiy and debt capital markets related activities, including funding and liabilit)' 

management, trade finance, cash & liquidity management and financial risk management. He holds a Master's degree 

from the Rotterdam School of Management at the Erasmus University Rotterdam. He joined Noble in August 2001. 

Louis Tang 

Group Finance Director - Couirollim] 

Louis was Chief Financial Officer of SCMP Group Limited from 1993 and previously held various senior accounting 

positions in the Keriy Group, starting in 1988. He contributes over 30 years' experience in accounting, audit, taxation 

and financial management. He holds an MBA from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of the 

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He joined 

Noble in August 2001. 

Nicholas B r e w e r 

Group Chief Operating Ofjicer 

Nicholas started his career at Shell in international strategy and business development, later joining BACTEC 

International working on coiporate risk assessment. This was followed by two years ^ '̂ith Enron, before joining Louis 

Dre}'fus Commodities as global market and operational risk manager. He holds an MBA from the London Business 

School, a Master's degree in International Business and Economics from Reading University, UK, and a Bachelor's 

degree in Economics and Politics from Bristol University, UK. Nicholas joined Noble in April 2007 as Group Risk 

Manager, becoming Chief Operating Officer in 2010. 

For afidl list of Senior Management visit www.thisisnoble.corn 

http://www.thisisnoble.corn


Lelia K o n y n 

Gi'oup Iliunan Rer.ources Direcios 

Leha contributes over 20 years of international business experience. She started her career as a management trainee at 

Eisenberg Group, and has worked in the Middle East, Eastern Europe and China. Her strong belief in tlie strategic value of 

human resources led her to a 15-year cai'eer in HR leadership roles with Menill Lynch, Pacific NetMarkets, Linl<s and Noble 

Group, adding Latin and Noith America to her global experience. Lelia speal<s sb; languages and holds degrees in International 

Relations and East Asian Studies fi'om the Hebrew University in Jeiiisalem, Israel. She joined Noble in October 2004. 

Jef f rey A l a m 

Group General Counsel 

Jeffrey seived as General Counsel to AIG's Asia investment businesses before becoming Executive Director in tlie 

law division of Morgan Stanley, responsible for all merchant banking, fund management and real estate businesses 

in Asia. Jeffrey holds an LLB (Hons) degree from the University of Manchester, UK and is qualified to practise law 

in Hong Kong and England. Rejoined Noble in August 2005. 

B h a r a t S u n d a v a d r a 

Assistant General Counsel 

Bharat qualified as a solicitor with Linklaters in London, where he practised corporate and commercial law. He 

followed this by taking the role of Legal Counsel for the agrochemicals division of AstraZencca Pic. He moved 

to Hong Kong in October 2000 with Stephenson Harwood & Lo, where he continued to practise corporate law 

and commercial law. Bharat holds a PhD in Chemistiy from the University of Cambridge, a Law degree from 

Nottingham Law School and is admitted to practise law in England. He joined Noble in April 2002. 

T i m E y r e 

Legal Counsel 

Tim started his career v\ith Richards Butler in London. Upon qualifying as a solicitor, he transferred to their Hong 

Kong office where he subsequently became a partner. Tim is admitted as a solicitor in both England and Hong Kong, 

and holds an LLB (Hons) degree from University College London, UK. He joined Noble in October 2005. 

S t e p h e n B r o w n 

Director. Invesior- Relations 

Stephen began his career with Cazenove & Co. in London. He brings nearly three decades of experience in the 

Asian equity markets, having advised and acted on behalf of global institutional investment clients at senior levels. 

Stephen is a Director of the Civic Exchange, a Hong Kong-based not-for-profit public policy think tank, a member 

of the Securities and Futures Commission's Dual Filing Advisoiy Group and a former member of the Main Board 

Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He joined Noble in August 2007. 
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B o a r d of Di rec tors 

Executive Director 

Ricardo Leiman - Chief Exeeuliuc Officer 

Non-Executive Directors 

Richard Samuel Elman - Non-Kxecn(ive Chcurnmn 

Harindarpal Singh Banga - Vice-Chairnum Emeiilns 

Milton M.Au 

Iain Ferguson Bruce 

Robert Tze Leung Chan 

Dr, Kenneth Stuart Courtis 

David Gordon Eldon 

Ambassador Burton Levin 

Edward Walter Rubin 

Alan Howard Smith 

Execut ives 

Nicholas Brewer - Group Chief Opeixiting Officer 

Robert van der Zalm - Ciroup Chief Innancial Officer 

Louis Tang - Grou]) Finance Dirceior - Controlling 

Wildrik de Blank - Group Freasurer 

Jeffrey Alam — Group Genercd Counsel 

Bharat Sundavadra - Assistant General Counsel 

Lelia Konyn - Group lluwan Resources Director 

Stephen Brown - Direefor. Investor Relalions 

Tim Eyre - Legal Counsel 

Audi t Commi t t ee 

Iain Ferguson Bruce - Chairman 

Milton M. Au - Vice-(^hairinun 

Edward Walter Rubin 

Robert Tze Leimg Chan 

Nomina t i ng Commi t t ee 

Ambassador Burton Levin - Chairnmn 

Richard Samuel Elman 

Harindarpal Singh Banga 

Iain Ferguson Bruce 

Alan Howard Smith 

Dr. Kenneth Stuart Courtis 

R e m u n e r a t i o n a n d Opt ions Commi t t ee 

Edward Walter Rubin - Chainna}i 

Richard Samuel Elman 

Ricardo Leiman - (cx-oflicio) 

Robert Tze Leung Chan 

Social Responsibi l i ty Commi t t ee 

Ambassador Burton Levin - Chairman 

Robert Tze Leung Chan 

Iain Ferguson Bruce 

l^cardo Leiman 

F inance a n d Opera t ions Commi t t ee 

Richard Samuel Elman - Chairman 

Harindarpal Singh Banga - \'ice-Ch(unn(ni 

Milton M.Au 

Ricardo Leiman 

G o v e r n m e n t Rela t ions Commi t t ee 

Harindarpal Singh Banga - Chairman 

Ambassador Burton Levin - Vice-ClKurnutn 

Dr. Kenneth Stuart Courtis 

Ricardo Leiman 

I n v e s t m e n t a n d Capi tal M a r k e t s C o m m i t t e e 

Richard Samuel Elman - Clunrman 

Alan Howard Smith 

Harindaipal Singh Banga 

Ricardo Leiman 

Dr. Kenneth Stuart Courtis 

Milton M. Au 

Corpo ra t e Governance Commi t t ee 

Alan Howard Smith - Chairman 

Harindarpal Singh Banga - Vice-Chairmai} 

Edward Walter Rubin 

Iain Ferguson Bruce 



poraie governance 
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Corpo ra t e In fo rma t ion 

H e a d Office 

i8th Floor, MassMutual Tower 

38 Gloucester Road 

Hong Kong 

C o m p a n y Secretai 'y 

LisaYimRC.I.S. 

Regis te red Office 

Clarendon House, Church Street 

Hamilton, HM 11 

Bermuda 

Audi to r s 

Ernst & Young 

Audit Partncr-In-Chargc 

Peter Markey (since :^oog) 

S h a r e Regis t ra r 

HSBC Securities Services (Bermuda) Limited 

6 Front Street, Hamilton, MM 11 

Bermuda 

S h a r e Trjinsfcr Agent 

B.A.C.S. Private Limited 

63 Cantonment Road 

Singapore 089758 

Legal Advisors to t h e C o m p a n y 

Allen &Gledhill 

Linklaters 

Pr inc ipa l B a n k e r s 

ABN Amro Bank 

Agricultiu'al Bank of China 

Australia & New Zealand Banking Group 

Axis Bank 

Banco Bradesco 

Banco do Brasil 

Banco Itau BBA 

Banco Santander 

Bank of America Merrill Lynch 

Bank of China 

Bank of Communications 

Bank of Nova Scotia 

Banque Cantonale de Geneve 

BNDES (Banco Nacional de Desenvohimento 

Economico e Social) 

BNP Paribas 

China Development Bank 

China Minsheng Bank 

CITIC Bank International 

Citigroup 

Commerzbank 

Credit Agricole Coiporate and 

Investment Bank 

DBS Bank 

Goldman Sachs 

ICICI Bank 

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China 

ING Bank 

Intesa Sanpaolo 

JP Morgan 

KBC Bank 

Lloyds Banking Group 

Mizuho Coiporate Bank 

Natixis 

Rabobank International 

Royal Bank of Canada 

Societe Generale 

Standard Chartered Bank 

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 

The Bank of Tokyo - Mitsubishi UFJ 

The Hong Kong and Shanghai 

Banking Corporation 

The Royal Bank of Scotland 

United Overseas Bank 

Votorantim Bank 

Westpac Banldng Coiporation 



The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group 
for the year ended 31 December 2010. 

Pr inc ipa l activit ies 

The principal activit}' of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the Company's subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates 

comprise managing fiie global supply chain of agricultural, industrial and energy products; ship ownership, chaitering and the provision of technical ship 

management services; trade finance; coal mining, soybean and sugar cane crushing activities and ethanol production. 

The Group links producers and consumers through skillful supply chain management, integrating the sourcing, marketing, processing and transportation of 

industrial, agricultural and energy products worldwide. There were no changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year. 

Resul t s a n d d iv idends 

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the financial 

statements on pages 91 to 154. 

Details of the proposed final dividend, which is not incorporated in the financial statements, are set out in note 44 to the financial statements. 

Prox^erty, p l a n t a n d e q u i p m e n t 

Details of movements in the propertj', plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 12 to the financial statements. 

Subs id ia r ies 

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in notes 16 and 46 to the financial statements. 

Jo in t ly con t ro l l ed ent i t ies 

Particulars of the Company's major jointly controlled entities are set out in note 17 to the financial statements. 

Associa tes 

Particulars of the Group's principal associates are set out in note 18 to the financial statements. 

B a n k deb t s 

Details of the bank debts of the Group are set out in note 28 to the financial statements. 

S h a r e capi ta l 

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year are set out in note 33 to the financial statements. 

Mate r i a l con t rac t s involving t h e in t e re s t s of t h e Chief Execut ive Officer, d i r ec to r s a n d cont ro l l ing s h a r e h o l d e r s 

None of the Chief Executive Officer, directors or controlhng shareholders had a material interest in any contract of significance to the business of the Group 

or any loan agreement to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a paiiy at any time during the year. 

B o a r d of d i r ec to r s * 

Tlie directors of the Company during the year were as follows: 

Execut ive d i rec to r : 

Ricardo Leiman, Chief Executive Officer ''̂  

Non-execut ive d i r ec to r s : 

Richard Samuel Elman, Non-Exeeutive Chairman <̂ ' Dr. Kenneth Stuart Courtis 

Harindaipal Singh Banga, Vice Chairman Emeritus f̂ ' David Gordon Eldon, Senior Independent Non-Executive Director •̂'̂  

Milton M. Au Ambassador Burton Levin 

Iain Ferguson Bruce Edward Walter Rubin 

Robert Tze Leung Chan Alan Howard Smith 

(1) Assumed thepostof Chief Executive Officer, effective l January sow. 
(2) Appointed as Executive Chairman, effective i January 2010; and became Chairman Emeritus, effective 1 September sow, and assumed the role of 

Non-Executive Chairman, effective 2 November 2010. 
(3) Re-designated as Vice Chairman Emeritus, effective l September 2010. 
(4) Re-designated to Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, effective l January 2010. 

* Mr. Tobias Josef Brown was appointed as Non-Executive Director, effective 1 January 2010; became Executive Chairman, effective 1 September 2010 
and 7'esigned as Director ajid Executive Chairman, effective 2 November 2010. 



•ecTors 7'7: 

Mr. Peter James O'Doimell was appointed as Executive Director and Senior Executive Vice President, effective i September 2010 and resigned the offices, 

effective 2 November 2010. 

Mr. Robert Tze Leung Chan, Dr. Kenneth Stuart Courtis, Mr. Ricardo Leiman and Mr. Edward Walter Rubin being the directors longest in office since 

their previous appointment, will retire by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-law 86 which requires one-third of the directors to retire from 

office by rotation at each annual general meeting. Mr. Robert Tze Leung Chan, Mr. Ricardo Leiman and Mr. Edwai'd Walter Rubin, being eligible, ™11 offer 

tliemselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Dr. Kenneth Stuart Courtis will not offer himself for re-election. 

Di rec tors ' i n t e res t s in secur i t ies 

As at 21 Januai-j' 2011, the directors who held office as at 31 December 2010 had the following interests in the securities of the Company: 

Number of shares of HK$o.25 each held: 

Name of director Notes 3S 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 
6 

Direct 

interest 

-
-
-

19,202,561 

927,272 

2,587,400 

Deemed 

interest 

1,431,493,352 

372.450,705 

2,200,995 

-
-
-

Richard Samuel Elman 

Harindarpal Singh Banga 

Ricardo Leiman 

Milton M. Au 

Iain Ferguson Bruce 

Dr. Kenneth Stuart Courtis 

Notes: 
1. Mr. Richard Samuel Elman is deemed to have an interest in an aggregate of 1,431,493,352 shares. These relate to shares which are held by Noble 

Holdings Limited ("NHL") or which NHL is deemed to have an interest in. NHL's aggregate interest in 1,431,493,352 shares comprises (a) 
1,414,545,125 shares held by NHL; and (b) 16,948,227 shares held by NHL's wholly-owned subsidiary, Temple Trading Asia Limited ("TPAL"). 
NHL is a company registered in Bermuda and TTAL is a company incorporated in Hong Kong. NHL is benetieially wholly-owned by a discretionaiy 
trust, the beneficiaries of which include the ehildi-en of Mr. Elman but not Mr. Elman himself. Fleet Overseas (New Zealand) Limited, a company 
incorporated in New Zealand, is the trustee of the discretionary trust. 

2. These shares are registered in the name of a nominee. The beneficial owner of these shares is Lexdale International Limited, a company incoiporated 
in the British Virgin Islands, the entire issued share capital of which is benefieially owned by Mr. Harindarpal Singh Banga and his spouse. During 
the year, no share option was exercised by Mr. Banga. As at 31 December 2010, there were no more outstanding share options granted to Mr. Banga. 

3. Mr. Ricardo Leiman has no direct shareholding interests in the Company. However, he is deemed to have an interest in 2,200,995 shares which his 
children have a deemed interest in. These 2,200,995 shares have been assigned to Rothschild Trust Guernsey Limited (the "Rothschild Trust") as 
Ti'ustee for Mr. Ixiiman's family trust, the beneficiaries of which include the children of Mr. Leiman, and do not include Mr. Leiman. During the year, 
no share option was exercised by Mr. Leiman or the Rothschild Trust and options granted have also been assigned to the Rothschild Trust. As at 
31 December 2010, the number ofoutstanding share options assigned to the Rothschild Tmst was 81,409,090 (as adjusted as a result of the bonus 
issue of 6 bonus shares for eveiy 11 shares on 21 May 2010). 

4. These shares are registered in the name of nominees. During the year, no share option was exercised by Mr. Milton M. Au. As at 31 December 2010, 
the number of outstanding share options granted to Mr. Au was 386,361 (as adjusted as a result of the bonus issue of 6 bonus shares for every 11 
shares on 21 May 2010). 

5. These shares are registered in the name of nominees. During the year, no share option was exercised by Mr. Iain Ferguson Bruce. As at 
31 December 2010, the number ofoutstanding share options granted to Mr. Bruce was 386,361 (as adjusted as a result of the bonus issue of 
6 bonus shares for eveiy 11 shares on 21 May 2010). 

6. These shares are registered in the name of nominees. During the year, no share option was exercised by Dr. Kenneth Stuart Couitis. As at 
31 December 2010, the number ofoutstanding share options granted to Dr. Courtis was 386,361 (as adjusted as a result of the bonus issue of 
6 bonus shares for eveiy 11 shares on 21 May 2010). 

7. As at 31 December 2010, the number ofoutstanding share options granted to (i) Mr. David Gordon Eldon was 772,725 (as adjusted as a result 
of the bonus issue of 6 bonus shares for eveiy 11 shares on 21 May 2010) and (ii) Mr. Robert Tze Leung Chan, Ambassador Burton Levin, 
Mr. Edward Walter Rubin and Mr. Alan Howard Smith was each 386,361 (as adjusted as a result of the bonus issue of 6 bonus shares for every 
11 shares on 21 May 2010). During the year, no share options were exercised by any of them. 

8. Details of share awards granted under Noble Group Peiformance Share Plan are set out in note 35 to the financial statements. 
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Corpo ra t e gove rnance 

The directors are committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance \vithin the Group. Good corporate governance estabhshes and 

maintains a legal and ethical environment in the Group which strives to preseive tiie interests of all shareholders. The Company has, save as disclosed below 

in relation to areas of non-compliance, adhered to the principles and guidelines set out in the Code of Corporate Governance 2005 (the "Code") and, where 

applicable, has established various self-regulatoiy and monitoring mechanisms to ensure that effective corporate governance is practiced. The Company 

believes that it is in compliance in all material respects with the Code. The following describes the Company's coiporate governance processes and activities 

as recommended by the Code. 

1, B o a r d of d i r ec to r s 

Key information regarding the directors is provided in the "Directors' biographies" section below. Details of the number of Board meetings held during 

the year ended 31 December 2010 and the attendance of each board member at those meetings are set out below. 

The board comprises 11 directors at the date of this report, 10 of whom are non-executive and whose objective judgment on coiporate affairs and 

collective experience is valuable to the Group. Tlie board is of the view that its current size is appropriate, taking into account the nature and scope 

of operations of the Group. The directors as a group provide core competencies such as accounting or finance, business or management experience, 

industiy knowledge, strategic planning experience and customer-based experience or knowledge. 

The non-executive directors' role is to, amongst others, constructively challenge and help develop proposals on strategy, review fhe performance of 

management in meeting agreed goals and objectives and monitor the repoiting of performance. 

The following are executive and non-executive directors of the Company at the date of this report. 

Executive d i rec tor : 
Ricardo I-eiman, Chief Executive Officer 

Non-exeeut ivc d i r ec to r s : 
Richard Samuel Elman, Non-Executive Chairman 
Harindarpal Singh Banga, Vice Chairman Emeritus 
Milton M.Au 
Iain Ferguson Bruce 
Robert Tze Leung Cliau 
Dr. Kenneth Stuart Courtis 
David Gordon Eldon, Senior Independent Non-Executive Director 
Ambassador Burton I^vin 
Edward Walter Rubin 
Alan Ho\vard Smith 

Independent directors make up at least one-third of the board. 

In order to ensure that the board is able to fulfill its responsibilities, management provides the board with a management report containing complete, 

adequate and timely information prior to the board meetings as well as a report of the Group's activities. Information pro\ided includes background or 

explanatoiy information relating to matters to be brought before the board, copies of disclosure documents, budgets, forecasts and monthly internal 

financial statements. In respect of budgets, any material variance between the projections and actual results are disclosed and explained. 

All directors nevertheless have unrestricted access to the Group's records and information through requests for further explanations, briefings 

and informal discussions on the Group's operations or business issues fi'om management. The board has separate and independent access to the 

Company's senior management. The directors are updated on the regulations of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the "SGX-ST") 

and other statntoiy requirements. 

The directors have separate and independent access to the company secretaiy. The company secretaiy ensures that all board procedures are followed. 

The company secretaiy, together with key management staff, is responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with applicable requirements, 

niles and regulations. Under the direction of the Chairinan, the company seeretaiy's responsibilities include ensuring good information flows within 

the board and its connnittees and between senior management and non-executive directors, as well as facilitating orientation and assisting with 

professional development as required. The company secretary attends all board meetings. The appointment and removal of the companj' secretary is a 

matter for the board as a whole. The Company also has procedures in place for directors to take independent professional advice. 

file:///vithin


re'Dort of the directors 73 

The Company has an orientation programme in place for newly appointed directors to ensure that they are famiUar with the Group structure, and the 

Coin])any's businesses and operations. 

The Company also has a training budget for its directors to attend courses and seminars to update them on new laws, regulations and changing 

commercial risks. 

Upon the appointment of each new director, the Company provides a formal letter to the director, setting out the director's duties and obligations. 

The board meets regularly to oversee the business affairs of the Group, approves the financial objectives and business strategies, and monitors 

standards of performance both directly and through its specialised committees. Delegation by the board to boai'd committees on decisions on certain 

board matters is set out in later sections of this report. 

The Company scheduled thirteen Board meetings during the year ended 31 December 2010. To facilitate the board's decision-making process, the 

Company's bye-laws pro\ide for directors to participate in board meetings by telephone conference and similar communications equipment, and for 

board resolutions to be passed in wTiting, including by electronic means. The directors' attendances at Board meetings. Audit Committee meetings. 

Remuneration and Options Committee meetings and Nominating Committee meetings, including attendance by telephone conference and power of 

attorney during the year ended 31 December 2010 were as follows: 

Number of meetings 

Ricardo Leiman 

Richard Samuel Elman 

Harindarpal Singh Banga 

Milton M. Au 

Tobias Josef Brown 

Iain Ferguson Bruce 

Robert Tze Ix^ung Chan 

Dr. Kenneth Stuart Courtis 

David Gordon Eldon 

Ambassador Burton Levin 

Peter James O'Donnell 

Edward Walter Rubin 

Alan Howard Smith 

Board 

13 

12 

13 

13 

10 

i i @ 

12 

11 

11 

11 

8 

3^ 

13 

12 

Audit 
committee 

6 

* 

* 

* 

6 

* 

5 

6 

* 

K 

« 

• » 

6 

* 

Remuneration and 
options committee 

2 

-^ 

2 

* 

-

* 

-K-

2 

* 

* 

* 

* 

2 

1 

Nominating 
committee 

1 

^ 

1 

-" 

•K 

-̂

1 

* 

1 

=X-

1 

* 

» 

1 

•t Nota])plicablc 
C"? Apî oiiUcd since 1 Januaiy 2010 and resigned since 2 November 2010 
^ Appointed since i September 2010 and resigned since 2 November 2010 
^ Apirointcd since g November 2010 

The Company's Chairinan and Chief Executive Officer are separate persons, and they are not related to each other. The Chairman is non-executive and 

his responsibilities include but not limited to the following: 

(i) to lead the board to ensure its effectiveness on all aspects of its role and set out its agenda; 

(ii) to ensure that the directors receive accurate, timely and clear information; 

(iii) to ensure effective cominunication with shareholders; 

(iv) to encourage constructive relations between the board and management; 

(v) to facilitate the effective contribution of non-executive directors in particular; 

(vi) to encourage constructi\'e relations between executive directors and non-executive directors; and 

(\ii) to promote high standards of corporate governance. 
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Audi t C o m m i t t e e 

The Audit Committee was established in 1997 by the board of directors and at die date of this report comprises four board members, all of whom are 

non-executive, and a majority of ^vhom including the Chairman, are independent. At least two members of the Audit Committee have accounting or 

related financial management expertise or experience, as the board interprets such qualification on its business judgement. The Committee held six 

meetings during the year ended 31 December 2010 mainly to review the quarterly and annual financial statements before their announcements. The 

members of the Audit Committee at the date of this report are as follows: 

Mr. Iain Ferguson Bruce (Chairman) 

Mr. Milton M. Au (Vice Chairman) 

Mr. Edward Walter Rubin 

Mr. Robert Tze Ix^ung Chan 

The Audit Committee, which has wiitten terms of reference, peifonns the following delegated functions: 

(i) reviews the annual audit plan of the Company's external auditors; 

(ii) reviews the results of the external auditors' examination and its cost effectiveness, and their evaluation of the Group's internal control system; 

(iii) nominates external auditors of the Company for re-appointment; 

(iv) reviews the Com]3an}''s quarterly and annual year results announcements, the financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial 

statements of the Group before the submission to the board of directors for approval of release of the results announcement to the SGX-ST; 

(v) reviews the eo-operation given by the Company's officers to the external auditors; and 

(\i) conducts any other reviews as required by the Code. 

The Audit Committee also reviews arrangements by which staff of the Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties in 

matters of financial reporting or other matters. The Audit Committee's objective in this regard is to ensure that arrangements are in place for the 

independent investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow up actions. 

The duties of the Audit Committee include: 

(i) reviewing the significant financial reporting issues and judgments so as to ensure the integrity of the financial statements of the Company and 

any formal announcements relating to the Company's financial performance; 

(ii) reviewing the adequacy of the Company's internal controls, as set out in Guidehne 12.1 of the Code; 

(iii) revie\ving the effectiveness of the Company's internal audit function; and 

(iv) making recommendations to the board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of tlie external auditors, and approving the 

remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors. 

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference, full access to and co-operation of management, full 

discretion to invite any director or executive officer to attend its meetings, and reasonable resources to enable it to discharge its functions properly. The 

Audit Committee meets with the external and internal auditors without the presence of management at least once a year. 

The Audit Committee, having reviewed all non-audit seivices provided by the external auditors to the Group, is satisfied that the nature and extent of 

such seivices would not affect the independence of the external auditors. The Audit Committee has recommended to the board the nomination of the 

auditors, Ernst & Young, for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
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3 . R e m u n e r a t i o n a n d Op t ions Commi t t ee 

The members of the Remuneration and Options Committee at the date of this report are namely Mr. Edward Walter Rubin (Chairman), 

Mr. Richard Samuel Elman, Mr. Ricardo Leiman (ex-officio) and Mr. Robert Tze Leung Chan. The majority of the Committee members, including 

the Chairman, are non-executive directors. 

The Committee reviews all matters concerning the remuneration of senior management, including the bonus schemes, to ensure that they are 

competitive and sut^cient to attract, retain and motivate personnel of the quality required to mn the Company successfully. The Committee also 

reviews all matters concerning the remuneration of non-executive directors to ensure that the remuneration is commensurate with the contribution 

and responsibilities of sucli directors. Details of the dii-ectors' remuneration are set out in note 6 to the financial statements. There are no employees 

who are related to a director or the Chief Executive Officer, and whose remuneration exceeded S$i50,ooo during the year ended 31 December 2010. 

The executive directors are paid a basic salaiy and a performance-related bonus. Non-executive directors are compensated based on the time spent and 

effort made by the non-executive directors, and their remuneration is recommended to shareholders for approval at the annual general meeting. 

The remuneration policy for key management executives takes into consideration the Company's performance and the responsibilities and 

performance of individual key management executives. 

In view of the sensitive nature of remuneration for key management executives, the board is of the opinion that such disclosure should not be made in 

the Annual Report. 

4 . N o m i n a t i n g C o m m i t t e e 

The Nominating Committee comprises at the date of this report six directors, namely Ambassador Burton Levin (Chairman), Mr. Richard Samuel 

Elman, Mr. Harindarpal Singh Banga, Mr. Iain Ferguson Bruce, Mr. Alan Howard Smith and Dr. Kenneth Stuart Courtis, a majority of whom, 

including the Chairman, are independent non-executive directors. 

The Nominating Committee, which has written terms of reference, is responsible for making recommendations to the board on all board appointments 

and re-appointments. In accordance with the requirements of the Code, the Committee is also responsible for: 

(i) conducting formal assessment of the effectiveness of the board as a whole and the contribution by each director to the effectiveness of the board; 

(ii) determining annually the independence of each director and the directors for retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting; and 

(iii) determining whether a director who has multiple board representations is able to and has been adequately carrying out his duties as a director of 

the Company. 

All directors are required to submit themselves for re-nomination and re-election at regular intervals pursuant to the provisions of the bye-laws. 

In drawing up objective performance criteria for evaluation and determination, the Nominating Committee considers a number of factors, including 

those set out in the Code. 

5. Co rpo ra t e G o v e r n a n c e C o m m i t t e e 

Tiie Corporate Governance Committee compiises at the date of this report four board members, namely Mr. Alan Howard Smith (Chairman), 

Mr. Harindaipal Singh Banga (Vice-Chairman), Mr. Edward Walter Rubin and Mr. Iain Ferguson Bruce. The majori^ of the Committee, including 

the Chairman, are non-executive directors. The Committee's primary responsibility is to identify, monitor and implement good corporate governance. 
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Disclosure on Remuneration 

Directors' Remuneration 

Remuneration band & 

nameof directors 

Directors' Fees 

% 
Base/Fixed salary 

% 

Restricted Shares 

% 
Variable or Bonus 

% 
Benefits in kind 

% 
Total 

% 

S $ i , 5 0 0 , o o o a n d above 

Ricardo Leiman 

Richard Samuel Elman 

Harindarpal Singh Banga 

-

-

6 

3 2 

65 

2 6 

-

-

68 

-

-

„ 

68 

35 

1 0 0 

1 0 0 

lOO 

Below S $ 2 5 0 , o o o 

Milton M.Au 

Tobias Josef Brown' 

lain Ferguson Bruce 

Robert Tze Leung Chan 

Dr. Kenneth Stuart Courtis 

David Gordon Eldon 

Ambassador Burton Ijivin 

Peter James O'Donnell -

Edward Walter Rubin 

Alan Howard Smith 

1 0 0 

too 

1 0 0 

1 0 0 

1 0 0 

1 0 0 

1 0 0 

* 

1 0 0 

1 0 0 

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1 0 0 

1 0 0 

1 0 0 

1 0 0 

too 

1 0 0 

1 0 0 

1 0 0 

1 0 0 

1 0 0 

* not applicable 
1 Mr. Tobias Josef Biowii was appointed as Director since i Januaiy 2010 and resigned since 2 November 2010. 
2 Mr. Peter James O'Donnell was appointed as Director since 1 September 2010 and resigned since 2 November 2010. 

Remuneration of top five key head office executives: 
Given tiie highly competitive industiy conditions and the sensitively and confidentiality of staff remuneration matters, the Company believes that the 
disclosure of remuneration of individual executives as recommended by the Code would be disadvantageous to the Group's interests. The Company has 
instead presented the number of top five key head office executives of the Group (who are not also directors of the Company) as follows: 

R e m u n e r a t i o n b a n d 

S$i,500,ooo and above 

S$i,250,poo to S$i,499,gg9 

Below S$ 1,249,999 

No. of Execut ives 

4 

1 

-

Internal controls 

The board believes that the system of internal controls maintained by the Company's management, which was in place throughout the financial 
year and up to the date of this report, provides reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material financial misstatements or loss, and includes 
the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper accounting records, the reliability of financial information, the compliance with appropriate 
legislation, regulation and best practices, and the identification and containment of business risk. The board notes that no system of internal controls 
could provide absolute assurance against the occurrence of material errors, poor judgment in decision-making, human errors, losses, fraud or 
other irregularities. 
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7. h i tc r i ia l con t ro l s (continued) 

The Audit Committee re\iews the adequacy of the Company's internal financial controls, operational and compliance controls, and risk management 

policies and systems established by management. The Audit Committee also ensures that a re\iew of the effectiveness of the Company's internal 

controls is conducted at least annually. Where such review is carried out by the external auditors, the Audit Committee is required to satisfy itself that 

the independence of the external auditors is not compromised by any other material relationship mth the Company. 

8. I n t e rna l aud i t 

The internal audit team reports findings and puts fonvard recommendations to management and to the Audit Committee. 

(i) The Company's internal auditors meet or exceed standards set by nationally or internationally recognised professional bodies including the 

Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing set by The Institute of Internal Auditors, 

(ii) The Audit Committee ensures that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company, 

(iii) The Audit Committee, at least annually, ensures the adequacy of the internal audit function. 

9. S h a r e h o l d e r c o m m u n i c a t i o n s 

The board is mindful of the obligation to provide timely and fair disclosure of material information in accordance with the Coiporate Disclosure Policy 

of the SGX-ST. When rele\'ant information on the Company is disseminated to the SGX-ST, such information is also available on the Company's 

website at mvw.thisisnoble.com. The Company adopted quarterly results reporting for the year ended 31 December 2010. 

The board welcomes the ^iews of shareholders on matters affecting the Company, whether at shareholders' meetings or on an ad hoc basis. The 

Company's main forum for dialogue with shareholders takes place at its annual general meeting, whereat members of the board (including the 

chairpeisons of the Audit, Remuneration and Options and Nominating Committees), senior management and the external auditoi's are in attendance 

to address relevant queries. The Company's bye-laws allow a shareholder to appoint one or two proxies to attend and vote at general meetings in 

his/her stead. 

10. Deal ings in secur i t ies 

The Company has devised and adopted its own internal compliance code to provide guidance to its officers with I'egard to dealings by the Company and 

its officers in its securities, taking into account the principles and best practices on dealings in securities as contained in Rule 1207(18) of the Listing 

Manual of the SGX-ST. Directors and staff are to refrain from deahng in the securities of the Company during the periods commencing one month 

before and up to the date of announcement of the Company's first, second, third quarter results and full-year results, or while in possession of material 

price sensitive non-public information. They are also encouraged not to deal on considerations of a short term nature. 

I t . In t e re s t ed P e r s o n T ransac t i ons 

The Company has established procedures to ensure that all transactions \\ith interested persons are reported in a timely manner to the Audit 

Committee and that the transactions are on an arm's length basis. 

There was no interested person transaction during the financial year under review. 

12. Code of Conduc t a n d whis t le-blowing policy 

The Grou]) has a code of conduct that applies to all employees of the Group and each of its subsidiaries' directors, officers and employees. The code sets 

out principles to guide employees in cariying out their duties and responsibihties to the highest standards of personal and corporate integrity when 

dealing with the Group, its customers, suppliers, competitors and the community. 

The Group is committed to a high standard of etliical conduct. The Group has adopted and implemented a whistle-blowing policy where employees 

may in confidence, raise concerns on possible coiporate improprieties in matters of unlawful activity, policy or practices, suspected fraud, cormption, 

dishonest practices or other matters. There are also arrangements in place for an independent investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow 

up action. 

http://mvw.thisisnoble.com
file:////ith
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Directors' biographies 

Executive d i r ec to r 

R i c a r d o L e i m a n is an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Leiman holds MBAs from the University of Rochester NY, 
U.S.A. and the University of Nyenrode, the Netherlands as well as an 'Economics degree from the University of Sao Paulo, Brazil. He started his career with 
Credit Lyonnais Bank in Brazil followed by management positions with Louis Dreyfus in Sao Paulo and London, Eximcoop in the Netherlands and Trader 
Classified Media in London and Paris, In 2002 he rejoined Louis Dreyfus as COO of North America, EMEA (Europe, Middle East, Africa), and Asia, later 
becoming COO of Soft Commodities. Mr. Leiman joined us in April 2006. He was first appointed Director on 1 April 2009 and was last re-elected at the 
Annual General Meeting on 27 April 2009. Mr. Leiman will be seeking re-election to the Board of Directors of the Company at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting. 

Non-execut ive d i r ec to r s 

R i c h a r d S a m u e l E l m a n is the founder and the Non-Executive Chairman of the Company. Mr. Elman first arrived in Asia during the mid-1960s 
from England and has more than 50 years of experience in the physical commodities trading industry. Prior to setting up the Group in 1986, he spent 
10 years with Phibro as Regional Director of their Asia operations, including two years in New York as a Board Director. He is responsible for strategic 
issues facing the Company and to ensure that it retains its focus on Shareholder value. Mr. Elman was first appointed Director of the Company on 
6 April 1994 and was last re-elected at the Annual General Meeting on 30 April 2010. 

H a r i n d a r p a l Singh Banga is the Vice Chairman Emeritus of the Company. A Master Mariner, Mr. Banga has extensive experience in the maritime 
and logistics industiy. Since 1979, he has worked in various levels of the industry all over the world, from London and Europe to Hong Kong, where 
he first arrived in 1984. Mr. Banga is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Shipbrokers. Pie is also a member of the Singapore Institute 
of Directors and a member of the Executive Committee of the Hong Kong Shipowners Association. Mr. Banga joined fhe Group in 1989 on the 
establishment of Noble Chartering Limited, He was first appointed Director of the Company on 6 April 1994. Mr. Banga was last re-elected at the 
Annual General Meeting on 30 April 2010. 

Mi l ton M. Au is a Non-Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Au was, until December 2003, an executive director and the Chief Financial Officer 
of the Company. He was also the Managing Directorof Noble Grain from April 2001 to December 2002. Mr. Au had worked for a number of listed 
companies including Hang Seng Bank Limited before he joined us in 1995. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Alberta 
in Canada and is a member of the Canadianlnstituteof Chartered Accountants. Mr. Au is also a member of tlie Boardof Directors of Hong Kong 
International Film Festival Society Limited, a non-profit making organisation. Mr. Au was first appointed Director of the Company on 1 December 
1995 and was last re-elected at the Annual General Meeting on 27 April 2009. 

I a in F e r g u s o n B m c e is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Bruce joined KPMG in Hong Kong in 1964 and was elected 
to its partnership in 1971. He was the Senior Partner of KPMG from 1991 until his retirement in 1996 and served as Chairman of KPMG Asia Pacific 
from 1993 to 1997. Since 1964, Mr. Bruce has been a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland, and is a fellow of the Hong 
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is a fellowof The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a member of The Hong Kong Securities 
Institute. Mr. Bruce serves as an Independent Non-Executive Director on the boards of several publicly listed companies in Hong Kong, viz. Goodbaby 
International Holdings Limited, Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited, Sands China Ltd., Tencent Holdings Limited, Vitasoy International Holdings 
Ltd. and Wing On Company International Limited. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of China Medical Technologies, Inc., a company 
whose shares are traded on Nasdaq, and Yingli Green Energy Holding Company Limited, a company whose shares are traded on the New York Stock 
Exchange. He is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited and is the Chairman of KCS Limited. Mr. Bruce was first 
appointed Director of the Company on 9 April 2002, and was last re-elected at the Annual General Meeting on 27 April 2009. 

Robe r t Tze Leung Chan is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company. He is an experienced banker with 38 years experience in both 
commercial and investment banking having worked in London, Malaysia, Singapore, and is currently the Chief Executive Officer of United Overseas 
Bank, Hong Kong. He is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Hutchison Ports Holdings Management Pte Limited. He is also a Senior Adviser 
to Long March Capital Ltd, a fund management company based in Beijing and Shanghai in partnership with leading Chinese institutions including 
the CITIC Group. He holds the Bachelor of Science (Econ) Hons and Master of Business Administration degrees, and is a Fellow of the Hong Kong 
Institute of Directors. Mr. Chan was first appointed Director of the Company on 16 August 1996 and was last re-elected at the Annual General Meeting 
on 30 April 2008. He will be seeking re-election to the Board of Directors of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

Dr . K e n n e t h S t u a r t Cour t is is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company. Dr. Courtis is a leading investment banker and analyst 
of Asianeconomieswhohashvedandworkedin Asia for more than two decades. Dr. Courtis is FoundingChairmanof Next Capital Partners and an 
independent non-executive director of Capitaland Limited, a Singapore listed company, as well as a member of the boards, advisory councils, and 
trustee of a number of international firms, universities, and research institutes in Asia, Europe and North America, including the Advisory Boards of 
Emerson Electric Company, CNOOC Limited, the Economic Strategy Institute in Washington and the International MBA Program at York University 
in Toronto. Dr. Courtis served as Managing Director and Vice Chairman of Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. from 199910 2006, and before that was 
with Deutsche Bank Group Asia for 13 years, holding the posts of Chief Economist, Strategist and Managing Director. Dr. Courtis was first appointed 
Director of the Company on 2 May 2007 arid was last re-elected at the Annual General Meeting on 30 April 2008. He will retire by rotation at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 
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Direc to r s ' b iog raph ie s (continued) 

David G o r d o n E ldon is the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Eldon retired as Chairman of the Hong Kong and 
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, and as a main Board Director of HSBC Holdings in 2005 after 37 years with the HSBC Group, all of which 
were spent in the Middle and Far East. He is currently Senior Adviser to PricewaterhouseCoopers, and is based in Hong Kong. He is a non-executive 
Chairman of the Dubai International Financial Centre Authority and Special Adviser to the Korea National Competitiveness Committee — Office of 
the President. He is a Director of Hong Kong listed companies Eagle Asset Management Ltd and Shui On Construction and Materials Limited, as well 
as a number of unlisted companies. He is Past Chairman of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, Founding Member and past Chairman of 
the Seoul International Business Advisory Council, an Adviser to Kuwait China Investment Company, and Southern Capital Group, in addition to a 
number of Government and community appointments in Hong Kong. Mr. Eldon is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Bankers. He was conferred 
Honorary Doctor of Business Administrationby the City University of Hong Kong in November 2003. He was named the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong 
Business Person of the Year for 2003 and in 2004 was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong SAR. In 2005 he was 
made a Commander of the British Empire for his contribution to banking, and awarded Honoraiy Citizenship of Seoul in recognition of his work for 
the city. He was awarded the Asian Banker Lifetime Achievement Award for 2005. Mr. Eldon is a Justice of the Peace. Mr. Eldon was appointed a 
Director of the Company on 1 Januaiy 2007 and was last re-elected at the Annual General Meeting on 30 April 2010. 

A m b a s s a d o r B u r t o n Levin is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company. He has more than 38 years* experience in the diplomatic 
service for the United States in Asia. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Brooklyn College, the United States and a Master of International Affairs 
degree from Columbia University, the United States. Ambassador Levin is a member of the Board of the Mansfield Foundation as well as an advisor to 
Sit Investment Associates and also Chairman emeritus of the Hopkins-Nanjing center. Ambassador Levin was first appointed Director of the Company 
on 16 August 1996 and was last re-elected at the Annual General Meeting on 27 April 2009. 

E d w a r d W a l t e r R ub in is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Rubin was, until December 1989, Managing Partner 
of Phillips & Vineberg, Canadian La^vyers, Hong Kong Office (now Davies, Ward, Phillips & Vineberg). Since Januaiy 1990, Mr. Rubin has 
been Chairman and Managing Director of a private investment company. For 16 years, Mr. Rubin served as a Board Member of the Hong Kong 
International Arbitration Centre, and for over 5 of those years as Vice Chairman. Mr. Rubin is a member of Boards of the Asian Domain Name Dispute 
Resolution Centre and the Alliance Francaise de Hong Kong. He is also a member of the South-East Asia Advisoiy Board of Rolls-Royce Group, Pic. 
Mr. Rubin was first appointed Director of the Company on 6 December 1999 and was last re-elected at the Annual General Meeting on 27 April 2009. 
He will be seeking re-election to the Board of Directors of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

Alan H o w a r d Smi th is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Smith was the Vice Chairinan - Pacific Region of Credit Suisse 
First Boston, Hong Kong ("CSFB") from 1997 until he retired in 2001. Before joining CSFB, he was the Chairman during 1994 l̂ o 1996 and Managing 
Director during 1983 to 1994 of the Jardine Fleming Group, which he joined in 1972. He graduated with an LLB (Hons) degree from Bristol University 
in 1964, and was admitted as a Solicitor in England in 1967, and in Hong Kong in 1970. Mr. Smith is a director of Asia Credit Hedge Fund, Casde Asia 
Alternative PCC Limited, Genting Hong Kong Limited, Global Investment House, KSC, Kingway Breweiy Holdings Limited, United International 
Securities Limited and VXL Capital Limited. He is also Chairman of the CQS Global Advisory Forum, and a member of the Euromoney Asian Advisory 
Board and of the Hang Seng Index Advisory Board. Mr, Smith was first appointed Director of the Company on 22 March 2002 and was last re-elected 
at the Annual General Meeting on 30 April 2010. 

S e n i o r h e a d office staff b i o g r a p h i e s 

R o b e r t v a n d e r Za lm is the Group Chief Financial Officer. He contributes 24 years' finance management in Consumer Products, Speciality Chemicals, 
Agricultural, Do\\'nstream Oil and Gas as well as Metals Sectors. Pxior to joining Noble, Mr. van der Zalm was CFO of BHP Billiton's Global Aluminium 
business. Starting his career at Unilever, he held a number of Finance positions in Europe, Russia and SE Asia. He then joined Shell, managing Finance and 
M&A in the Downstream business, and later became CFO of its Gas and Power Trading business. Robert holds a Chemistiy degree from Oxford University, 
and has worked and lived in 9 different countries through liis career. He joined Noble in January 2011. 

WiUiam R a n d a l l is Head of the Energy Coal and Carbon Complex division. Mr. Randall holds a Bachelor degree in Business, majoring in International 
Marketing and Finance from the Australian Cathofie University, Australia. He started his career at Noble in 1997 in Australia, transferred to Asia in 1999 
where he established Noble's coal operations, mining and supply chain management businesses. Following his appointment as Director of Noble Energy 
Inc. in 2001, Mr. Randall continued to build the global coal and coke marketing network and asset pipeline. He was appointed global head of Coal & Coke 
in 2006 (which later became Energy Coal and Carbon Complex division). He became a member of the Noble Group Executive Board in 2008 and currendy 
holds positions on the Capital Markets & Investment committee (CAPIC), Management and Risk Committees for Noble Group Limited. 

Nicholas B r e w e r is the Group Chief Operating Officer. He holds a MBA from the London Business School, a Masters degree in International Business and 
Economics fi'om Reading University and a Bachelor degree in Economics and Politics from Bristol University, UK. He started his career at Shell involved 
in both international strategy and business development for petrochemicals. Following that he worked for BACTEC International doing coiporate risk 
assessment, followed by two years with Enron, where he both originated energy based risk management products for major industrials and developed power 
projects. In 2002, he joined Louis Dreyfus Commodities where he had global responsibilit)' for market and operational risk. Mr. Brewer joined the Group in 
April 2007 as Group Risk Manager, and was appointed Group Chief Operating Officer in March 2010. 

Wi ld r ik de Blank is Group Treasurer having joined Noble Group in 2001. He is responsible for all treasuiy and debt capital market related activities. This 
includes funding and fiability management, trade finance, cash & liquidity management and financial risk management. Mr. de Blank started his career 
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Direc to r s ' b iogi 'aphies (continued) 

Sen io r h e a d office staff biograj jhies (contimied) 

in Financial Management with Shell Jakarta before joining MeesPierson in Tlie Netherlands, At MeesPierson/Fortis Bank, he advanced through several 
poshions including the Head of Bank Syndications Amsterdam, Senior Manager Commodity Finance Hong Kong, Chief Representative Sydney and Deputy 
General Manager Shanghai Branch. He holds a Master's degree from the Rotterdam School of Management at the Erasmus University Rotterdam, 

Louis Tang is the Group Finance Director - Controlling. Before joining the Group on August i, 2001, Mr, Tang had been tiie Chief Financial Officer of SCM P 
Group Limited since 1993 and held various senior accounting positions in the Keriy Group since 1988. He has more than 30 years' exjierieiice in Hong Kong, the 
PRC and France in accounting, auditing, taxation, financial management and corporate finance matters. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants and Tlie Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and has an MBA from tiie Chinese University of Hong Kong. 

Lelia Konyn is the Group Human Resources Director. Ms. Konyn contributes over 20 years of international business experience. She joined Noble in 
October 2004, and brings broad business and HR leadership experience to the organization. Previously, she held HR and management roles at Merrill 
Lynch, Pacific NetMarkets and Links. She started her career at Eisenberg Group, working in Eastern Europe and China. Ms. Konyn speaks six languages and 
holds degrees in International Relations and East Asian Studies from the Hebrew University' in Jerusalem, Israel, 

Jeffrey M. Alain has been the Group General Counsel since August 2005. He joined the Group after seven years with Morgan Stanley where he was 
executive director in the Jaw division with responsibility for all merchant banking, fimd management and real estate businesses in Asia, Prior to Morgan 
Stanley, Mr. Alam spent eight years with AIG as General Counsel to their Asia investment businesses. He holds an LLB (Hons) from Manchester and is a 
lawyer qualified to practice in Hong Kong and England, 

B h a r a t Sundavach-a is the Assistant General Counsel and holds a PhD in chemistiy from the University of Cambridge and a law degree from Nottingham 
Law School. He qualified as a solicitor with Linldaters in iggS and practised coiporate and commercial law. He later became Legal CoimseJ for the 
agrochemicals division of AstraZeneca Pie. Dr. Sundavadra joined the Group in April 2002. 

T im Eyi'e is a Legal Counsel and holds an LLB (Hons) degree from Universitj' College London, United Kingdom. Mr, Eyi'e is admitted as a solicitor in both 

England and Hong Kong. He started his career with Richards Butler in London in 1993 and upon qualification as a solicitor, in 1995, transferred to their 

Hong Kong Office, becoming a partner in 2001, Mr. Eyre joined Noble in October 2005. 

S t e p h e n B r o w n is the Director, Investor Relations. Stephen began his cai'eei' witli Cazenove & Co, in London, He bi-ings nearly three decades of experience 

in the Asian equity markets, having advised and acted on behalf of global institutional investment chents at senior levels. Stephen is a Director of the Civic 

Exchange, a Hong Kong-based not-for-profit public policy think tank, a member of the Securities and Futures Commission's Dual Filing Advisoiy Group and 

a former member of the Main Board Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He joined Noble in 2007. 

Secur i t ies t r a n s a c t i o n s 

An Internal Code on Deahngs in Securities (the "Securities Code") is in place to prescribe the internal regulations with regard to dealings in the Company's 

securities. The Company has adopted the Securities Code to provide guidance to its officers with regard to dealings in the Company's shares. 

P u r c h a s e , sa le o r r e d e m p t i o n of l is ted secur i t i es 

The purchase, sales or redemptions of the fisted securities of the Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year are set out in note 33 to 

the financial statements. 

Events after t h e r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d 

Details of the post statement of financial position events of the Group are set out in note 44 to the financial statements. 

Aud i to r s 

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for tlieir reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

Chairman 

Hong Kong 

28Febrnaiy20ii 
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88 financial summary 
Year ended 31 December 

Ihe table set out below summarises the consolidated results of the Group for each of the 10 years ended 31 December, as extracted from the 

audited financial statements of the Group. 

INCOME STATEMENT 

Year ended31 December 

2010 

U S $ ' o o o 

2009 

US$'ooo 

2008 

US$'ooo 
2007 

US$'ooo 

Revenue 36 ,696 ,058 31,183,114 36,090,161 23,497,142 

Profit from operating activities 

Share of profits and losses of: 

Jointly controlled entities 

Associates 

Attributable to: 

Equity holders of the parent 

Non-controlling interests, net of tax 

729,376 

(478) 

(5,981) 

644,936 

(4,189) 

(20,597) 

605 ,560 

1,489 

556,010 

(880) 

691,783 

5,802 

(21,609) 

577,279 

2,459 

306,837 

1,636 

(5,203) 

Profit before tax 

Tax 

Profit for die year 

722,917 
(115,868) 

607 ,049 

620,150 

(65,020) 

555,130 

675,976 

(96,238) 

579>738 

303,270 

(44,785) 

258,485 

258,121 

364 

607 ,049 555,130 579,738 258,485 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
31 December 

2010 

U S $ ' o o o 

17,337,549 

(12 ,906,360) 

(458,212) 

2009 

US$'ooo 

10,655,022 

(7,616,828) 

(82,757) 

2008 

US$'ooo 

8,152,624 

(6,291,756) 

(9,723) 

2007 

US$'ooo 

(Restated) 

6,709,878 

(5,152,100) 

(8,205) 

Total assets 

Total liabilities 

Non-controlling interests 

Shareholders' equity 3,972,977 2,955,437 1,851,145 1,549,573 
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iinanciai summary 
Year ended 31 December 

2006 

US$'ooo 
2005 

US$'ooo 

2004 

US$'ooo 

(Restated) 

2003 

US$'ooo 

2002 

US $'000 

2001 

US$'ooo 

13,765,433 11,690,929 8,622,253 4,396,731 2,960,405 1,836,976 

172,691 253,626 314,719 68,525 33.012 27,186 

(3,670) 

351 

7>687 

2,857 

1,434 

6,873 1,810 856 62 

169,372 

(35.932) 

133,440 

264,170 

(24,174) 

239,996 

323,026 

(30,061) 

292,965 

70,335 

(8,674) 

61,661 

33,868 

(3,816) 

30,052 

27,248 

(3,731) 

23,517 

134.512 

(1,072) 

231,883 

8,113 

289,007 

3.958 

61,252 

409 

30,120 
(68) 

23,523 
(6) 

133,440 239,996 292,965 61,661 30,052 23,517 

2006 

US$'ooo 

(Restated) 

3,811,409 

(2,847,792) 

(6,151) 

2005 

US$'ooo 

(Restated) 

2,847,824 

(1,992,118) 

(6,469) 

2004 

US$'ooo 

(Restated) 

2,011,061 

(1,342,831) 

(16,930) 

2003 

US$'ooo 

(Restated) 

1,114,237 

(751,834) 

(9,041) 

2002 

US$'ooo 

632,488 

(481,393) 
(152) 

2001 

US$'ooo 

498,353 

(371,622) 

(248) 

957,466 849,237 651,300 353,362 150,943 126,483 



90 ; independent auditors' report 

To tl ie sha re l io ldc r s of Nohle G r o u p Limited 

(Incorporated in Bernmda with limited liability) =!l ERNST &YOUNG 

We have audited die consolidated financial statements of Noble Group Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group") set out on 

pages 91 to 154, which comprise the consolidated and company statement of financial position as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated income 

statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash 

flows for the year dien ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatoiy information. 

Di rec to r s ' r c spons ib ih ty for t l ie conso l ida ted f inancial s t a t e m e n t s 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with 

International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessaiy to enable the preparation of consolidated 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fi'aud or error. 

Aud i to r s ' r c spons ib ih ty 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in 

accordance widi Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to 

any other person for the contents of this report. 

WG conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Those 

standards require that we comply widi ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 

financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditors'judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of 

consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entit>''s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 

policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 

financial statements. 

We believe that the audit cWdencc we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Op in ion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2010, 

and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

ZAVA4/(' h- fy^-T 
Certified Publ ic Accoun tan t s 

Hong Kong 

28 Februaiy 2011 



:onsolidated income statemen-
Year ended 31 December 2010 

Notes 

2010 

U S $ ' o o o 

2009 

US$'ooo 

(Restated) 

REVENUE 

Cost of sales and semces 

56 ,696 ,058 

(55 ,063,992) 

31,183,114 

(30,078,068) 

Operating income from supply chain (formerly Gross Profit) 

Profit on supply chain assets 

Share of losses of: 

Jointly controlled entities 

Associates 18 

1,632,066 

93,378 

(478) 

1,105,046 

129,935 

(4,189) 

(20,597) 

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 

Other income net of other expenses 

Selling, administrative and operating expenses 

1,718,985 

1,731 

(691,635) 

1,210,195 

(25,365) 

(401,979) 

PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST AND TAX 

Finance income 

Finance costs 

1,029,081 

54,152 

(360,316) 

782,851 

32,425 
(195,126) 

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 

Taxation 

722,917 

(115,868) 

620,150 

(65.020) 

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 607 ,049 555,130 

Attributable to: 

Equity holders of the parent 

Non-controlling interests 

605 ,560 

1,489 

556,010 

(880) 

607 ,049 555,130 

EARNINGS PER SHARE 

- Basic, for profit for the year attributable to 

ordinary equity holders of the parent (US cents) 10.62 

- Diluted, for profit for the year attributable to ordinaiy 

equity holders of the parent (US cents) 10.01 10,37 

The accounting policies and ex})lanatory notes on pages 101 to i54foi*}n cm integral pa r t of the financial statements. 



92 consolidated statements of comprehensive income 
31 December 2010 

Notes 

2010 
U S $ ' o o o 

2009 

US$'ooo 

(Restated) 

PROFIT FOR T H E YEAR 6 0 7 , 0 4 9 555.130 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(L0SSES) 

Net debit to cashflow hedging reseive, net of tax: 

Net losses on cashflow hedges before tax 

Income tax effect 

(109,430) 

(12,964) 

(122,394) 

333,772 

( 9 9 , 0 0 0 ) 

234,772 

73,370 

37,457 

(152,049) 

24,391 

(127,658) 

45,469 
-

45,469 

28,402 

844 

Net credit to long term investment revaluation reserve, net of tax: 

Gains on revaluation of long term investments before tax 

Income tax effect 

Net credit to exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 

Other comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSSES) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 223,205 (52,943) 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR T H E YEAR, NET OF TAX 830 ,254 502,187 

Attributable to: 

Equity holders of the parent 

Non-controlling interests 

791,308 

38 ,946 

502,223 

(36) 

830 ,254 502,187 



consolidated statement of financial position 
31 December 2010 

m 

tes 

12 

13 

14 

15 

17 

18 

19 

2 0 

21 

31 

2 0 1 0 

U S $ ' o o o 

2 , 2 1 5 , 7 9 1 

2 2 , 7 3 6 

7 4 7 , 4 0 7 

3 5 9 , 5 2 3 

5 4 0 , 2 7 6 

1 0 8 , 1 4 5 

4 8 9 , 2 9 6 

1 7 0 , 3 6 5 

1 4 4 , 1 9 1 

171,191 

2 0 0 9 

U S $ ' o o o 

1,522,650 

13,872 

96 ,653 

41,496 

24,363 

113,511 

89,791 

92 ,546 

85,361 

66,310 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Property, plant and equipment 

Prepaid land leases 

Mine properties 

Intangible assets 

Investments in jointly controlled entities 

Investments in associates 

Long term investments 

Agricultural assets 

Loan receivables 

Deferred tax assets 

Total non-current assets 4 ,968 ,921 2.146,553 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Trade receivables 

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 

Contracts in progress 

Inventories 

2 2 

2 3 

2 4 

2 5 

2 6 

1 , 6 0 5 , 5 8 9 

2 , 0 6 1 , 2 7 4 

4 , 5 7 9 , 4 3 1 

1 5 4 , 2 3 7 

3 , 9 6 8 , 0 9 7 

937,287 

1,140,571 

1,940,870 

77.062 

3,414,566 

Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale 

12,368,628 7,510,356 

998,113 

Total current assets 12,368,628 8,508,469 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Trade and other payables and accrued liabilities 

Excess of progress billings over contract costs 

Bank debts and current portion of long term debts 

Convertible bonds 

Tax payable 

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Long term bank debts 

Convertible bonds 

Senior notes 

Deferred tax liabilities 

2 7 

2 5 

2 8 

29 

6 , 1 0 5 , 0 5 5 

4 5 , 1 4 6 

1 , 5 2 8 , 2 5 0 

3 1 0 , 8 4 1 

6 4 , 9 4 2 

3,614,240 

40 .439 

609,168 

-
30 .253 

Liabilities of a disposal g roup classified as he ld for sale 

Total cu r ren t liabilities 

N E T C U R R E N T A S S E T S 

11 

8 , 0 5 4 , 2 3 4 

8 , 0 5 4 , 2 3 4 

4 , 3 1 4 , 3 9 4 

4 ,294,100 

252,108 

4 ,546 .208 

3,962,261 

2 8 

2 9 

3 0 

3 i 

9 , 2 8 3 , 3 1 5 

1 , 6 0 5 , 9 4 4 

-
2 , 6 7 9 , 2 4 4 

5 6 6 , 9 3 8 

6,108,814 

1,133,059 

2 8 0 , 0 3 9 

1,518,873 

138,649 

Total non-current liabiUties 4,852,126 3,070,620 

NET ASSETS 4,431,189 3,038,194 



94 • consolidated statemp.nt of financial yjosition 

Notes 
2010 

U S $ ' o o o 
2009 

US$'ooo 

EQUITY 

Equity a t t r i bu t ab l e to equi ty h o l d e r s of t h e pai 'ent 

Issued capital 

Share premium 

Capital securities 

Resen'cs 

Rcsci-ves of a disposal group classified as held for sale 

Retained profits 

3 3 

32 

11 

193,492 

1,212,139 

344 ,891 
(47,186) 

-
2,269,641 

123,493 
1,197,009 

-
(177,706) 

3,910 

1,808,731 

Non-controlling interests 

Non-controlling interests attributable to a disposal group classified as held for sale 

TOTAL EQUITY 

JJ 

3,972,977 

458,212 

458,212 

4,431,189 

2,955,437 

5,697 
77.060 

82,757 

3,038,194 

R icha rd S a m u e l Einiaii 

Director 

H a r i n d a r p a l Singh Banga 

Director 

77ie accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 101 to 154 form an integral p a r t of the financial statements. 
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96 consolidatedstatement of changes in equity 
Year ended 31 December 2010 

Notes 

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 

RESERVES 

Issued 

capital 

3$'ooo 

Share 

premium 

US$'ooo 

Capital 

securities 

US$'ooo 

Share-

based 

payment 

reserve 

US$'ooo 

Capital 

redemption 

resei-ve 

US$'ooo 

Capital 

resei-ve 

US$'ooo 

At 1 January 2009 

Total comprehensive income, net of tax 

Non-controlling interests arising from 

business combination 

Contribution fi'om non-controlling interests 

Disposal of a subsidiary 

Held for sale operation 

Issue of shares on exercise of share options 

Share-based payment 

Share placement 

Scrip dividends 

Amortisation of issuance expenses 

Equity-settled share option expenses 

Cash dividends 

Acquisition of non-controlling interests 

16 

103.736 402,444 

16 

11 

33,35 

4>33 

33 

iO,33 

4,35 
10 

16 

-
-

205 

1,486 

16,861 

1,205 

-
-
-

123,493 

-
-

2,457 
38,210 

716,794 

37,104 

-
-
-

1,197,009 

6,237 11,683 

(26,775) 

10 

At 31 D e c e m b e r 2 0 0 9 a n d 1 J a n u a r y 2010 (26,775) 6,237 11,693 

Total comprehensive income, net of tax 

Non-controlling interests arising 

from business combination 

Non-controlling interests arising 

from share placement by subsidiaiy 

Held for sale operation 

Issue of shares on exercise of share options 

Issue of shares on conversion of convertible bonds 

Issue of capital securities 

Share-based payment 

Equity-settled share option expenses 

Bonus shares issued 

Scrip dividends 

Cash dividends 

Accmed capital securities dividends 

Acquisition of non-controlling interests 

X6 

11 
33,35 

29 

32 

4>33 

4,35 

10,33 

10,33 
10 

32 

16 

— 
1,078 

-
-

992 

-
67,684 

245 

-
-
-

" 
16,880 

12 

-
56,101 

-
(67,684) 

9.821 

-
-
-

344,891 
(22,157) 

At 31 D e c e m b e r 2010 193,492 1,212,139 344 ,891 (48 ,932) 6,237 11,693 
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Year ended 31 December 2O10 

Share 

option 

reser\'c 

US$'ooo 

26,852 

-

--

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

15,076 
1 

i 

41,928 

-

-

_ 

-
„ 

„ 

-
-

25=730 

_ 
-
~ 
" 

67,658 

Cashflo\v 

hedging 

reserve 

US$'ooo 

(29,830) 

(127,658) 

-

-
~ 

(3,910) 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

(161,398) 

(122,394) 

-

-
3,910 

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

(279,882) 

[x)ng term 

investment 

revaluation 

resen'c 

US$'ooo 

(34,832) 

45,469 

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

10,637 

234,772 

-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

245 ,409 

Exchange 

fluctuation 

resei-ve 

US$'ooo 

(34,004) 

28,402 

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
~ 
-

(5 ,602) 

73,370 

-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

67,768 

Acquisition 

ofnon-

controlling 

interests 

US$'ooo 

-

-

-

-
-
-
~ 
-
-
~ 
-
~ 
-

(54,426) 

(54,426) 

-

-

3,347 

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-

(66,058) 

(117,137) 

Held 

for sale 

operation 

US$'ooo 

-

-

-

-
-

3,910 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

3,910 

-

-

-
(3,910) 

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-

Retained 

profits 

US$'ooo 

1,398,859 

556,010 

-

-
-
-
-
-
-

(38,309) 

-
-

(107,829) 

-

1,808,731 

605,560 

-

-

-
-
-

- • 

-
-

(10,066) 

(129,543) 

(5,041) 
-

2,269,641 

Total 

US$'ooo 

1,851,145 

502,223 

-

-
-
-

2,662 

12,921 

733,655 

-
10 

15.076 

(107,829) 

(54.426) 

2,955,437 

791.308 

-

3,347 

-
17,958 

12 

344,891 
34,936 

25,730 

-
(129,543) 

(5,041) 
(66.058) 

3,972,977 

Non-

conholling 

interest 

US$'ooo 

9,723 

(36) 

76,068 

1,930 

(4,928) 

-
-
~ 
-
-
-
-
-
-

82,757 

38,946 

25,606 

375,717 

-
-
~ 
-
-
-

-
-
~ 

( 64,814} 

458,212 

Total 

equity 

US$'000 

1,860,868 

502,187 

76,068 

1,930 

(4.928) 

-
2,662 

12,921 

733,655 

-
10 

15,076 

(107,829) 

(54,426) 

3 ,038,194 

830,254 

25,606 

379,064 

-
17,958 

12 

344,891 

34,936 

25,730 

-

(129,543) 

(5.041) 
(130,872) 

4,431,189 
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Adjustments for: 

Share of losses of 

Jointly controlled entities 

Associates 

Interest income 

Interest expenses 

Dividend income from long term investments 

Gain on disposal of supply chain assets 

Excess over the costs of a business combination 

Re-measurement gain on pre-existing interest in supply chain assets 

Gain on option and rights for a jointly controlled entity 

Charge on repurchase of senior notes 

Net losses/(gains) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Net losses/(gains) on disposal of long term investments 

Ix)ss on disposal of a jointly controlled entitj' 

Impairment of supply chain assets 

Fair value gain on short term investments 

Impairment of trade receivables 

Provision for legal claims 

Depreciation 

Amortisation of intangible assets 

Amortisation of mine properties 

Amortisation of prepaid land leases 

Share-based payment expense 

Equity-settled share option expenses 

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 

Impairment of long term investments 

Loss on disposal of mine propeiiies 

2010 2009 
Notes U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit before tax 722,917 620,150 

17 

18 

5 
5 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 

4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 
4 

4,35 
4 

19 

14 

4 7 8 

5,981 

(54,152) 

360,316 

(399) 
(19,928) 

-
(160 ,800) 

( 8 9 , 9 0 0 ) 

-
(5,635) 

(5,697) 
1,660 

74,326 

-
11,337 

9 0 0 

100,249 

9,562 

25,549 

349 
34,936 
25,730 

-
2,998 

1,988 

4,189 

20,597 

(32,425) 
195,126 

(1.709) 
-

(141.419) 
(12,581) 

-
27,712 

2,367 

4.348 
-

3,13a 
(976) 

23,216 

3.745 
63,457 

2,211 

25,035 

343 
12,921 

15,076 

(3,354) 
-
-

Operating profit before working capital changes 1,042,765 831,161 

Increase in trade receivables 

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and other receivables 

Increase in contracts in progress 

Increase in inventories 

Increase in trade and otlier payables and accrued liabilities 

Increase in excess of progress billings over contract costs 

Additions of cash balances with futures brokers not immediately 

available for use in the business operations 

Interest received 

Taxes paid 

Net cash outflow from operating activities (1,343,414) (855,920) 

CASH FLOWS FROM SHORT TERM FINANCING A C n v i T I E S 

Net additions of short term bank debts 718,136 60,096 

Interest paid on short term financing acti\ities (77,602) (17,460) 

Net cash inflow from short term financing activities 640 ,534 42,636 

Net cash outflow from operating and short term financing activities (702 ,880) (813,284) 

(846 ,432) 

(1,606,321) 

(77,175) 

(533,109) 
1,110,480 

4,707 

(411,773) 

54,152 

(80 ,708) 

(227,575) 

364,687 
(41.726) 

(1.650,579) 

110,639 
21,269 

(179,014) 

32,425 
(117,207) 
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>tes 

12 

14 

2 0 

2010 
US $ '000 

(612,482) 

45,416 

(37,904) 

(46,714) 
(239 ,288) 

-
(21,941) 

(64,747) 

22,851 
(96,021) 

3 ,010 

-
84,821 

(119,812) 

(73,156) 

33,743 

(113,437) 

3 9 9 

2009 
US$'ooo 

(626,885) 

17,167 

(48,154) 

(31,517) 
(264,800) 

6,783 

(2,277) 

(43) 
(21,279) 

1,460 

87 

7 0 

2,713 
(6,891) 

(66,237) 

1.930 

(54,426) 

1,709 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Acquisition of propeily, plant and equipment 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Increase in mine propeities 

Increase in agricultural assets 

Net cash paid on acquisition of subsidiaries and business operation 

Net cash recei^'ed on disposal of a subsidiary 

Investment in associates 

Investment in jointly controlled entities 

Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from associates 

Deer ease/(increase) in amounts due from jointly controlled entities 

Dividend income from an associate 

Di\idend income fi'om jointly controlled entities 

Proceeds from disposal of long term investments 

PajTuents for acquisition of long term investments 

Increase in loan receivables 

Contributions by non-controlling interests 

Acquisition of non-controlling interests 

Di\idend income fi:om long term investments 

Net cash outflow fi-om investing activities (1,235,262) (1,090,590) 

CASH FLOWS FROM LONG TERM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Exercise of share options 

Net proceed from issuance of capital securities 

Net proceed of share placement 

Net proceed of share placement by a subsidiaiy 

Additions of long term bank debts 

Repayments of long term bank debts 

Net proceed from issuance of senior notes 

Repurchase of senior notes 

Dividends paid 

Interest paid on long term financing activities 

17,958 

344 ,891 

-
379 ,066 

2,904,716 

(2,263,267) 

1,157,365 
-

(129,543) 

(258 ,894) 

2,662 

-
733,655 

-
1,010,000 

(470,446) 

835,968 

(507,600) 

(107,829) 

(140,07a) 

Net cash inflow fi'om long term financing activities 2,152,292 1,356,338 

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Net foreign exchange differences 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

214,150 

31,549 

619,757 

(547,536) 

(8,465) 

1,175,758 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 865,456 619.757 

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Bank balances and short term time deposits 

Cash balances ^^itll futures brokers 

Cash balances attributable to a disposal group classified as held for sale 

22 

22 

11 

491,745 
1,113,844 

-

296,205 

641,082 

3,975 

1,605,589 941,262 

Less: Cash balances with futures brokers not immediately 

available for use in the business operations 

Bank overdrafts 

(733,278) 

(6,855) 

(321,505) 

865,456 619,757 

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 101 to 154 form an integral p a r t of the financial statements. 
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Notes 
2010 

U S $ ' o o o 
2009 

USS'ooo 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Investments in subsidiaries 

Investment in a jointly controlled entity 

Long term investments 

16 262,442 

1,116 

55 ,882 

167,009 

70 

22,003 

Total non-current assets 319,440 189,082 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Due from subsidiaries 

Due from associates 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Deposits and other receivables 

16 

18 

2 2 

2 4 

7,781,382 

1,798 

188,052 

55,705 

5.512,104 

2,029 

123,388 

50,268 

Total current assets 8 ,026,937 5,687,789 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Due to subsidiaries 

Accrued fiabiiities 

Bank debts and current poiHon of long term debts 

Convertible bonds 

Tax payable 

16 

27 

28 

29 

655,784 
158,273 

521,793 
310,841 

1,000 

747.472 

113,368 

43.158 

-
1,000 

Total current liabilities 1,647,691 904,998 

NET CURRENT ASSETS 6,379,246 4,782,791 

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Long term bank debts 

Convertible bonds 

Senior notes 

Deferred tax liabilities 

2 8 

2 9 

3 0 

6 ,698 ,686 

1,099,687 

-
2,679,244 

1,200 

4,971,873 

933,457 

280,039 

1,518,873 
1,200 

Total non-current liabilities 3,780,131 2,733.569 

NET ASSETS 2,918,555 2,238,304 

EQUITY 

Issued capital 

Share premium 

Capital securities 

Resei'ves 

Retained profits 

33,34 

3 4 

3 4 

34 

3 4 

193,492 

1,212,139 

344,891 
20 ,010 

1,148,023 

123.493 
1,197,009 

-
2,270 

915.532 

TOTAL EQUITY 2,918,555 2,238,304 

R i c h a r d S a m u e l E l m a n 

Director 

H a r i n d a r p a l Singh Banga 

Director 

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 101 to 154 form an integral pa r t of the financial statements. 
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND APPROVAL OF T H E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Noble Group Limited ("Noble" or the "Company") is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of Noble is located at 

Clarendon House, Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. 

During tlie year, the principal activities of Noble and its subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates (collectively the "Group") comprised 

managing the global supply chain of agricultural, industrial and energy products; ship ownership, chartering and the provision of technical ship 

management senices; trade finance; coal mining, soybean and sugar cane cmshing activities and ethanol production. 

The Group operates over 120 offices worldwide and employed over 8,000 (2009: over 4,900) employees as at 31 December 2010. 

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010 were approved and authorised for issue in accordance 

with a resolution of the board of directors on 28 February 2011. 

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") and the requirements of the 

Listing Rules of The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the "SGX-ST'). 

They have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the periodic re-measurement to fair value of certain items as explained in note 2.4 below. 

These financial statements are presented in United States dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except where otherwise indicated. 

In recent years the Group has modified its business model to reflect an "asset-medium" strategy focused on investments in supply chain assets to create 

a more integrated operation. These supply chain asset investments and disposal activities generate long term shareholders' value and recurrent profits 

which the Group has historically booked together with related expenses as "other income and gains net of other expenses." 

The inclusion of these recurrent profits associated with supply chain assets in "other income and gains net of other expenses" is no longer reflective 

of the Group's business operations. Due to the substantial investment in supply chain assets, management has determined a more informative and 

relevant presentation of results was required. Accordingly the Group has changed our presentation from 2010 to now reflect the "profit on supply chain 

assets" together with the related expenses and impairments in the Group's total operating income. 

Please note this is a change in the Group's presentation of our financial results and not a change in accounting poficy. Profits and losses on supply chain 

assets are only lecognizcd on the occurrence of a transaction, such as acquisition of a controlling interest, change in status from controlling interest to 

non-controlling and vice versa etc, or impairment of supply chain assets. 

2.2 IMPACr OF N E W AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 

The Group has adopted the following new and revised standards, and new interpretations and amendments to IFRSs for the first time for the current 

year's financial statements. 

IFRS 1 (Revised)*^ First-time Adoption of International Financial Repoiting Standards 

IFRS 1 Amendments* Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 

- Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters 

IFRS 2 Amendments* Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment - Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions 

IAS 39 Amendment* Amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Eligible Hedged Items 

IFRIC - Int 17* Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners 

IFRS 5 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 5 Non-ciurent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations 

included in Improvements - Plan to sell the controlhng interest in a subsidiaiy 

to IFRSs issued in 

October 2008* 

This has had nofincmcial impact to the Group 
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements. 

IFRS 1 Amendment Amendment to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 

- Limited Exemption from Comparative IFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters ^ 

IFRS 7 Amendment Amendment to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets'' 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments ^ 

IAS 24 (Re\ised) Related Paiiy Disclosures ^ 

IAS 32 Amendment Amendment to IAS 32 Financial Instruments; Presentation - Classification of Rights Issues ' 

IFRlC- Int 14 Amendment Amendment to IFRIC- Int 1 4 - Prepa^Tuents of a Minimum Funding Requirement ̂  

IFRIC - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments ̂  

1 Effective for cmnual periods beginning on or after 1 Febniary 2010 
2 Effective for cmnual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 
4 Effective for annual periods beginning oj} or after 1 July 2011 
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 

Apart from the above, the lASB has issued Improvement to IFRSs 2010 which sets out amendments to a number of IFRSs primarily with a view 

to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. The amendments to IFRS 3 and IAS 27 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 

1 July 2010, whereas the amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IAS 1, IAS 34 and IFRIC - Int 13 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2011 although there are separate transitional pro\isions for each standard. 

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application. So far, the Group 

considers that the new and revised IFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and financial position on 

the date of adoption. 

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of conso l ida t ion 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 

2010. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting fi'om intra-group transactions and di\idend are eliminated 

on eonsolidation in full. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using 

consistent accounting policies. 

Losses within a subsidiaiy are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance. 

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiaiy, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. 

If the Group loses control over a subsidiaiy, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiaiy, (ii) the canying amount 

of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration 

received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting suiplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components 

previously recognised in other coinprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate. 

Subsidiaries are hilly consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated 

until the date diat such control ceases. 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value 

which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of the 

acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer measures 

the non-controlling interest in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's net identifiable assets, on a transaction by 

transaction basis. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred. 
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Basis of consol ida t ion (continued) 

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and fiabiiities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance 

with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at die acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded 

derivati^'cs in host contracts by the acquiree. 

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date canying amount of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree 

is re-measured to fair value as at the acquisition date through income statement. 

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair 

value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as 

a change to other coinprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it shall not be re-measured until it is finally settled 

within equity. 

Goodwifl is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling 

interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the net fair value of identifiable assets acquired and 

liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiaiy acquired, the 

difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss account as a gain on bargain pui'chase. 

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the i-esults and net assets not held by the Group and are presentetl separate!}' in the consolidated 

income statement and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position. An acquisition of non-controlling interests is accounted 

for using the entity concept method whereby the difference bet^veen die consideration and the book value of the share of the net assets acquired is 

recognised as an equity tiansaction. 

Suhs id ia r ies 

A subsidiaiy is a company or undertaking whose financial and operating policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits 

from its activities. 

The Company's investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses. Tlie results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's 

income statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. 

Associa tes 

The Group's investments in associates are accounted for under the equity method of accounting. An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiaiy or 

joinfly controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over \vliich it is in a 

position to exercise significant influence. 

Under the equity method of accounting, the investment in the associate is carried in the statement of financial position at cost plus post-acquishion 

changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate. Goodwifl relating to an associate is included in the canying amount of the investment and is 

not amoitised. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimflar accounting policies that may exist. 

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessaiy to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's 

net investment in the associate. The income statement reflects the share of the results of operations of the associate. Where there has been a change 

recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the statement of 

changes in equit>'. 

The reporting dates of the Group's associates and the Group are identical and the associates' accounting policies materially conform to those used by 

the Group. 

Jo in t ly con t ro l l ed ent i t ies 

A jointly controlled entity is a company which is subject to joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties having unilateral control over its 

economic activity. 

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of jointly controlled entities is included in the consolidated income statement and 

consolidated resei-ves, respectively. The Group's interest in jointly controlled entities is stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at 

the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses. Goodmll arising fr'om the acquisition of jointly 

controlled entities is included as part of the Group's interest in jointly controlled entities. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar 

accounting policies that may exist. 

file:///vliich
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Jo in t ly con t ro l l ed ent i t ies (continued) 

If an interest in a jointly controlled entity is acquired in stages, the acquisition date canying amount of the acquirer's previously held equity interest is 

le-measured to fair value as at the acquisition date through income statement. 

Unrealised gains and losses resulting fi'om transactions between the Group and its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group's 

investments in the jointly controlled entities, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. 

Pi 'oper ty , p l a n t a n d e q u i p m e n t a n d deprec ia t ion 

Propeity, plant and equipment ai'e stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of properly, plant and 

equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended 

use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally 

charged to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has 

resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where the 

cost of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement. 

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-fine basis to write off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its 

estimated usefrfl life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows: 

Land and buildings 2 72% or over the terms of the leases, if shorter 

Leasehold improvements Over the terms of the leases 

Vessels 4% to 10% 

Plant and equipment 5% to 33 ^ 3 % 

Motor vehicles 22 '/2% to 33 73% 

Land held on a freehold basis is not depreciated. 

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the 

parts and each part is depreciated separately. 

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each statement of financial position date. 

An item of propeity, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no fritiu'e economic benefits are expected from its use or disj^osal. 

Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net 

sales proceeds and the canying amount of the relevant asset. 

Assets under development represent a sugar mifl, a few vessels, a warehouse under construction and computer systems under development, which are 

stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost compiises the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on 

related borrowed ftinds during the period of constnaction. Assets under development are reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and 

equipment when completed and ready for use. 

Bo r rowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attiibutable to the acquisirion, construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a substantial 

period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are calculated using the effective interest rate method in accordance with IAS 39 ^'iti ^I'c 

capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such bonwving costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their 

intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporaiy investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is 

deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. 

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs 

in connection with the borro^ving of funds. 

I m p a i r m e n t of non-f inancia l asse t s 

Wliere an indication of impau-ment exists, or when annual unpau-ment testing for an asset is required (otlier tlian inventories, deferred tax assets, goodwill 

and financial assets), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's wilue in 

use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is detennined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of 

those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case, tlie recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to ^vhich the asset belongs. 
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

I m p a i r m e n t of non-f inancia l asse t s (contirmed) 

An impairment loss is recognised only if the canying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing vahie in use, the estimated future 

casli flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cin-rent marlcet assessments of the time \'alne of money 

and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it arises in those expense categories 

consistent with the function of the impaired asset. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist 

or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A pre\iously recognised impairment loss of an asset other 

than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount 

higher than the canning amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised 

for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is 

carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for 

that revalued asset. 

Goodwil l 

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the 

acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition. 

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is not amortised and is reviewed 

for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the canying value may be impaired. 

In the case of associates and jointly controfled entities, goodwill is included in the canying amount thereof, rather than as a separately identified 

asset on the consolidated statement of financial position. 

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the 

Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of die combination, 

irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units. Each unit or group of units to wiiich 

the goodwill is so allocated: 

represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes; and 

is not larger than an operating segment determined in accordance with IFRS 8 "Operating Segments". 

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to \vhich the goodwill 

relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the canying amount, an impairment 

loss is recognised. 

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation \\ithin that unit is disposed of, the 

goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of 

the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of 

the cash-generating unit retained. 

Impairment losses recognised for goodwill wifl not be reversed in a subsequent period. 

On disposal of subsidiaries or associates, the gain or loss on disposal is calculated by reference to the net assets at the date of disposal, including the 

attributable amount of goodwill which remained and any relevant reserves, as appropriate. 

M i n e p r o p e r t i e s 

On acquisition of mining related operations and businesses, fair values reflecting conditions at the date of acquisition are attributed to the 

identifiable assets and liabilities acquired. Mineral resei-ves and resources, include mining rights, which can be reliably valued, are recognised in 

the assessment of fair values on acquisition. Other potential reseives and resources and mining rights, for which, in the directors' opinion, values 

cannot be reliably determined, are not directly recognised at their fair values. The mineral resen'es and resources are subsequently measured at cost 

less accumulated amortisation. 

Costs directly attributable to the constniction and development of a mine are capitalised as mine development until such time as production 

commences. These amounts, together with the capitalised ex-ploration costs, are amortised over the estimated life of the resource from the j)eriod when 

production commences. Costs that are not directly attributable to construction and development are expensed as incurred. 
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Mine p r o p e r t i e s (contimied) 

Overburden removed in advance of production, relating to the initial box cut of a mine, is capitalised as deferred mining costs. The amounts are 

deferred and amortised cither over the estimated fife of the mine fr'om the period when production commences or on a units of production basis using 

the estimated average stripping ratio for the area being mined. 

Agr icu l tura l asse t s 

Agricultural assets are stated at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in the income statement. 

The fair value of the plantation of various agricultural products is estimated with reference to a professional valuation using the discounted 

cash flows of the underlying agricultural assets. The expected cash flows from the whole life cycle of the plantations are determined using the 

market price of the estimated yield of the agricultural products, being fresh sugar cane bunches and a variety of crops, net of maintenance and 

harvesting costs and any costs required to bring the plantations to maturity or a ready-for-sale market condition. The estimated yield of the 

plantations is affected by the age of the plants, the location, soil type and infrastructure. The market price of plants is largely dependent on the 

prevailing market price of the processed products after hai-vest. 

In tangib le a s se t s o t h e r t h a n goodwill 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an intangible asset acquired in a business combination 

is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amoitisation and 

any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitaHsed development costs, are not capitalised and the 

exj)enditure is charged against profits in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either 

finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an 

indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amoitisation period and the amoitisation method for an intangible asset with a finite usefril 

life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic 

benefits embodied in thĉ  asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in the 

accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the income statement in the expense category 

consistent with the function of the intangible asset. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset ai'e measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the canying 

amount of the asset and are recognised in the income statement when the asset is derecognised. 

The Group does not have any intangible assets \vith indefinite lives. 

Connnod i ly f o n v a r d purc l i ase a n d sale con t r ac t s 

Certain business divisions of the Group are involved in mining, manufacturing and processing commodities. Commodity foi'ward contracts that form 

part of the Grou]i's normal purchase, sale or usage requirements for these acti\ities are accounted for as executory contracts and are recorded when the 

delivery of the commodities has taken place. 

All other commodity fonvard contracts qualify as derivatives and are recorded in the statement of financial position at their fair values. Assets are 

recorded in other receivables, and liabilities are recorded in other liabflities, in the statement of financial position. Changes in fair value are recognised 

in the income statement in the cost ofsales and semces in the period of change. When sales contracts have been settled, the associated revenue is 

recorded in revenue. 

S h o r t t e r m inves tmen t s 

Short term investments include financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of 

sale in the near term. Gains or losses on these financial assets are recognised in the income statement. 

Loan a n d t r a d e receivables 

Ixian and trade receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets 

arc subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, Amoitised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 

premium on acquisition and including fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognised 

in the income statement when the loan and trade receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. 
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Long t e r m i n v e s t m e n t s 

Long term investments arc those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale investments. After initial recognition, these 

long term investments are measured at fair value with gains or losses being recognised as a separate component of equity until the investments are 

derecognised or until the investments are determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is included 

in the income statement. 

For investments actively traded in recognised financial markets, fair value is generally determined by reference to stock exchange quoted market prices 

at the close of business on the statement of financial position date. For investments where there is no quoted market price, a reasonable estimate of 

the fair value is determined by reference to the current market value of a substantially similar instrument, or is calculated based on the expected future 

cash flows of the underl}ing net asset base of the investment. Equity investments where there is no quoted market price in an active market and where 

die fair value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less any impairment losses. 

Derivat ive financial i n s t r u m e n t s 

All derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which the contract is entered into and are subsequently re-

measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabflities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or 

losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recorded in the income statement for the year. 

Futures contracts 

Futures contracts arc measured at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses are reported in the income statement. Fair value is determined by reference 

to quoted futures prices on recognised futures markets at the close of business at the statement of financial position date. The accounting treatment of 

cash provided as margin to futures brokers is described below under cash and cash equivalents. 

Hedge accounting 

The Group applies hedge accounting for certain derivative financial instnunents that are used to hedge risks associated primarily with foreign currency 

fluctuations, interest rate fluctuations and commodity prices. 

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship for which the Group wishes to 

apijly hedge accounting. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving the task of offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows and 

are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they have been highly effective throughout the financial repoiting periods for which they 

were designated. 

For the purposes of hedge accounting, cash flow hedges refer to hedges against exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a 

particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability, a firm commitment, or a forecast transaction. 

In relation to cash flow hedges which meet the conditions for hedge accounting, the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is 

determined to be an effective hedge is recognised directly in equity and the ineffective portion is recognised in fhe income statement. 

When a hedged firm commitment results in the recognition of an asset or a liability, then, at the time the asset or liabilit)' is recognised, the associated 

gains or losses that had previously been recognised in equity are included in the initial measurement of the acquisition cost or the canying amount of 

tho asset or liability. 

For all other cash flow hedges, the gains or losses that are recognised in equit}' are transferred to the income statement in the same period in which the 

hedged transaction affects the income statement. 

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instnunent expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. 

At that point in time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is kept in equitj' until the forecast transaction occurs. 

If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is transferred to the income statement for 

the year. 

Cash a n d cash equiva len ts 

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, cash provided to frjtures brokers 

to cover margin requirements, short term time deposits and short term liquid investments. 
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coTitinued) 

Cash a n d cash equ iva len t s (continued) 

For the purpose of the consohdated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are adjusted for cash provided to futures brokers which is not 

immediately available for use in the Group's business operations, as it is covering fair value losses on the fritures position and is not subslitutable with 

alternative collateral. 

The Group places cash with futures brokers to meet the initial and variation margin requirements in respect of its outstanding futures positions on 

commodity exchanges. The Group can also use credit facflities granted by these brokers or standby letters of credit to meet these requirements in lieu 

of cash. Accordingly, the Group regards this cash as part of its liquid cash that is used in its daily cash management. For die puipose of the statement 

of financial position, the whole amount of cash balance with fritures brokers is included as cash and cash equivalents. Howe^'er, for the purjiose of 

the consolidated cash flow statement, only the poition of the cash balance with fritures brokers that is immediately available for use in the business 

operations is included as cash and cash equivalents. 

Cont rac t s in progi-ess/excess of p r o g r e s s bil l ings over con t r ac t costs 

The Group records revenue earned and expenditures incurred for vessel chartering and related operations on the basis of stage of completion of voyage. 

The attributable profits and losses of incomplete voyages are capitalised in contracts in progress/excess of progress billings o\'cr contract costs. 

I nven to r i e s 

Inventories principally comprise commodities held for trading and inventories that form part of the Group's normal purchase, sale or usage 

requirements for its manufacturing or processing activities. 

All the inventories of the Group for commodity trading businesses are measured at fair value less costs to sell, with changes in fair value less costs to 

sell recognised in the income statement in the period of the change. 

All the other inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Raw material cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis, \veighled 

average basis or on a specific basis if such inventories are not ordinarily interchangeable. Finished products include raw material costs, direct labour 

and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less 

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessar}' to make the sales. 

F inancia l l iabil i t ies a t a m o r t i s e d cost ( inc luding in teres t -beai ' ing l oans a n d b o r r o w i n g s ) 

Financial liabifities including trade and other payables, and interest-bearing loans and borrowings are initially stated at fair value less directly 

attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amoitised cost, using the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting 

would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. 

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabflities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process. 

F inancia l g u a r a n t e e con t r ac t s 

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of IAS 39 are accounted for as financial fiabiiities. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially at its 

fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial guarantee contract, except wlien such contract 

is recognised at fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher 

of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the statement of financial position date; and (ii) the 

amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with IAS 18 Revenue. 

Prov is ions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future 

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required io settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of Ihe amount of 

the obligation. 

Convert ible b o n d s 

Upon initial recognition on the issue of the convertible bonds, the debt instrument and the embedded conversion option of the convertible bonds are 

separated into a liabflify component and an equity component on the statement of financial position. 

The fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a long 

term liability on the amoitised cost basis untfl extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion 

right that is recognised and included in the capital resen-e of the shareholders' equity, net of transaction costs. The value of the conversion right is not 

re-measured in subsequent years. The corresponding interest on those bonds is charged as an interest expense in the income statement. 
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Conver t ib le b o n d s (continued) 

Transaction costs are apportioned between the fiability and equit>^ components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation of proceeds to the 

liability and equity components when the instruments are first recognised. 

As and when the holders of the convertible bonds exercise their conversion rights to com'ert the com'ertible bonds into new ordinaiy shares of the 

Company, the value of such conversion rights exercised and recognised in the capital resei-ve is transferred to the share capital and share iiremium 

account. Upon expiiy of the conversion rights, any remaining capital i-esei-ve will be transferi'ed to retained profits. 

Derecogni t ion of financial asse t s a n d l iabil i t ies 

Financial assets 

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when: 

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows fr'om the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without 

material delay to a third paity under a "pass-through" arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and 

rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially ah the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 

control of the asset. 

Where the Group has transfened its rights to receive cash flows from an asset entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred 

nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group's 

continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability 

are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained. The Group applies this accounting policy to financing 

arrangements related to the Group's prepajonents and trade receivables as frirther explained in notes 23, 24 and 28 when the cost of these financing 

arrangements takes the form of discounts, these discounts are recorded in cost of goods sold. 

Fimmcial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. 

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another fr'om the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of au existing liability are 

substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and 

the difference in the respective canying amounts is recognised in the income statement. 

I m p a i r m e n t of financial asse t s 

The Group assesses at the end of eachreportingperiodwiietherthereisanyobjectiveevidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets 

is impaired. 

Assets caiTied at amortised cost 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amoitised cost has been incurred, die amount of the loss is 

measured as the difference between the asset's cari;jing amount and die present ^'alne of estimated ftiture cash flows (excluding future credit losses 

that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The canying amount of the asset shall be reduced either 

directly or through use of an aflowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognised in the income statement. 

If, in a subsequent period, fhe amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the 

impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account, Any subsequent reversal of 

an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement, to the extent that the canying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the 

reversal date. 

In relation to loans and receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of insoh'ency or 

significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Group wfll not be able to collect ail of the amounts due under the original terms of an invoice. 

The canying amount of the receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Impaired debts arc derecognised when they are assessed 

as uncollectible. 

Assets carried at cost 

If there is objecrive evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be 

rehably measured, die amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's canying amount and the present value of estimated friture 

cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed. 
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

I m p a i r m e n t of financial asse t s (continued) 

io;ip term investments 

If a long term investment is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and 

its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the income statement, is transferred from equit)'̂  to the income statement. 

Re^'ei'sals in I'espect of equity instruments classified as long term investments are not recognised in profit. Re^'crsals of impairment losses on debt 

instruments are reversed through the income statement, if the increase in fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurrhig 

after the impairment loss was recognised in the income statement. 

I n c o m e tax 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either 

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or jijaid to the taxation 

authorities. 

Deferred tax is prorided, using the liability method, for all temporaiy differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 

canying values for financial reporting purposes. Currently enacted tax rates are used to determine deferred tax assets and liabilities. The principal 

temporaiy differences arise from tax losses carried foi'ward and unrealised gains and losses on inventories and derivative financial instruments. 

Deferred tax assets relating to the cany forward of unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is probable that futuie taxable profit will be 

available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial 

position date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit \vill be available to allo\v all or part of the deferred tax 

asset to be utihsed. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and 

the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

Sales tax 

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax except; 

(a) where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authorit>', in which case the sales tax is 

recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and 

(b) receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included. 

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authorit>' is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of 

financial position. 

P e n s i o n costs 

The Group operates a number of defined contribution plans throughout the world, the assets of which are held in separate trustee-admuiistered funds. 

The pension plans are frinded by payments from employees and by the relevant Group companies. 

The Group's contributions to defined contribution pension plans are charged to the income statement in the period to which the contributions relate. 

Sha re -ba sed p a y m e n t t r a n s a c t i o n s 

Employees (including directors and senior executives) of the Group and other parties receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment 

transactions, whereby employees and other parties render senices in consideration for equity instruments ("equity-settled transactions"). 

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at ^vJiicli they are granted. Vor granting 

of equity instruments, the goods or semces received, and the corresponding increase in equity, are measured ^\ith reference to the fair value of the 

equity instmments granted at die date of grant. For granting of share options, die fair value is determined by using a binomial option pricing model, 

frirther details of which are given in note 33 to the financial statements. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any peiformance 

conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of Noble Group Limited ("market conditions"), if applicable. 

The cost of equity-settied fransactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equify, over the period in wiiich the performance and/ 

or sei-vice conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the "\'esting date"). The 

cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each statement of financial position date untfl the vesting date reflects the extent to 

which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The income statement 

cliarge or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period. 
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

S h a r e - b a s e d p a y m e n t t r a n s a c t i o n s (continued) 

An expense is recognised for any modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is othenvise beneficial 

to the employee as measured at the date of modification. 

Where an equitj'-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the a\vard 

is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is 

granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the pre\ious paragraph. 

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dflution in the computation of earnings per share. 

Re la ted p a r t i e s 

A paity is considered to be related to the Group if: 

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Group; (ii) 

has an interest in the Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or (Hi) has joint control over the Group; 

(b) the pait}' is an associate; 

(c) the party is a jointly controfled entity; 

(d) the pariy is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or its parent; 

(e) the partj' is a close member of the family of any indi\idual referred to in (a) or (d); 

(f) the paity is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power in such entity resides 

with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or 

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of the Group. 

Leases 

Leases that transfer substantially afl the rew^ards and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal tide, are accounted for as finance leases. 

At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together 

with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid 

land lease payments under finance leases, are included in propeity, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and die 

estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the income statement so as to pro\ide a constant periodic rate of 

charge over the lease terms. 

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the 

Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are included in non-current assets and rentals receivable under the operating 

leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the 

operating leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. 

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently charged to the income statement on the straight-line 

basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, die entire lease payments 

are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in propeity, plant and equipment. 

Fore ign c u r r e n c i e s 

These financial statements are presented in United States dollars, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the 

Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency, 

Transacdons in foreign currencies ai'e initiaUy recorded in the functional currency rates rifling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and 

Uabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruHng at the statement of financial position 

date. All differences are taken to the income statement with the exception of differences on foreign currency borrowings that provide a hedge against 

a net investment in a foreign entity. These are taken directly to equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognised in the 

income statement. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those borrowings are also dealt with in equity. Non-monetaiy items 

that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-

monetaiy items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. 

The frmctional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates are currencies other than the United States dollar. 

As at the statement of financial position date, the assets and liabflities of these entities are translated into the presentation currency of the Company 

(the United States doflar) at the rate of exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date and their income statements are translated at the 

weighted average exchange rates for the j'ear. The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly to the exchange fluctuation resei-ve, 

which is a separate component of equity. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular 

foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated income statement. 
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Revenue recogni t ion 

Revenue is recognised wiien it is probable diat the economic benefits wifl flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured rehably. The 

following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised: 

(a) Supply of agricultural, industricd and eneiyy products 

Revenue is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the products have been passed to the buyer. 

(/)) Logistics 

Revenue earned and expenditures incurred of vessel chaitering and related operadons are recognised on the basis of stage of completion of 

voyage, as explained in the accounting policy headed "Contracts in progress/excess of progress billings over contract costs". 

(c) Others 

Commissions and rentals are recognised on an accrual basis. Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method 

by api^lying the rate that discounts the estimated ftiture cash receipts through the expected life of the financial insti'ument to the net carrying 

amount of the financial asset. Dividends are recognised when the shareholders' right to receive payment has been established. 

Dividends 

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement of financial 

position, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. WTien these di\idends have been approved by the shareholders and 

declared, they arc recognised as a liability. 

Dis t r ibut ion on capi ta l secur i t ies 

The distribution on the capital securities are classified as a separate allocadon of retained profits within the equity section of the statement of 

financial position. 

2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made judgements and estimates which have the most significant effect on 

the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty, that 

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the canying amounts of assets and liabilides within the next financial year, are discussed below. 

I m p a i r m e n t a s s e s s m e n t 

(a) Assets 

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining whether an asset is impaired or an event previously causing an asset impairment no 

longer exists, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset value 

has not been in existence; (2) wiiether the carding value of an asset can be supported by the net present value of future cash flows which are 

estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash 

flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected 

by management when assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could 

materially affect the net present value determined by the impairment test. 

(/)) Loans and trade receivables 

Impairment is determined based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of each account receivable and on management's 

judgments, A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the result on ultimate realisation of the account receivable, including the 

current creditworthiness and the past repayment histoiy of each account recei\'able. If the financial conditions of debtors of the Group were to 

deteriorate, resulting in an impairment oftheir abilities to make payments, additional allowances may be required. 

(c) Long term investments 

The Group determines that long term investments are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its 

cost. The determination of what is a significant or prolonged decline requires judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates among 

other factors, the normal market price volatility in respect of the relevant long term investments. In addition, impairment may be appropriate 

when there is e\idence of a deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in technolog>', and 

0])crational and financing cash flows. 
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2.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued) 

I n c o m e taxes 

The Group is subject to income t̂ Lxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes 

worldwide. There are certain transactions and calculations for which the uldmate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises fiabiiities for 

anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different fr-om 

die amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax pro\isions in the income statement in the period 

in which such determination is made. 

I m p a i r m e n t of goodwil l 

The Group determines whether goodwifl is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating 

units to wiiich the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the 

cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The canying amount of 

goodwill at 31 December 2010 was US$276,326,000 (2009: US$41,496,000). Fuitlier details are given in note 15 to the financial statements. 

Va lua t ion of t h e financial i n s t r u m e n t s , der ivat ive financial i n s t r u m e n t s a n d c o m m o d i t y f o r w a r d a n d op t ion con t rac t s 

Tho Group values certain of its financial instruments, deii\'ative financial instruments and commodity fonvard and option contracts, at fair value. 

Estimating the value of these financial instruments requires the Group to make certain estimates and assumptions, and hence the values are 

judgmental. Further details are given in notes 37 to 38 to the financial statements. 

Defe r red tax asse t s 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit wifl be avaflable against which the 

losses can he utilised. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based 

upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with friture tax planning strategies. The canying value of deferred tax assets 

relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December 2010 was US$28,948,000 (2009: US$55,002,000). Further detafls are given in note 31 to the 

financial statements. 

SEGMENT INFORMATION 

For management jsuri^oses, the Group is organised into business units based on their products and senices and has four repoiting operating segments 

as follows: 

(a) Agriculture: Our Agriculture segment includes the following product di\isions: Grain, Coffee, Cocoa, Cotton, Sugar, Sugar Mills and Fertilizer. 

This segment seeks to create a pipeline strategy to control the entire supply chain from farmer to consumer, by engaging in the following 

activities (where applicable): planting, growing, hai-vesting, as wefl as sourcing and originating, warehousing, processing, transporting, 

distributing and marketing. 

(b) Energy: Our Energy segment includes the following product divisions: Energy Coal and Carbon Complex, OH Liquids (which includes ethanol). 

Gas and Power, and Petrochemical (which includes polymers). 

(c) Metals, Minerals and Ores: Our Metals, Minerals and Ores segment includes the following product di\isions: Iron Ore, Manganese Ore/Chrome 

Ore and Ahun in a/Aluminum products. 

(d) logistics: Our Logistics segment is composed of vessel chartering, vessel owTiership and vessel management. 

Management monitors die operating results of its business units separately for the pui-pose of making decisions about resource allocation and 

performance assessment. Segment peiformance is evaluated based on total operating income. 

The Group generally accounts for inter-segment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were made to third parties at the then prevaifing 

market prices. 
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3 . SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 

Opera t ing Segmen t s 

The foflowing tables present revenue and profit information regarding the Group's operating segments for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009. 

Agriculture 

2010 

U S $ ' o o o 

2009 

US$'ooo 

Energy 

2010 

U S $ ' o o o 

2009 

US$'ooo 

Sales to external customers 

Intersegment sales 
12,034,996 7,367,532 36,911,474 18,205,755 

Revenue 12,034,996 7,367,532 36,911,474 18,205,755 

Operating income from supply chains 

Profit/(los5) on supply chain assets 

Share of gains/flosses) of: 

Joinfly controlled entities 

Associates 

761,493 

(5,147) 

2 0 2 

1,864 

343,805 

-

(4,260) 

705 

540 ,183 

94,707 

(640 ) 

(2,732) 

448,828 

129,935 

„ 

(3.109) 

Net profit on supply chain assets (3,081) (3,555) 91,335 126,826 

Total operating income 

Other income net of other expenses 

Selling, adiuinistradve and operating expenses 

Profit before interest and tax 

Finance income 

Finance costs 

Profit before tax 

Taxation 

Profit for the year 

Non-controlling interest 

Profit attributable to equity holders of parent 
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Metals, minerals and ores 

2010 20og 

U S $ ' o o o U6$'ooo 

216,159 

(15,493) 

(25) 

(5,184) 

135,537 

Logistics 

2010 2009 

U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

Ehminations 

2010 2009 

U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

114,231 

19,311 

(18,262) 

(15) 

71 

176,876 

71 
69 

Consolidated 

2010 2009 

U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

6,894,551 

6,894,551 

4,725,855 

4,725,855 

855,037 
462 ,942 

1,317,979 

883,972 
391,606 

1,275,578 

(462,942) 

(462,942) 

(391,606) 

(391.606) 

56 ,696 ,058 

56 ,696 ,058 

31,183,114 

31,183,114 

,632 ,066 

93,378 

(478) 

(5,981) 

1,105,046 

129,935 

(4,189) 

(20,597) 

(20,702) (18,262) 19,367 140 86,919 105,149 

1,718,985 1,210,195 

1,731 

(691,635) 

(25,365) 
(401,979) 

1,029,081 782,851 

54,152 
(360,316) 

32,425 
(195,126) 

722,917 

(115,868) 

620,150 

(65,020) 

607 ,049 

(1,489) 

555,130 

880 

605 ,560 556,010 
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3 . SEGMENT INFORMATION (contimied) 

Opera t ing Segmen t s (continued) 

Agriculture 

2010 2009 

U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

Energy 

2010 2009 

U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

Metals, minerals and ores 

2010 2009 

U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

Segment assets 

Investments in jointly controfled entities 

Investments in associates 

7,178,555 4,595,565 
66 ,296 12,801 

9,444 50,227 

7 , 8 0 0 , 0 9 0 3,237,011 

459 ,260 8,261 

20 ,076 41,091 

1,200,212 1,260,998 

6,584 2,471 

78 ,344 18,214 

Total assets 

Segment liabilities 

Other segment information: 

Capital expenditure 

Depreciation 

Amortisation 

Impairment of trade receivables 

Provision for legal claims 

Impairment of supply chain assets 

Fair value gain on short term investment 

7,254,295 

(4,599,667) 

387,564 
50,655 

3 4 9 

4 4 0 

-
-
-

4.658,593 

(3,467,753) 

345,395 
33,656 

343 

5,399 
-

(1.254) 

(976) 

8,279,426 

(6,681,749) 

138,696 

33,523 

35,111 
1,467 

9 0 0 

6 0 , 0 0 0 

-

3,286,363 

(2,745,665) 

272,713 

20,573 

25,035 

1,497 

-
1,716 

~ 

1,285,140 

(982 ,866) 

20,770 

6,129 

-
9,430 

-
14,326 

-

1,281,683 

(913,810) 

9,823 

1,091 
2,211 

16,320 

-
2,670 

-

Geographica l i n fo rma t ion 

The following table sets out information about the geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue from external customers and (ii) the Group's 

property, plant and equipment, prepaid land lease, mine property, intangible assets, goodwill, long-term investments, agriculture assets, loan 

receivables, interest in associates and jointly controlled entities ("specific non-current assets"). The geographical location of customers is based 

on the location at which the services were provided or the goods delivered. The geographical location of the specific non-current assets is based 

on the physical location of the asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment, the location of the operation to which they are allocated, in 

the case of intangible assets and goodwill, the location of operation in the case of investments in associates and jointly controlled entities. 

Revenues 
from external customers 

2010 
U S $ ' o o o 

2009 
US$'ooo 

Specified 
non-current assets 

2010 
U S $ ' o o o 

2009 
US$"ooo 

Hong Kong (place of domicile) 23,747 103,292 13,868 43,033 

PRC 

India 

Australia 

Asia and others (excluding PRC, India, and Australia) 

North America 

South America 

Africa 

Europe 

Elimination 

5,592,730 

1,519,416 

814,042 

6 ,849 ,002 

31,603,621 

3 ,663,634 

1,736,153 
7,535,520 

(2,641,807) 

4,328,870 

860,460 

360,869 

5,036,360 

15,944,248 

2,105,483 

785,053 

3,546,635 
(1,888,156) 

175,798 

7,524 
2,041,812 

297,841 

689,571 
1,497,316 

2 0 , 4 9 8 

53,502 

-

119,924 
6,736 

169,534 
534,512 

86,676 

1,096,744 

4,530 

18,554 

-

56,672,311 31,079,822 4 ,783,862 2,037,210 

56 ,696 ,058 31,183,114 4,797,730 2,080,243 
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2010 
U S $ ' o o o 

510,271 

8,136 

2 8 1 

2009 
US$'ooo 

545,374 
8 3 0 

3,979 

Assets classified as held for sales 

2010 2009 

U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

Eliminations 

2010 2009 

U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

nj 
31 December ao io 

Consolidated 

2010 2009 

U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

998,113 (119,913) 16,689,128 10,517,148 

540,276 24,363 

108,145 113.511 

518,688 

(642 ,078) 

550,183 

(357,405) 

998,113 

(252,108) 

(119,913) 

119,913 

17,337,549 

(12,906,360) 

10,655,022 

(7,616,828) 

103,356 

9,942 
93,401 

8,137 

3,745 

650 ,386 

100,249 

35 ,460 

11,337 
9 0 0 

74,326 

-

721,332 

63,457 

27,589 
23,216 

3,745 
3,132 

(976) 

4 . PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST AND TAX 

The Group's profit before interest and tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): 

ifes 

M 

13 

^5 

12 

2 0 

(b) 

2010 
U S $ ' o o o 

53 ,698,547 
618,672 

27,705 
607 ,506 

25,549 

3 4 9 

9,562 

6 4 , 4 0 6 

(1,142) 

1,501 

11,337 

2009 
US$'ooo 

(Restated) 

28,866,700 

639,929 

5,848 

479,237 

25.035 

3 4 3 

2,211 

35,707 
(1,962) 

1,804 

23,216 

Cost o f s a l e s a n d services : 

Cost of inventories sold 

Cost of senices provided 

Operating lease payments on land and buildings 

Operating lease payments on vessels 

./\jnoitisation of mine properties 

Amortisation of prepaid land leases 

iVmortisation of intangible assets 

Depreciation 

Increase in fair value less point-of-sale costs 

Factoring discount on trade receivables 

Impairment of trade receivables 

55 ,063 ,992 30,078,068 
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PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST AND TAX (continued) 

Notes 
2010 

US$'ooo 
2009 

US$'ooo 
(Restated) 

Profit on supply cha in asse t s : 

Income: 

Re-measurement gain on pre-existing interest in supply chain assets 

Gain on option and rights for a jointly controlled entity 

Excess over the costs of a business combination 

Gain on disposal of supply chain assets 

160 ,800 

8 9 , 9 0 0 

19,928 

12,581 

141,419 

Less: expenses 

I^gal and professional fee for supply chain assets acti\ities 

Impairment of supply chain assets 

Hedging exchange loss on supply chain assets activities and other expenses 

270 ,628 154,000 

(62 ,928) 

(74,326) 

(39 ,996) 

(19,741) 
(3,132) 

(1,192) 

93,378 129,935 

Othe r i n c o m e ne t of ot l ier expenses : 

Dividend income from long term investments 

Gains/(losses) on disposal of long term investments 

Gains/(losses) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Gain on disposal of a subsidiaiy 

Fair value gain on short term investments 

Write off of fixed asset under development 

Charge on repurchase of senior notes 

Miscellaneous income 

3 9 9 

5,697 

5,635 

-
-

, 000 ) 

-
-

1.709 
(4.348) 

(2,367) 

3,354 
976 

-
(27,712) 

3.023 

1,731 (25,365) 

Selling, admhi i s t r a t i ve a n d ope ra t i ng expenses : 

Employee benefit expense: 

Salaries and bonuses 

Pension scheme contributions 

Share-based payment expense^ 

Equity-settled share option expenses 

Non-audit fees 

Depreciation 

Exchange gains, net 

Operating lease payments on land and buildings 

Provision for legal claims 

Otiicrs 

35(c) 

418,298 

9,626 

34 ,936 

25,730 

2,891 

35 ,843 
(19,940) 

26,589 

9 0 0 

156,762 

258,777 

6,995 
12,921 

15,076 

2,266 

27,750 

( 43,408) 

16,430 

3,745 
101,427 

691,635 401,979 

During the i/enr ended 31 December 2010,19,042,095 (2009:46,068,857) shares of the Company were issued to certain directors and employees (20og: certain 
directors and employees) of the Group. The fair value of the shares issued in respect of these payments, based on the then prevaiUng quoted market prices at 
respective grant dates, is charged to the income statement pro-rata over the vesting period. 
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5. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 

2010 

U S $ ' o o o 

2009 

US$'ooo 

Interest income 54,152 32,425 

Interest expense and amortisation: 

Bank debts 

Convertible bonds 

Senior notes 

Less: Interest capitalised* 

207,228 

19,801 

154,094 
(20 ,807) 

123,147 
18,620 

97,237 
(43,878) 

360,316 195,126 

Net finance costs 306,164 162,701 

The lyorrowiny costs have been capitalised at a rate of 6.6% - 7.5% per annum (2009:5.0% - 8.0%). 

6. DIRECTORS' AND KEY HEAD OFFICE MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL'S REMUNERATION 

Notes 
2010 

U S $ ' o o o 
2009 

US$'ooo 

Short term employee benefits 

Post-employment benefits 

Share-based payment expense 

36 ,304 

342 

5,832 

96,662 

276 

3.368 

Total compensation 42 ,478 100,306 

Included executive directors' remuneration of: 

Fees 

Other emoluments 

Share-based payment expense 

5 0 9 

18,155 

2,255 

471 

82,387 
1,066 

20,919 83,924 

Notes: 
a. During ihe year ended 31 December 2010,1,424,174 shares (2009: 9,575,420 shares) of the Company were issued to certain directors. The 

fair vcdue of the shai-es issued in i'espect of these payments, based on the then prevailing quoted market price at respective grant dates, was 
charged as staff costs iti the income statement pro-rata over the vesting period. 

b. The number o/dircctors, including non-exccutiue directors, ruhose remunerationfalls within thefollowing bands: 

2010 2009 

NU - S$250,ooo 

S$250,ooi-S$499,999 
S$500,ooo and above 

13 

The Company's remuneration policy for the directors, including non-executive directors, is periodicaUy reviewed by its Remuneration and Options 

Committee, which comprises four directors, the majority of whom are non-executive directors. This policy is aimed at ensuring that the remuneration 

is competitive and commensurate with the contribution and responsibilities of the directors. 
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COMPONENTS OF OTFIER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

2010 

U S $ ' o o o 

2009 

US$'ooo 

Losses on cash flow hedges before tax comprise the following: 

Losses arising during the year 

Net gains transferred to the income statement 

(64,406) 

(45,024) 

(139,300) 

(12,749) 

Net gains on revaluation of long term investments before tax comprise the following: 

Gain arising during the year 

Ixisscs on disposal transferred to the income statement 

Realisation on acquisition of a subsidiaiy 

(109,430) 

333,772 

(152.049) 

9,439 
462 

35,568 

333,772 45.469 

8. TAX 

The Group's taxes on assessable profits have been calculated at tax rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates, based on existing 

legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof. 

Tax expenses charged to consolidated income statements comprise the following: 

Note 
2010 

U S $ ' o o o 
2009 

US$'ooo 

Provision for the year 

Net deferred tax charge 31 

87,995 

27,873 

55,838 

9,182 

115,868 65 ,020 

A rcconcfliation between die tax expenses of the Group appficable to profit before tax using applicable rates to the tax expenses for the year is as foflows: 

2010 
U S $ ' o o o 

2009 
US$'ooo 

Profit before tax 722,917 620,150 

Tax at the applicable rates to profits in the countries concerned 

Income not subject to tax 

Unrecognised tax losses 

Benefit of increase in tax base 

Others 

111,865 

(13,213) 

47,104 
( 4 3 , 0 0 0 ) 

13,112 

61,597 

(64,373) 
38,461 

-
29,335 

Tax expenses for die year 115,868 65,020 

The share of tax charged attributable to a jointly controlled entity and associates amounted to US$1,526,000 (2009: tax credit US$1,205,000) and was 

included in "Share of profits and losses of jointly controlled entities and associates" in the consolidated income statement. 
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9. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATIRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinaiy equity holders of the parent by the weighted 

average number of ordinaiy shares outstanding during die year. 

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinaiy equity holders of the parent (adjusted 

by interest on convertible bond for the year ended 31 December 2010) by the weighted average number of ordinaiy shares outstanding during the 

year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dflutive potential ordinary shares into 

ordinaiy shares. 

The computations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on: 

2010 
U S $ ' o o o 

2009 
US$'ooo 

Ea rn ings 

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent for basic and diluted earnings per share 

Interest expense on convertible bonds 

605 ,560 

18 ,908 

556,010 

Adjusted profit attributable to ordinaiy equity holders of the parent for dfluted earnings per share 6 2 4 , 4 6 8 556,010 

Number of shares 

2010 2009 

(Restated) 

S h a r e s 

Weighted average number of ordinaiy shares 

Dilutive effect of share options and convertible bonds 
5,991,300,015 

246,714,349 

5,237,144,409 

122,320,635 

Weighted average number of ordinaiy shares adjusted for the dilutive effect 6 ,238,014,364 5,359,465,044 

The above liave been adjusted for the bonus issue of six shares for eveiy eleven then existing shares held in 2010, 

10. DIVIDENDS PAID AND PROPOSED 

During the year, a iinal cash dividend of US3.6 cents per share and a scrip dividend in the form of bonus shares to be allotted to the shareholders of the 

Company on the basis of six new shares for eveiy eleven then existing issued shares relating to the year ended 31 December 2009 were declared and 

approved at die annual general meeting. Both the cash and the scrip dividends ^vere paid during the year. 

A Scrip Dividend Scheme was declared and the directors determined that the Scrip Di\idend Scheme would be applicable to the final dividend in 

which shareholders entitled to this dividend may elect to receive either cash or an aflotment of ordinaiy shares in the Company credited as fully 

paid in lieu of cash. 7,611,623 shares were allotted to eligible shareholders wiio have elected to participate in the Scrip Dividend Scheme in respect 

of the final dividend. 

Details of the proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010 are included in note 44 to the financial statements. 



122 notes to financial statement; 
31 December 2010 

11. HELD FOR SALE OPERATION 

In December 2009, the Group announced that it had entered into various conditional agreements including one in which it would dispose its 87,7% 

equity interest in Gloucester Coal Limited ("GCL"J and its 25.34% interest in MidtUemount Pty Limited ("Middlemount") to Macarthur Coal Limited 

("Macarthur") for a mix of cash and scrip, collectively the "disposal group". 

The major classes of assets and liabilities ofthe disposal group classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2009 are as follows: 

Notes US$'ooo 

Assets 

Investment in an associate* 

Property, plant and equipment 

Mine properties 

Inventoiy 

Trade receivables 

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 

Cash 

104,691 

171,867 

623,860 

12,646 

3,853 
77,221 

3.975 

Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale 998,113 

Liabili t ies 

Trade payables 

Tax payables 

Deferred tax liabilities 

(21,708) 

(1,967) 

(228,433) 

Liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale 

Net assets directly associated witii the disposal group 

(252,108) 

746,005 

Cashflow hedging resei-ve of the disposal group 3,910 

As of 31 December 20og, Middlcmount Pty Limited C'^iddlemount") was classified as an investment in associate within the category Held for Sale Operation. 
During the year, Middlemount became a jointly controlled entity as further detailed in note 17. 

Due to a change in transaction conditions not initially contemplated, the planned disposal of the above disposal group was aborted on 13 May 2010. 

Accordingly, the following assets, fiabiiities and resei-ves of the disposal group have now ceased to be presented as assets held for sale and have been 

reclassified to their respectable individual categories and the impact to the major classes of assets and liabifities as a result of the reclassification as at 

30 June 2010 was as follows: 

VS$'ooo 

Assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Mine propeities 

Investment in an associate 

174,964 
623,138 

114,530 

Liahili t ies 

Deferred tcix liabilities (218,752) 
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12- PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Notes 

Leasehold 

Land and improve- Plant and 

bufldings ments Vessels equipment 

US$'ooo US$'ooo US$'ooo US$'ooo 

31 December 2010 

Assets 

Motor under 

vehicles development 

US$'ooo US$'ooo 

At 31 December 2009 and 

1 Januaiy 2010 

Assets ceased to be presented as; 

held for sale operation 

Provided during the year 

Disposals 

Ebichange adjustments 

14,993 11,475 19,600 97,536 12,626 

56 

6,393 
(66) 

9 4 4 

14 

10,062 

(870) 

71 

-
9,861 

(12,057) 

354 

8,828 

67,607 

(4,079) 
2,748 

99 

6,326 

(813) 
2 8 

Total 

US$'ooo 

Cost: 

At 1 Januaiy 2009 

Additions 

Acquisition of a subsidiaiy 

Assets included in a held 

for sale operation 

Assets transfer 

Disposals 

Disposal of subsidiaiy 

Exchange adjustments 

At 31 December 2009 and 

1 Januaiy 2010 

Assets ceased to be presented as a 

held for sale operation 

Additions 
Acquisition of subsidiaries 

Assets transfer 

Disposals 

Exchange adjustments 

At 31 December 2010 

Accumulated depreciation: 

At 1 Januaiy 2009 

Provided during the year 

Assets included in a held 

for sale operation 

Disposals 

Disposal of a subsidiaiy 

Exchange adjustments 

110,486 

31,023 

16 24,866 

11 (30,633) 

31,799 
(5,690) 

(2,224) 

3.779 

163,406 

11 30,633 
153,390 

16 8,516 

39,113 
(1,328) 

3,229 

396,959 

9.449 

3,819 

11 (56) 

(834) 

(123) 

2,738 

37,637 

38,519 
3 8 

(45) 
-

(2,121) 

(9,444) 

S33 

65,417 

45 

25,231 
162 

-
(1,211) 

2 8 0 

89,924 

7,055 

6,234 

(14) 

(771) 

(1,314) 
2 8 5 

57,521 

25,119 

15.717 

-
-
-
-
-

98,357 

-
67,354 

-
55,333 

(22,780) 

-

198,264 

12,961 

6,639 

-
-
-
-

459,716 

108,094 

99,771 

(129,101) 

95,657 
(16,087) 

(252) 

9,531 

627,329 

129,101 

317.878 

17,761 

88,144 
(29,072) 

6,083 

1,157,224 

57,815 
42,432 

(8,828) 

(2,947) 
(100) 

9.164 

26,846 

1,798 

365 

(584) 
-

(931) 

(271) 

1,448 

28,671 

584 

23,395 

939 

-
(1,863) 

213 

51,939 

7.382 

4,333 

(99) 

(743) 
(61) 

1,814 

406,274 

422,332 

13,752 

(20,501) 

(127,456) 

-
-

1,299 

695,700 

20,501 

25,234 

5.815 
(182,590) 

(1,439) 
9.996 

573,217 

-
-

~ 
-
-
~ 

1,098,480 

626,885 

154,509 

(180,864) 

-
(24,829) 

(12,191) 
i6,8go 

1,678,880 

180,864 
612,482 

33,193 

-
(57,693) 

19,801 

2,467,527 

94,662 

63,457 

(8,997) 

(5,295) 
(1,598) 

14,001 

156,230 

8,997 

100,249 

(17,885) 

4,145 

At 31 December 2010 

Net book value: 

At 31 December 2009 

At 31 December 2010 

22,320 

148,413 

374.639 

20,752 

53.942 

69,172 

17,758 

78,757 

180,506 

172,640 

529,793 

984,584 

18,266 

16,045 

33,673 

-

695,700 

573,217 

251,736 

1,522,650 

2,215,791 

As at 31 December 2010, land and buildings are situated in the PRC, Indonesia, India, Australia, Paraguay, Uruguay, Brazil, Argentina, 
Ukraine and USA. Freehold land and bufldings amounted to US$79,293,275 (2009: US$23,945,000) and land and buildings under long term 
leases amounted to US$317,666,080 (2009; US$139,461,000). 

Certain of the Group's vessels and land and buildings have been pledged to secure the Group's bank loans as set out in note 28 to the financial statements. 
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13. PREPAID LAND LEASES 

The Group's land leases arc held under medium term leases and are situated in the PRC, 

Note 

2010 
U S $ ' o o o 

14,215 
8,763 
(349) 

4 6 3 

2009 
US$'ooo 

14,661 

-
(343) 
(103) 

At 1 Januaiy 
Addition on acquisition 
Amortisation during the year 
Exchange adjustments 

16 

Current portion included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables 
23,092 

(356) 

14,215 

(343) 

Non-current portion 22,736 13,872 

14. MINE PROPERTIES 

Notes 

Mineral reseives 
and resources 

US$'ooo 

Deferred Mine 
mining costs development 

US$'ooo US$'ooo 
Total 

US$'ooo 

Cost: 

At 1 Januaiy 2009 

Additions 

Assets included in a held for sale operation 

Acquisition of a subsidiaiy 

Disposals 

Exchange adjustments 

78,289 

24,785 

(660,444) 

588,645 
(14,048) 

3,757 

42,158 

6,388 

30 

41.695 

16,981 

(19,638) 

15,529 

4,160 

162,142 

48,154 
(680,082) 

604,174 

(14,048) 

7,947 

At 31 December 2009 and 1 Januaiy 2010 

Assets ceased to be presented as a held for sale operation 

Additions 

Disposals 

Exchange adjustments 

20,984 

660,444 

27,870 

(3,457) 
12,148 

.576 58,727 

19,638 

10,034 

4,969 

128,287 

680,082 

37.904 

(3,457) 
17,119 

At 31 December 2010 717,989 48,578 93.368 859.935 

Accumulated amortisation: 

At 1 Januaiy 2009 

Provided during the year 

Assets included in a held for sale operation 

Disposals 

Exchange adjustments 

54,888 

16,320 

(53,147) 
(14,048) 

3 0 8 

4,321 

53,147 
18,961 

(1,469) 
7,806 

13,271 

4,356 

-
-

(6) 

17,621 

-
1.977 

-
(4.336) 

6,479 

4,359 

(3,075) 
-

1,929 

9,692 

3,075 
4,611 

-
(2,878) 

74,638 

25,035 
(56,222) 

(14,048) 

2,231 

31.634 
56,222 

25,549 

(1.469) 
592 

At 31 December 2009 and 1 Januaiy 2010 

Assets ceased to be presented as a held for sale operation 

Provided during tiie year 

Disposals 

I'Achange adjustments 

At 31 December 2010 

Net book value: 
At 31 December 2009 

At 31 December 2010 

82,766 

16,663 

635,223 

15,262 

30,955 

33,316 

14,500 

49,035 

78,868 

112,528 

96,653 

747,407 
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Note 

Goodwill 

US$'000 

Other intangible assets 

US'ooo 
Total 

US$'ooo 

Cost: 

At 1 January 2009 

Addition during die year 
41.315 

181 

7,270 48,585 
181 

At 31 December 2009 and 1 Januar>' 2010 

Addition during tiie year 

At 31 December 2010 

16 

41.496 

234,830 

276,326 

7,270 

92,759 

100,029 

48,766 

327,589 

376,355 

Accumulated amortisation: 

At 1 Januaiy 2009 

Amortisation during the year 
5.059 
2,211 

5.059 
2,211 

At 31 December 2009 and 1 Januaiy 2010 

Amortisation during the year 

At 31 December 2010 

Net canying amount: 

At 31 December 2009 

At 31 December 2010 

-

-

41,496 

276,326 

7,270 

9,562 

16,832 

-

83,197 

7,270 

9,562 

16,832 

41,496 

359,523 

Other intangible assets included below market leases, customer lists, information technology, %vith net canying amounts of US$31,360,000, 

US$29,337,000 and US$22,500,000 respectively and remaining useful life ranging from 5 to 10 years. 

As of 31 December 2010, certain goodwill with canying amount of US$34,210,000 and of US$48,318,000 has been aflocated to tiie agricultural and oil 

and gas cash-generating units respectively for impairment testing. 

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit under impairment testing has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow 

projections based on financial budgets covering a ten-year period approved by senior management. A period longer than five years has been adopted 

for cash flow i)rojections to match the extended crop cycle of sugar cane and ofl and gas operation. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow 

projections ranged from 6% to 7.46% and cash flows beyond the ten-year period were exhapolated using a constant growth rate of 1.5%, similar to the 

expected inflation rate. Hence, the real growth rate is close to zero. 

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculation of the cash generating unit for 31 December 2010 are as foUow: 

Budgeted gross margins -The projected gross margins are calculated based on assumptions of volumes, prices, cost per unit, expenses and other, which 

in turn are based on historical or market comparable figures, consideiing the efficiency improvements the Group expects to achieve over past years. 

Discount rate - The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the business unit. 

Revenue - The basis used to determine the ffiture values of revenue was the forecast price of sugar, based on New York Board of Trade (NYBOT11) 

;md the expected ethanol prices in Brazil and estimated market rates per gallon for the related oil and gas product. 

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with external information sources. 
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 

a o i o 

US$'ooo 
2009 

US$'ooo 

Unlisted shares, at cost 

Due from subsidiaries 

Due to subsidiaries 

262 ,442 

7,781,382 

(655,784) 

167,009 

5,512,104 

(747.472) 

7 ,388 ,040 ,931,641 

Paiticulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the financial statements. 

Amounts due from subsidiaries of US$6,664,694,000 (2009: US$4,809,573,000) at 31 December 2010 are unsecured, bear interest at rates 

determined by the Group's treasuiy department based on prevailing market interest rate and have no fixed terms of repayment. Other amounts 

due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The amounts due to subsidiaries of US$297,532,000 

(2009: US$401,566,000) bear interest at rates determined by the Group's treasury department as mentioned above. 

Acquis i t ion of PT H e n r i s o n Int i P e r s a d a C'PTHIP") 

On 14 June 2010, the Group acquired 51% equity interest in PTHIP, a company incorporated in Indonesia, at cash consideration of US$24,525,000. 

The fair value of the net tangible assets acquired amounted to US$48,303,000 at the date of acquisition. This included cash and cash equivalent of 

US$i9,g63,ooo, agricultural assets of US$46,060,000 and propeity, plant and equipment of US$7,666,000, 

Acquis i t ion of N o r t h \ i l l e P r o d u c t Sei-vices C'NPS") 

On 1 July 2010, the Group acquired a business engaged in blending, trading, distribution and marketing of refined petroleum products in NPS, at a 

cash consideration of US$70 mfllion and a convertible note of US$10 mflfion due 2011, The fair value of die net tangible and intangible assets acquired 

amounted to US$324,000 and US$31,358,000 at the date of acquisition respectively. The net tangible assets acquired represented property, plant and 

equipment. Goodwifl arising on this acquisition amounted to US$48,138,000. 

Acquis i t ion of H.K. Ming Fat I n t e rna t i ona l Oil & Fa t Chemical C o m p a n y Limi ted C'HICMF") 

On 22 September 2010, the Group acquired a business engaged in seUing and manufacturing cooking oil, at a cash consideration of US$10,126,000. 

The fair value of the net assets acquired amounted to US$8,611,000 at the date of acquisition. HKMF is an investment holding company witii a wholly 

o^vued subsidiaiy, Ming Fat International Oil &Fat Chemical (Tai Xing) Company Limited with tangibleassetsof propeity, plant and equipment of 

US$15,769,000, prepaid land lease of US$8,705,000 and working capital. Goodwill arising on this acquisition amounted to US$1,515,000. 

Acquis i t io i i / (deemed d isposa l ) of in te res t s in Glouces ter Coal Ltd C'GCL") 

In September 2010, GCL completed a share placement of US$379 million to institutional and retail investors, thereby decreasing tiie Group's 

ownership to 58.9% and in October 2010, the Group acquired an additional 6,4% equity interests in GCL through a bidder offer, increasing its 

ownership to 65.3%. The difference between the consideration and the canying value of the deemed disposal of US$3.3 million, and the difference 

between the consideration and the cany value of the interest acquired of US$45.6 mfllion, have been recognised in non-controfling interests reseives 

\vithin equity. 

Acquisi t ion of Noble Amer i cas Energy Solu t ions LLC ("NAES") 

On 1 November 2010, the Group acquired 100% of NAES, a North American retail power, energy and electricity marketer, from Sempra Energy and 

Tlie Royal Bank of Scotland at a Ciish consideration of US$317 million plus the assumption of US$371 mfllion in debt. 

file:///vithin
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 

The ])rovisional identifiable assets and liabilities of NAES as at the date of acquisition were: 

Notes 

Fair value recognised on acquisition 

US$'ooo 

Previous canying value 

US$'ooo 

Property, plant and equipment 

Intangibles 

Long term investments 

Cash and bank balances 

Trade receivables 

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 

Inventories 

Trade and other ptiyables and accrued liabflities 

Tax payables 

12 6,082 

61,401 

8,913 
175,656 

78,441 

919,934 

540 

(1,095,170) 

(12,757) 

6,082 

8,913 
175,656 

78,441 

919,934 
540 

(1,087,474) 

(12,757) 

Net assets 

Consideration paid 

Goodwill on acquisition 

143.040 

317,640 

174,600 

89,335 

Cash outflow on acquisition: US$'ooo 

Net cash acquired \vith the subsidiaiy 

Cash paid 

175,656 

(317,640) 

Net cash outilow (141,984) 

The net assets recognised in the 31 December 2010 financial statements were based on a provisional assessment of fair value as the Group had sought 

an independent valuation for the assets and liabilities owned by NAES. The results of this valuation has not been received at the date the 2010 financial 

statements were approved for issue by management. 

From the date of acquisition, the acquired subsidiaries have contributed US$5,354,926,000 of revenue and US$2,721,000 to the net profit 

of the Group. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the year, revenue and profit of the Group for the year would have been 

US$63,479,984,000 and US$741,983,000 respectively. 
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 

Acquis i t ion of Glouces te r Coal Ltd ("GCL") 

On 16 June 2009, the Group acquired a ffuther 66% of the voting shares of GCL, a listed Austrafian mining company, thereby increasing its shareholding 

from 21.7% to 87.7% in GCL. The Group has acquired GCL to complement its coal ti'ading business in Australia and expand the energy division through 

increased coal production. The acquisition has been accounted for using the pm'chase metiiod of accounting in accordance \\ith IFRS3 (Revised). 

The Group measured the non-controlling interest at the non-controfling interest's proportionate share of GCL's identifiable net assets. 

The identifiable assets and liabflities of GCL as at the date of acquisition were: 

Fair value recognised on acquisition Previous carjying value 

Notes US$'ooo US$'ooo 

Propeity, plant and equipment 

Mine propeities 

Long term investments 

Cash and bank balances 

Trade receivables 

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 

Inventories 

138,771 

604,174 

48 

39,473 
9,488 

81,803 

12,339 

65,247 

44,559 
48 

39,473 
9,488 

2,535 

6,944 

Trade and other payables and accnied liabilities 

Tax payables 

Deferred tax Habflities 31 

886,096 

(22,082) 

(17,947) 
(227,626) 

168,294 

(22,082) 

(16,850} 

(11,859) 

Net assets 

Non-controlling interests 

Equity value attributable to the Group (87.7%) 

Excess over the costs of a business combination, net of tax 

Total acquisition costs 

618,441 

(76,068) 

542,373 

(141,419) 

400,954 

117,503 

The total acquisition costs of US$40o,g54,ooo comprised a cash payment of US$304,230,000 and canying value of the pre-existing equity interest of 

US$96,724,000. 

Tlie fair value of the trade receivables amounts to US$9,488,000, The gross amount of trade receivables is US$9,488,000, None of the trade 

receivables have been impaired and it is expected that the fifll contractual amount can be collected. 

The Group recognised a gain of US$12,581,000 (note 4) as a result of measuring at fair value its 21.7% pre-existing equity interest in GCL held before the 

business combination. The gain is included in profit on supply chain assets in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2009. 

The acquisition of GCL resulted in a gain due to the market conditions at the time of the global financial crisis and the pre-existing equity interest of the 

Group in GCL both placing the Group in a favourable negotiating position. 

Cash outflow on acquisition: US$'ooo 

Net cash acquired with the subsidiaiy 

Cash paid 
39,473 

(304,230) 

Net cash outflow (264,757) 

From the date of acquisition, GCLhascontributedUS$ii2,047,oooofrevenueandUS$i,05i,ooo to the net profit of the Group. If the 

combination had taken place at the beginning of the year, revenue and profit of the Group for the year would have been US$31,297,523,000 and 

US$575,873,000 respectively. 
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17. INVFvSTMKNTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

Group 

2010 2009 

U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

Company 

2010 2009 

U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

Share of net assets 

Due from jointly controlled entities 

(unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment) 

Goodwifl on acquisition 

lixchangc adjustment 

345,356 6,036 

98,770 

97,832 

(1,682) 

2,749 
16,596 

(1,018) 

1,116 70 

540,276 24,363 1,116 70 

The jointiy controlled entities are indirectly held by the Company. Paiticulars of the major jointly contiolled entities are as follows: 

Place of Percentage of 

incoiporation/ Ownershif 

Name registration 

Ownership Voting Profit 

interest power sharing Principal activities 

Jordan Grain Handling 
and Milling Company Ltd. 

Uninoble Sociedad Anoniina 

Botlck Tank Termnial B.V. 

Middlemount Pty Limited 

Middle East 

Paraguay 

Nedierlands 

Australia 

50 

50 

50 

49.99 

50 

50 

50 

50 

50 

50 

50 

49.99 

Operation of elevators 
and storage facilities 

Barge operations 

Storage and Transhipment of 
agribulk products and industrial oils 

Coal mining 

None of the above jointly contiolled entities are audited by Ernst & Young. 

As of 31 December 20og, Middlemount Pty Limited ("Middlemount") was classified as an investment in associate ivithin the categoiy Held for 

Sale Operation. During the year, the Group acquired additional shares and exercised its equity options, thereby increasing its shareholding to 

49,99%, and Middlemount was subsequently accounted for as a jointly controfled entity. The Group's pre-existing shareholding in Middlemount 

was measured at fair value \vhich resulted in a gain of US$160.8 miflion and a fair value gain of US$89.9 mflUon was also recognised on the equity 

options in the income statement. 

The summarised financial information of the jointly controfled entities is: 

2010 
US$'ooo 

2009 
US$'ooo 

Share of the jointiy controfled entities' assets and liabilities; 

Current assets 

Non-current assets 

Current liabilities 

Non-current liabilities 

20,142 

659,129 

(143,560) 

(190,355) 

4.496 

9,654 

(5,617) 
(3,068) 

Net assets 345,356 5,465 

Share of the jointly controlled entities' results: 

Re\'enue 

Other revenue 

5 ,688 

117 

7,647 

Total revenue 

Expenses 

Tax 

5 ,805 

(6,377) 

94 

7,647 

(11,835) 

(1) 

Loss for the year (478) (4,189) 
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 

Group 

2010 2009 
U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

Company 

2010 2009 
U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

Share of net assets 

At cost 

Less: Provisions for impairment 

76,352 

0 2 5 ) 

76,227 

1,362 

2 8 , 0 6 4 

2,492 

60,976 

(108) 

60,868 

1,362 

50,915 
366 

Goodwill on acquisition 

Due fi'om associates (unsecured, interest-free 

and have no fixed terms of repayment) 

Exchange adjustment 

1,798 2,029 

108,145 113,511 1,798 2,029 

Particulars of tiie principal associates as at 31 December 2010 are as follows; 

Name 
Place of incorporation 

/registration 
Percentage of equity 

attributable to the Group Principal activities 

Territoiy Resources Limited 

M.H.A.G-Seivicos & Mineracao S/A. 

PTTalentaBumi 

Blackwood Coiporation Limited 

East Energy Resources Limited 

Australia 

Brazfl 

Indonesia 

Australia 

Australia 

27 

30 

30 

29 

27 

Iron ore mining 

Iron ore mining 

Road and port construction 
and operation 

Coal exploration 

Coal exploration 

Territoiy Resources Limited is a listed company. The market value of this investment based on the stock pzice at 31 December 2010 was 
US$24,832,415 (2009: US$9,569,000). 

Blackwood Corporation Limited is a listed company. The market value of this investment based on the stock price at 31 December 2010 was 

US$13,659,549. 

East Energy Resources Limited is a listed company. The market value of this investment based on the stock price at 31 December 2010 was 
US$9,579,272. 

None of the associates are audited by Ernst & Young. The above list of the associates of the Group, in the opinion of the directors, comprise those 
associates that principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial poition of the net assets of the Group. To give detafled information of 
other associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. 

The summarised financial information of the Group's associates is: 

Assets 

Liabilities 

Revenue 

Profit/(loss) for the year 

a o i o 
U S $ ' o o o 

213,192 

(77,612) 

212,724 

14,689 

2009 

US$'ooo 

329,660 

(234,106) 

137,835 

(46,235) 

Share of losses of associates (5,981) (20,597) 
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t 9 . LONG TERM INVESTMENTS 

Group Company 

2010 
U S $ ' o o o 

81,526 

3 ,248 

426,272 

(21,750) 

2009 
US $'000 

30,174 

3,076 

75.293 
(18,752) 

2010 
U S $ ' o o o 

55,622 

2 6 0 

-
-

2009 
US$'ooo 

21,743 
260 

-
-

Listed equity investments, at market value 

Unlisted equity investments, at cost 

Unlisted equity investments, at fair value 

Less: Imj>airment provisions of unlisted equity investments 

4 8 9 , 2 9 6 ),79i 55 ,882 22,003 

The Group's long term investments consist of investments in equity securities which were designated as available-for-sale financial assets and have no 

fixed maturity date or coupon rate. The fair \'alues of listed equity investments are based on quoted market prices. 

I'or the year ended December 2010, net gains of the Group's long term investments recognised in other comprehensive income amounted to 

US$333,772,000 (2009: net gains of US$9,439,000). 

a o . AGRICULTURAL ASSETS 

Notes 
2010 

U S $ ' o o o 

105,637 

46,714 
4 6 , 0 6 0 

(4 ,005) 

2009 
US$'ooo 

84,043 

31,517 
-

(11,885) 

At 1 Januaiy 

Additions 

Acquisition of a subsidiaiy 

Allocation of sugar cane to inventoiy 

16 

Increase in fair value less point-of-sale costs 

Less: current portion included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables 

194,406 

1,142 

195,548 

(25,183) 

170,365 

103.675 
1,962 

105,637 

(13,091) 

92,546 

At the end of the financial year, the Group's agricultural assets comprised the follovving: 

(a) Soybeans and grains plantations in Argentina and Uruguay of approximately 26,481 hectares (2009: 37,989 hectares). The growing cycle 

of soybean is six months and the Group's plantation is fully planted and mature. 

(b) Sugar cane plantation in Brazil of approximately 42,410 hectares (2009: 39.523 hectares). The growing cycles of sugar cane is five years 

with an annual harvest and the Group's plantation is fully planted and mature. During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group 

harvested approximately 2,583,720 tons (2009; 1,650,103 tons) and left unhai-vested of 479,943 tons of sugar cane. The sugar cane crop 

is fully utilised in meeting the raw material requirements of the Group's Brazilian sugar cane crushing facflity. 

(c) Palm plantation in Indonesia of approximately 22,000 hectares. The growing cycles is twenty-five years. The Group has planted 7,331 

hectares and the plantations have not yet matured. 

21. LOAN RECEIVABLES 

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had made loans to trade coimterparties to secure long term conti-acts. These loans are repayable ovei- five to six 

vears and bear interest at market rates. 



15̂ 2 • notes to fijiancial statements 
31 December 2010 

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Group 

2010 2009 

U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

Company 

2010 

US$'ooo 
2009 

US$'ooo 

Bank balances and short term time deposits 

Cash balances with futures brokers 
491,745 

1,113,844 

296,205 

641,082 

188,052 123,388 

1,605,589 937-287 188,052 123,388 

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varjing periods of between one 

day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. 

At 31 December 2010, the original maturity periods of all time deposits were less than 90 days (2009: 90 days), and the effective interest rates ran 

from 1% to 5% (2009:1% to 4%) per annum. 

Included in the cash balances with hitures brokers is an amount of US$733,278,000 (2009: US$321,505,000) which is not immediately available 

for use in die Grouj^'s business operations as it is earmarked to cover unrealised losses on futures contracts, and cannot be replaced by alternative 

collateral arrangements such as stand-by letters of credit. 

2 3 . TRADE RECEIVABLES 

The Group's trading terms with its customers are partly on credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally required. The 

credit period is generally one month, extending up to three months for major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group 

seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control department to minimise the credit risk. Overdue balances 

are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade receivables are related to a large 

number of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk by industry or geographical location. Trade receivables are non-

interest-bearing. 

Details of the provision for impairment of trade receivables are set out in note 36(b) to the financial statements. 

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had discounted certain receivables to banks of US$400,000,000 (2009: US$300,000,000) (note 28) and certain 

portions of these receivables totaling US$390,000,000 (2009: US$290,000,000) have been derecognised against the same amounts of associated 

bank borrowings pursuant to the Group's derecognition accounting policy. 

2 4 . PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECETV^ABLES 

Group 

2010 2009 

U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

Company 

2010 2009 

U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

Prepayments * 

Deposfls and other receivables 

Short term investments 

Fair value gains on commodity forward and 

options contracts and derivative financial instmments 

551,215 
1,181,604 

-

2,846,612 

4,579,431 

274,830 

543,003 

9,937 

1,113,100 

1,940,870 

26 ,884 

28,821 

33,353 

16,915 

55,705 50,268 

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had made certain prepayments to suppliers which werefimded by bank bon-owings of US$84,318,000 (2009: US$39,794,000) 
(note 28), and certain portions of the prepayments, amounting to US$62,033,000 (2009: US$35,156,000) had been derecognised against the same amoimts of 
associated bank borrowings pursuant to the Group's derecognition accounting policy. 
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25 . CONTRACTS IN PROGRESS/EXCESS OF PROGRESS BILLINGS OVER CONTRACT COSTS 

31 December 2010 

2010 
U S $ ' o o o 

2009 
US$'ooo 

Contracts in progress: 

Direct costs incurred plus attributable profits less attributable losses 

Progress billings received and receivable 

166,647 

(12,410) 
85,389 

(8,327) 

154,237 77,062 

Excess of progress bfllings over contract costs: 

Direct costs incurred plus attributable profits less attributable losses 

Progress billings received and receivable 
73,295 

(118,441) 

76,667 

(117,106) 

(45,146) (40,439) 

26 . INVENTORIES 
2010 

U S $ ' o o o 
2009 

US $'000 

Commodity inventories at fair value 

Other inventories at die lower of cost and net reaHsable value 

3 ,892 ,087 

76,010 
2,823,151 

591,415 

3 ,968 ,097 3,414,566 

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, certain of the Group's inventories were pledged as security for bank loans, as further detafled in note 28 to the 

financial statements. 

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

Group Company 

2010 

U S $ ' o o o 

3 ,664 ,200 

2 ,440 ,855 

2009 

US$'ooo 

2,432,337 

1,181,903 

2010 

U S $ ' o o o 

116,827 

41,446 

2009 

US$'ooo 

53,155 

60,213 

Trade and other payables and accrued liabilities * 

Fair value losses on commodity forward and options contracts 

and derivative financial instruments 

6,105,055 3,614,240 158,273 113.368 

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled within 30 - 60 days credit. 
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28 . BANK DEBTS 

2010 

Effective average 

i n t e r e s t r a t e (%) U S $ ' o o o 

2009 
Effective average 

interest rate (%) US$'ooo 

G r o u p 

Current bank debts maturing within 12 months: 

Bank loans 

Current ])ortion of long term bank debts 
2.5 
4 .8 

1,302,781 

225,469 

3.6 

3-6 

472,263 

136,905 

1,528,250 609,168 

Ixjiig term bank debts 

~ secured portion maturing latest 2020 

- unsecured portion maturing latest 2021 

6,1 

4 .8 
275,347 

1,330,597 

6.1 

5-1 

80,523 

1,052,536 

1,605,944 1,133,059 

3,134,194 1,742,227 

C o m p a n y 

Current bank debts maturing within 12 months 

Unsecured non-current bank debts maturing by 2013 
1.5 
4.2 

521,793 

1,099,687 
3-9 
4.8 

43.158 

933,457 

1,621,480 976,615 

Notes: 
(a) The effective average interest rate of bank loans and overdrafts denominated in US dollars of approximately US$3,500,549,000 

(2009: US$1,420,696,000) is 3.3% (2009:4.6%) per cmnum whereas that of bank loans and overdrafts denominated in other currencies 
of approximately US$633,645,000 (2009: US$321,531,000) is 6.4% (2009: 4-9^) per annum. 

(b) Certain short term bank locms and overdrafts of an aggregated amount of US$23,238,000 (2009: US$2,500,000) were secured by certain 
trade receivables, inventories and land of the Group a t 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009. 

(c) Certcun long term bank debts of an aggregated amount of US$325,876,000 (2009: US$112,283,000) were secured by certain of the Group's 
vessels, land and buildings, at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, as set out in note 12 to the financial statements. 

(d) Included in the non-current portion of debts was an amount of US$1,092,339,000 (2009: US$933,457,000) drawn under two revolving credit 
facilities with a term of 22 cmd 35 months ending 2 November 2012 and 1 December 2013 respectively. 

(e) Dwing the year, the Company had discounted certain tirade receivables (note 23) and made certain prepayments to suppliers which 
were funded by bank borrowings (note 24). Total bank loans drawn under these banking facilities as at 31 December 2010 amounted to 
US$484,318,000 (20og: US$339,794,000) in aggregate, certain portions of which, amounting to US$452,033,000 (2009: US$325,156,000), 
were derecognised against the associated tirade receivables and prepayments pursuant to the derecognition accounting policy. 
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29 . CONVERTIBLE BONDS 

U S $ 2 5 0 , 0 0 0 , 0 0 0 zero c o u p o n conver t ib le b o n d s d u e 13 J u n e 2014 

In June 2007, tlie Company issued US$250 million zero coupon convertible bonds. The convertible bonds are convertible into fully paid ordinaiy 

shares on and after 13 July 2007 up to the close of business on 13 May 2014 at an initial conversion price of S$2.779 per share (using a fixed exchange 

rate of S$1.5158 to US$i) as adjusted from time to time as described in the terms and conditions of the bonds. The conversion price of the bonds was 

adjusted to S$2.3i per share with effect from 26 May 2008 due to the scrip dividend of one new ordinaiy share for every five shares held, and further 

adjusted to S$1.49 per share with effect from 21 May 2010 due to scrip dividend of six new ordinaiy shares for every eleven shares held. 

Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled, the bonds wifl be redeemed at 150.234% of dieir principal amount on 13 June 2014. 

The bonds may be redeemed any time after 13 December 2009 but not less than seven business days prior to 13 June 2014 if on each of any 20 trading 

days out of the 30 consecutive trading days, prior to the date upon which notice of such redemption is given, the closing price of the shares is at least 

125% of the early redem])tion amount divided by the conversion ratio as defined in the terms and conditions of the bond. 

;he effective interest rate on the liability component of the convertible bond is 6.721%. 

'I'he bonds were classified as non-curvent liabflities as at 31 December 2009. However, as all or some of the bonds may be redeemed by the holder on 

13 June 2011 at 126.186% oftheir principal amount, the bonds were classified as current liabflities as at 31 December 2010. Subsequent to redemption 

date on 13 June 2011, any unredeemed poition of the bonds will be classified back as non-current liabilities according to the bonds final maturity 

profile of 13 June 2014. 

U S $ 1 0 , 0 0 0 , 0 0 0 zero c o u p o n conver t ih le n o t e d u e 1 J u l y 2011 

In July 2010, the Group acquired Noitlnille Product Services ("NPS") through its wholly-owned subsidiaiy, Noble Petro Inc., ft-om NIC Holding Coip 

(die "Seller"). As i)art of the consideration the Group issued a convertible note to NPS (see note 16). The convertible note may be converted at any time 

on or before i o business days prior to 1 July 2011 into ordinary shares of the Company. The initial conversion price is S$i.68 per conversion share 

based on the closing price of the Company's shares on 1 July 2010. 

30. SENIOR NOTES 

US$191,859,000 (Originally U S $ 7 0 0 , 0 0 0 , 0 0 0 Sen io r Notes d u e 17 M a r c h 2015) 

In March 2005, the Company issued 6.625% senior notes of US$700 mfllion at 99.059%. 

The Company may redeem some or afl of the senior notes at anytime on or after 17 March 2010 at the redemption prices stipulated in the agreement 

of the senior notes ("Optional Redemption"). Inaddition,theCompany may redeem afl, but not less than all, ofthe senior notes at a price equal to 

their principal amount plus the accrued and unpaid interest upon certain changes in the tax laws of any relevant tax jurisdiction. If the Company 

experiences specific kinds of change of control, unless the Company has exercised its right to redeem afl ofthe senior notes under Optional 

Redemption, each holder will have the right to require the Company to repurchase all or any part of the senior notes at a purchase price equal to 101% 

oftheir principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest. 

During the years 2008 and 2009, the Company repurchased US$508,141,000 of its US$700,000,000 6.625% senior notes. Such senior notes were 

cancelled subsequent to the repurchases, following which the total amount of senior notes outstanding was US$191,859,000. 

U S $ 5 0 0 , 0 0 0 , 0 0 0 Sen io r Notes d u e 29 May 2013 

III May 2008, the Company issued 8.500% senior notes of US$500 million at 100%. 

The Company may redeem all or any portion ofthe notes at 100% ofthe principal amount plus applicable premium plus accrued and unpaid interest 

stipulated in tiie agreement of the notes ("Optional Redemption"). At any time prior to 30 May 2011, the Company may redeem up to a maximum of 

35% of the outstanding notes, with the proceeds of certain equity offerings, at 108.500% ofthe principal amount plus accmed and unpaid interest. In 

addition, the Company may redeem all, but not less than all, of the notes at a price equal to their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest 

upon certain changes in the tax laws of any relevant tax jurisdiction. 

If the Company experiences specific kinds of change of control, unless the Company has exercised its right to redeem all of the senior notes under 

Optional Redemption, each holder wifl have the right to require the Company to repurchase afl or any part ofthe senior notes at a purchase price equal 

to joi% oftheir principal amount plus accrued and unpaid amount. 
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3 0 . SENIOR NOTES (continued) 

US$1 ,250 ,000 ,000 Sen io r Notes d u e 29 J a n u a r y 2 0 2 0 

In October 2009, the Company issued 6.750% senior notes of US$850 million at 99,105%. 

The Company may redeem some or all of tiie senior notes at any time on or after 16 October 2010 at the redemption prices stipulated in the agreement 

of the senior notes ("Optional Redemption"). In addition, the Company may redeem all, but not less than all, ofthe senior notes at a price equal to their 

principal amount plus the accrued and unpaid interest upon certain changes in the tax laws of any relevant tax jurisdiction. If the Company experiences 

specific kinds of change of control, unless the Company has exercised its right to redeem all of the senior notes under Optional Redemption, each 

holder will have the right to require the Company to repurchase all or any part of the senior notes at a purchase price equal to 101% oftheir principal 

amount plus accrued and unpaid interest. 

On 9 I'cbruaiy 2010, the Company issued another US$400 miflion 6.750% senior notes due 2020 at 103.6676% which were subsequently consolidated 

with tlie US$850 million senior notes due 2020 to form a single series US$1,250 mfllion senior notes due 29 Januaiy 2020. 

U S $ 5 0 0 , 0 0 0 , 0 0 0 Sen io r Notes d u e 5 Augus t 2015 

U S $ 2 5 0 , 0 0 0 , 0 0 0 Sen io r Notes d u e 5 Augus t 2 0 2 0 

In August 2010, the Company issued 4.875% senior notes of US$500 million at 99.842% and 6.625% senior notes of US$250 miflion at 99.704%. 

At any time, the Comjiany may redeem all or any portion of the notes at 100% ofthe principal amount plus applicable premium plus accrued and 

unpaid interest stipulated in the agreement ofthe notes ("Optional Redemption"). In addition, on 5 August 2015, the Company may redeem afl, but not 

less than all, ofthe 2020 Notes at 100% ofthe principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest to such date. The Company may redeem all, 

but not less than all, of the notes at a price equal to their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest upon certain changes in the tax laws of any 

relevant tax jurisdiction. If the Company experiences specific kinds of change of control, unless the Company has exercised its right to redeem all ofthe 

senior notes under Optional Redemption, each holder will have the right to require the Company to repurchase all or any part ofthe senior notes at a 

purchase price equal to 101% of their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid amount. 

31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 

Deferred tax assets have been recognised at 31 December 2010 in respect of tax losses arising in different tax jurisdictions that are available for offsetting 

against future taxable profits of the group companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets of US$69,507,000 (2009: US$67,023,000) have not 

been recognised in respect of those losses that have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable 

diat sufficient ta.xable profits will be avaflable against which to utilise the tax losses. 

Deferred tax assets and liabiUties have been provided at 31 December 2010 and 2009 mainly for the temporaiy differences arising fi'om the tax 

depreciation allowance in excess of related accounting depi-eciation and fair value adjustments from derivative financial instruments calculated at 

prevailing applicable tax rates. 

The movements of tiie Group's deferred tax assets and liabifities during the year are as follows; 

Defer red tax asse t s 
Losses avaflable for 

offsetting against 
ftiture taxable profit 

US$'ooo 

Fair value adjustments from 
derivative financial instruments 

and long term investments 
US$'ooo 

Total 
US$'ooo 

At 1 Januaiy 2009 

Credited/(debitcd) to tiie income statement 

Credited to equity 

2,559 

52,443 

43,331 
(59,800) 

27,777 

45,890 

(7,357) 

27,777 

At 31 December 2009 and 1 Januaiy 2010 

Credited/(debited) to the income statement 

Credited to equity 

55,002 
102,784 

11,308 

(13.007) 

15,104 

66,310 

89,777 

15,104 

At 31 December 2010 157,786 13,405 171,191 
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31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) 

31 December 2010 

Defer red tax liabili t ies 
Tax depreciation allowance 

in excess of related 
accounting depreciation 

US$'ooo 

Fair value adjustments fi'om 
derivative financial instmments 

and long term investments 
US$'ooo 

Total 
US$'ooo 

At 1 Januaiy 2009 

Acquisition of a subsidiaiy 

Liabilities included in a held for sale operation 

Disposal of a subsidiar}' 

Debited/(credited) to the income statement 

Debited to equity 

30,469 

137.610 

(136,232) 

(1,029) 

4,746 

104,805 

90,016 

(92,201) 

(2,921) 

3,386 

135,274 
227,626 

(228,433) 

(1,029) 

1,825 

3,386 

At 31 December 2009 and 1 Januaiy 2010 

Fair value adjustment 

Reversal of liabiUties from held for sale operation 

Debited/(credited) to the income statement 

Debited to equity 

35,564 

136,232 

(5.358) 

103,085 

77,189 

92,201 

123,008 

5,017 

138,649 

77,189 

228,433 

117,650 

5,017 

At 31 December 2010 166,438 400,500 566,938 

32 . CAPITAL SECURITIES 

U S $ 3 5 0 , 0 0 0 , 0 0 0 Pe rpe tua l 

During the year, the Company issued capital securities with a par value of US$350 mfllion. The capital securities are pei'petual and do not mature. 

The distribution on the capital securities is 8.5% per annum, payable in arrears every six months from the date of issue of 1 November 2010, the first 

distribution therefore being on 1 May 2011, The capital securities may be redeemed at the Group's option in whole, but not in part, on the distribution 

payment date in November 2015 or any distribution payment date thereafter on giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days' notice to the holders. 

The amount of the Company's net profit may affect the coupon payments on the capital securities. In the event of a winding-up, the rights and claims 

ofthe holders in respect ofthe capital securities shafl rank ahead of claims in respect of any ofthe Group's junior securities, but shafl be subordinated 

in right of payment to the claims of all other of present and future senior and subordinated creditors, other than the claims of holders ofthe Group's 

securities ranking pari passu with the Capital Securities. 
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3 3 . SHARE CAPITAL 

2010 

US$'ooo 
2009 

US$'ooo 

Authorised: 

12,000,000,000 (2009:12,000,000,000) shares of HK$o.25 each, 

equivalent to HK$3,ooo,ooo,ooo (2009: HK$3,ooo,ooo,ooo) 387 ,097 387,097 

Issued and fully paid: 

6,028,329,799 (2009: 3,843,794,234) shares of HK$o.25 each, 

equivalent to HK$i,507,o82,450 (2009: HK$96o,948,558) 193,492 123,493 

3 4 . RESERVES 

(a) G r o u p 

The amounts of the Group's reseives and the movements therein for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of 

changes in equity on pages 96 to 97 ofthe financial statements. 

(b) C o m p a n y 

Notes 

Issued 
capital 

US$'ooo 

Share 
premium 
US$'000 

Capital 
securities 
US$'ooo 

At I Januaiy 2009 103,736 402,444 

Total comprehensive income net of tax 

Issue of shares on exercise of share options 

Share-based payment 

Share placement 

Scrip dividends 

Amortisation of issuance expenses 

Equity-settled share option expenses 

Cash dividends 

33,35 

4 ,33 

33 

10,33 

4 ,35 
10 

205 
1,486 

16,861 

1,205 

-

-

2,457 
38,210 

716,794 

37,104 

-̂  

-

At 31 December 2009 and 1 Januaiy 2010 123,493 1,197,009 

Total coinprehensive income net of tax 

Issue of capital securities 

Issue of shares on exercise of share options 

Issue of shares on conversion of convertible bond 

Share-based payment 

Scrip dividends 

Equity-settled share option expenses 

Bonus shares issued 

Accrued dividends for capital securities 

Cash dividends 

32 

33,35 

29 

4 ,33 

10,33 

4,35 

32 

10 

-
1,078 

-
992 

245 
-

67,684 

-
-

-
16,880 

12 

56,101 

9,821 

-
(67,684) 

-
-

344,891 

At 31 December 2010 193,492 1,212,139 344,891 
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3 3 . SHARE CAPITAI^rcon/nn/ed) 

Notes: 
(a) The movements ofthe Company's issued share capital dwing the year wei'e: 

Note 
2010 

s h a r e ' o o o 

3 ,843,794 

33,515 
3 0 , 8 8 7 

11 

-
2,112,511 

7,612 

2009 
share'ooo 
(Restated) 

3,231,330 

6,343 
46,069 

~ 
522,700 

-
37,352 

At 1 Januaiy L-

Issue of shares on exercise of share options 

Share-based payment 

Issued on coiwersion of convertible bonds 

Share placement 

Effect of bonus issue on 21 May 2010 of six shares for eveiy eleven then existing shares held 

Scrip dividend 

35 

Effect of bonus issue on 21 May 2010 of six shares for eveiy eleven then existing shares held 

6 ,028 ,330 3,843,794 

2,096,615 

At 31 December 6,028,330 5,940,409 

Share-based 
payment 

rcsei-ve 
US$'ooo 

Capital 
redemption 

reseive 
US$'ooo 

Capital 
reseive 

US$'ooo 

Share 
option 

reseive 
US$'ooo 

Cashflow Xx>ng term 
hedging investment Retained 
resen'C revaluation reserve profits 

US$'ooo US$'ooo US$'ooo 
Total 

US$'ooo 

6,237 11,683 26,852 (39,828) (3.644) 711,538 1,219,018 

(26,775) 

10 

15,076 

4,833 7,826 350,132 

(38,309) 

(107,829) 

362,791 

2,662 

12,921 

733.655 

10 

15,076 
(107,829) 

(26,775) 

(22,157) 

6,237 11,693 41,928 

25,730 

(34.995) 4,182 

15,512 (1,345) 

915.532 

377,141 

(10,066) 

2,238,304 

391,308 

344,891 

17,958 

12 

34,936 

25,730 

(5,041) 

(129,543) 

(5,041) 

(129,543) 

(48,932) 6,237 11,693 67,658 (19.483) 2,837 1,148,023 2,918,555 
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35 . NOBLE GROUP PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN AND EMPLOYEES' SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 

(a) Tiic principal rules of the Noble Group Peiformance Share Plan ("PSP") and Employees' Share Option Schemes are as foflows: 

Established on 

Eligible members 

Exercise price 

M;ixiinuiii number 

Duration 

Vesting condition 

Cash settlement 

Membei's of Remuneration 
and Options Committee at 
date of report 

2001 Scheme 

11 September 2001 

2004 Scheme 

17 Januaiy 2005 

Eligible employees and executi\'e and non-executive directors 
of the Company, its subsidiaries and associates 

Market Price Options - The average of the last dealt price of 
the Company's shares, as determined by reference to the daily 
official list published by die SGX-ST, for the three consecutive 
trading days immediately preceding the offer date ofthe 
options, rounded up to the nearest \\'hole cent. 
Incentive Options - The exercise price applicable to Market 
Price Options minus a maximum discount not exceeding 
20% of such price ^\ith the prior approval obtained from the 
shareholders of the Company in a general meeting. 
In no event may the subscription prices ofthe Market Price 
Options and Incentive Options be less than the nominal value 
of the Company's shares. 

Aggregate number of Market Price Options and Incentive 
Options over which the Company may grant options on any 
date, when added to the number of shares issued and issuable 
in respect of aU options granted under the 2004 Scheme and 
other share option schemes ofthe Company, may not exceed 
15% of the issued share capital of the Company at any time. 

PSP 

27 April 2009 

Save for controlling shareholders and their 
associates (as defined under the Listing 
Manual ofthe SGX-ST) eligible employees 
and executive and non-executive directors of 
the Company and its subsidiaries. 

Not applicable as awards granted under 
the Plan represent the right of a participant 
to receive hilly paid ordinaiy shares ofthe 
Company provided that the prescribed 
performance targets are met and upon 
expiry ofthe prescribed performance period. 

Aggregated with the aggregate number of 
shares over which options are granted under 
any share option schemes ofthe Company, 
wifl be 15% of the total number of issued 
shares (excluding treasuiy shares) from time 
to time. 

10 years from the date of its adoption 

Minimum vesting period of one year with full time employment 
for Market Price Options and t^vo years for Incentive Options 

Not avaflable 

A specified period as prescribed by the 
Remuneration and Options Committee. 

Not applicable 

Messrs. Edward Wafler Rubin (Chairman), Richard Samuel Elman, Ricardo Leiman (ex-officio) and 
Robert Tze Leung Chan 

A total aivard of 950,000 (prior to bonus issue of 6 bonus shares for eveiy 11 shares on 21 May 2010) shares of the Company has been granted 

under Noble Group Performance Share Plan on 17 May 2010. 

Name of participants 

Mflton M.Au 

Tobias Josef liro^vn ' 

Iain Ferguson Bruce 

Robert Tze Leung Chan 

Dr. Kenneth Stuart Couitis 

David Gordon Eldon 

Ambassador Burton Lerin 

Edward Walter Rubin 

Alan Howard Smith 

Share of awards 

granted during 

the year ended 

31 December 2010 

100,000 

100,000 

100,000 

100,000 

100,000 

150,000 

100,000 

100,000 

100,000 

Aggregate number of 

a^vards granted since the 

commencement of Plan to 

31 December 2010 

100,000 

100,000 

100,000 

100,000 

100,000 

150,000 

100,000 

100,000 

100,000 

Aggregate number of awards 

released/forfeited since the 

commencement of Plan to 

31 December 2010 

-

(100,000) 

-
-

-

-
-

-

-

Aggregate number of 

awards outstanding as at 

31 December 2010 

100,000 

-

100,000 

100,000 

100,000 

150,000 

100,000 

100,000 

100,000 

resigned as Director and Executive Chairman since 2 November 2010. 
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(b) A summaiy of the above share option schemes is as foflows: 

2001 Scheme 2004 Scheme Total 
Number of Number of Number of 

shares options shares options shares options 

At 1 Januaiy 2009 

Granted at market prices 

Exercised 

Forfeitetl 

22,297,987 

(5,203,000) 

(330,000) 

164,953,400 

58,223,906 

(1,140,000) 

(15,219,000) 

187,251,387 

58,223,906 

(6,343,000) 

(15,549.000) 

Weighted 
average price 

US cents 

83.91 

92.98 

42.40 

88.94 

At 31 December 2009 and 1 Januaiy 2010 

Granted at market prices 

Exercised 

Forfeited 

Adjustment (due to issue of bonus shares) 

16,764,987 

(7,113,987) 

7,962,544 

206,818,306 

176,679,943 

(26,401,544) 

(110,105,093) 
135,182,280 

223,583,293 

176,679,943 

(33.515,531) 

(110,105,093) 

143,144.824 

8945 
156.85 

99-72 

130.46 

127.54 

At 31 December 2010 17.613,544 382,173.892 399,787.436 131.62 

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2010 is 2 years (2009: 2 years). The range of 
exercise prices for share options outstanding as at 31 December 2010 was US74.67 cents to US$2.66 (2009: US18.23 cents to US$2,i8), 

(c) The weighted average fair value of share options granted during the year was US85.53 cents (2009: US46.39 cents). The fair value of equity-settled 

share options granted is estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the 

options were granted. The foflo^ring table lists the inputs to the model used for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009. 

2010 2009 

Dividend yield (%) 

Expected volatility (%) 

Historical volatility (%) 

I^sk-fix;e interest rate (%) 

Expected life of option (years) 

Weighted average share price (US$) 

1-73 - 2.75 

58 
58 

0.76-1.44 

10 

1.88 

2.12 - 6.79 

58-59 
58-59 

1.33 ~ 2,01 

10 

0.97 

(d) The expected life of the options is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicati\'e of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected 

volatility reflects management's best estimate of the Company's share price volatflity to the time to maturity ofthe share option. 

Ujion the exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company as additional share capital at the nominal value 

of the shares, and the excess ofthe exercise price per share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the Company in the share premium 

accoimt. Ojitions which are cancelled or forfeited prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register of outstanding options. 
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35 . NOBLE GROUP PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN AND EMPLOYEES' SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 

(e) No share options of the above schemes have been granted to any paiticipants who are controUing shareholders ofthe Company or their associates. 

Pursuant to Rule 852(1) of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST, information required for paiticipants ofthe schemes who are directors are as follows: 

Name of participant 

Ricardo Leiman 

Richard Samuel Elman 

Harindarpal Singh Banga 

Milton M. Au 

Iain Ferguson Bruce 

Dr. Kennetii Stuart Courtis 

Robert Tze Leung Chan 

David Gordon Eldon 

Ambassador Burton Levin 

Edward Walter Rubin 

Alan Ploward Smith 

Share options 

granted during the 

year ended 

31 December 2010 

27,500,000 

-

-
-

-

-

-
-

-
-

-

Aggregate number of share 

options granted since the 

commencement of schemes 

to 31 December 2010 

81,409,090 

-

37,400,000* 

9,349,261 

386,361 

386,361 

386,361 

772,725 

386,361 

386,361 

386,361 

Aggregate number of share 

options exercised / lapsed since 

the commencement of schemes 

to siDecember 2010 

-
-

37.400,000 

8,962,900 

-

-

-
-

-
-

-

Aggregate number 

of share options 

outstanding as at 

31 December 2010 

81,409,090-

-

-

386,361* 

386,361-

386,361* 

386,361' 

772,725* 

386,361* 

386,361' 

386,361-

*• The above have been adjusted for any bonus issue proposed since options granted. 

++ The interest of 81,409,090 (as adjusted as a result ofthe bojuts issue of 6 bonus shares for every 11 shares on 21 May 2010) options have been assigned to the 
Rothschild Trust, the beneficiaries of which include the children of Mr. Leiman, and do not include Mr. Leiman. 

(f) There were no directors or employees who received 5% or more of the total number of share options available under the schemes during the year 

ended 31 December 2010 except as disclosed below. 

Name of 

participant 

Ricardo Leiman 

Kisliore Rajvanshy 

Share options granted 

during the year ended 

31 December 2010 

27,500,000 

500,000 

Aggregate number of share 

options granted since the 

commencement of schemes to 

31 December 2010 

81,409,090 

34.654.315 

Aggregate number of share 

options exercised/ lapsed since 

the commencement of schemes to 

31 December 2010 

-

31,872,500 

Aggregate number 

of share options 

outstanding as at 

31 December 2010 

81,409,000-

2,781,815" 

++ The interest of 81,409,090 (as adjusted as a result ofthe bonus issue of 6 bonus shares for eveiy 11 shares on 21 May 2010) options have been assigned to the 
Rothschild lYust, the beneficiaries of which include the children of Mr. Leiman, and do not include Mr. leiman. 

** The 2,781,815 options as adjusted as a result ofthe bonus issue of 6 bonus shares for every 11 shares on 21 May 2010. 

3 6 . FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

Effective risk management is a fundamental aspect of the Group's business operations. In the ordinaiy course ofthe Group's business, it is exposed to 

market risk, credit risk, political and countiy risk and liquidity risk. The policies for managing each of these risks are summarised below. 

(a) Marke t r isk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of assets held by the Group including financial instruments, physical commodities 

and industrial assets will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and commodity prices. The 

Group classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non-trading portfolios. The market risk for the trading portfolio is managed and 

monitored using a fully diversified portfolio Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology and stress analysis. VaR limits have been established for all 

trading operations and exposures are re\iewed daily against the limits by the Group's risk management department and senior management 

team. Non-trading positions are managed and monitored using other sensitivity analyses. 

Marke t r i sk - T r a d i n g 

Market risk for the Group's trading activities includes commodity price risk, foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Group's overall trading 

risk program seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance by using a range of derivative financial instruments to 

hedge these risk exposures. 



no'ies to finaD.cial statements . i/i^, 
31 December 2010 

3 6 . FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 

(a) Marke t r i sk Cco7i/»u(erf) 

Marke t r i sk - T r a d i n g (continued) 

The vast majority of the Group's purchase and sales transactions arising ft-om its trading activities are denominated in US dollars, which represents 

the functional currency for a majority of the business operations ofthe Group. In transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional 

currency, the specific fiiture cash flows are hedged through foreign currency hedging instruments. Accordingly, the impact arising from foreign 

currency risk on the Group's trading acti\ities is minimal. 

The Group's operating profit is substantially independent of changes in market interest rates as a significant poition ofthe Group's working capital 

financing is floating rate combined with its short cash flows cycle. The majority ofthe Group's working capital financing represents floating rate 

debt. ']"hc Group is able to substantiall}' pass through a variation in interest rates to its clients due to the short trade cycle. The rest ofthe financing 

requirement is met by fixed rate borrowings. 

The Grou])'s Boarcl of Directors has established limits for the level of acceptable risk. The Group appfles a VaR methodolog>' to assess the market 

risk positions held and to estimate the potential economic loss based upon a number of parameters and assumptions for various changes in market 

conditions, VaR is a method used in measuring financial risk by estimating the potential negative change in the market value of a portfolio at a given 

confidence level and over a specified time horizon. The Group uses a non-linear VaR model based on Monte-Carlo simulations. 

Objectives and lindtations ofthe VaR Methodology 

The Group uses simulation models to assess possible changes in the market value ofthe tiading portfofio. The VaR models are designed to measure 

market risk in a normal market environment. The models assume that any changes occurring in the risk factors affecting the normal market 

onvironnient will follow a normal distribution. The distribution is calculated by using exponentially weighted historical data. The use of VaR has 

limitations because it is based on historical correlations and volatflities in market prices and assumes that fiiture price movements will follow a 

statistical distribution. Due to tiie fact that VaR rehes heavily on historical data to provide information and may not clearly predict the future changes 

and modifications of the risk factors, the probability of large market moves may be underestimated if changes in risk factors fafl to align with the 

normal distribution assumption. The VaR may also be under or over-estimated due to the assumptions placed on risk factors and the relationship 

between such factors for specific instruments. Even though positions may change throughout the day, the VaR only represents the risk of the poitfolios 

at tiie close of each business day, and it does not account for any losses that may occur beyond the 95% confidence level. 

In practice die actual trading results wifl differ ft'om the inferred VaR calculation and, in particular, the calculation does not provide a meaningful 

indication of profits and losses in stressed market conditions. To determine the reliabflity ofthe VaR models, actual outcomes are back tested regularly 

to test the validity of the assumptions and the parameters used in the VaR calculation. Market risk positions are also subject to regular stress tests to 

ensure tiiat the Group would withstand an extreme market event. 

VoR assumptions 

Within tiic model limitations the VaR that the Group measures is an estimate, using a confidence level of 95% ofthe potential loss that is not expected 

to be exceeded if tiie current market risk positions were to be held unchanged for one day. The use of a 95% confidence level means that, within a one 

day horizon, losses exceeding the VaR figure are not expected to occur, on average, more than once eveiy twenty days. 

At 31 December 2010, tiie Group's consohdated VaR as a percentage of prevafling shareholders' equity was 0.62% (2009: 0.46%) and the average daily, 

highest and lowest for tiie year of 2010 was 0.66%, 1,53% and 0.30% (2009: 0.79%, 1.60% and 0.30%). 

Marke t r i sk - Non- t r ad ing 

Interest rote risk 

The Group's non-trading interest rate risk arises ft'om interest bearing cash and cash equivalents, loans receivables as wefl as ft-om debt obligations and 

other loans. The Group manages its exposure to interest rate risk by using a combination of fixed and floating rate debt as well as interest rate swaps in 

consideration of tiie Group's overall interest rate exposure ft'om time to time as wefl as the current and forecast interest rate environment. 
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36, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 

(a) Market risk (continued) 

Market risk - Non-trading (continued) 

The following table sets out the can-ying amounts, by maturity, ofthe Group's variable interest rate cash and cash equivalents, loan receivables and 
borrowings that are exposed to interest rate risk as at 31 December: 

2010 

Cash and cash equivalents Loan receivables Current bank debts Long term bank debts 
US$'ooo US$'ooo US$'ooo US$'ooo 

On demand or < 3 months 
3-12 months 
1-2 years 
2 - 5 years 
> 5 years 

1,605.589 11,910 

16,612 

42,606 

68,991 

4.072 

1,060,830 

241,951 

-
-
-

123,806 

101,663 

574,513 
876,806 

154,625 

Total 1,605,589 144,191 1,302,781 1,831,413 

2009 

Cash and cash equivalents 
US$'ooo 

Loan receivables Current bank debts Long tei-m bank debts 
US$'ooo US$'ooo US$'ooo 

On demand or < 3 months 
3 -12 months 
1-2 years 
2-5 years 
> 5 years 

937,287 7,901 

20,288 

18,020 

26,937 

12,215 

346,634 
125,629 

-
-
-

27,036 

109,869 

50,347 

1,052,778 

29,934 

Total 937,287 85,361 472,263 1,269,964 

Foreign currency risk 
The Group is exposed to currency risks fi'om its operating, investing and financing activities. Foreign exchange management is overseen by the Group's 
treasuiy department in Hong Kong, our regional offices and in some operating companies, which are afl subject to the Group's foreign exchange 
policies. As stated above, the vast majority of the Group's trading activities are denominated in US dollars, which represents the functional currency for 
the majority of the business operations ofthe Group. The Group has a policy of squaring all its foreign currency risk from its trading activities. Thus the 
impact arising ft-om foreign currency risk on the Group's trading activities is minimal. The Group also uses foreign exchange hedging in respect of its 
more significant operating expenses. 

The Group publishes its consolidated financial statements in US dollars and as a result, it is also subject to foreign currency exchange translation risk 
in resjiect of the results and underlying net assets of its foreign operations. Net investments in foreign countries are long term investments. Their 
fair value changes through movements in currency exchange rates. In the very long term, however, the difference in the inflation rate correlates to 
the currency exchange rate mo\'ements, so that the market value ofthe foreign non-monetaiy assets wifl compensate for the change due to currency 
movements. For this reason, the Group only hedges the net investments in foreign subsidiaries in exceptional circumstances. 

Commodity risk 
Certain commodity positions of the Group are regarded as structural. These positions are not included in the VaR model but are managed separately by 
management through use of position limits. The sensitivity ofthe value of these commodity positions, and the corresponding impact on net profit after 
tax, for a 0.5% movement in the relevant underlying price is US$788,000 (2009: US$3,900,000). The actual price movement may exceed that which 
has been used to show the sensitivity. 

(b) Credit risk 
The Group is exposed to credit risk ft-om its operating activities and certain financing and investing activities. Concentrations of credit risks exist when 
changes in economic, industiy or geographic factors similarly affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation 
to the Group's total credit exposure. The Group's exposure to credit risk is broadly diversified along industry, product and geographic lines, and 
transactions are entered into with a diverse group of counteiparties, Financial assets which potentiaUy expose the Group to credit risk consist of cash 
and cash equivalents, marketable securities, receivables, prepayments and derivative insti-uments. The Group manages its exposure to credit risk via 
credit risk management jioUcies which establish credit risk limits based on the overall financial strength of a counterpai-ty. 
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3 6 . FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 

(b) Credi t r i s k (continued) 

The Group's cash and cash equivalents and short term deposits are placed with a diversified group of high quality financial institutions. Significant cash 

levels are maintained with institutions which are investment grade rated. 

Countei-paity credit risk arises from our normal business operations involving purchases and sales transactions, and thus receivables, as well as 

transactions which may involve a financing risk, for example associated with prepayments. These risks are addressed by indi\idual counterpaity 

analysis and the creation of risk limits which are monitored on an ongoing basis. Given the nature of our business operations, which involves a 

diversified counterparty base across a global business platform, the impact of individual risk exposure is reduced. Further our trade receivables related 

payment risk is reduced as a high proportion of our trade receivables are either investment grade rated or ^ve have received a letter of credit from an 

investment grade rated financial institution. We also frequendy utflise insurance and banking markets to minimise counterpai-ty risk exposure. 

Credit risk associated mth our hedging acti\ities is largely managed through trading on established commodity exchanges. Hedging activities in the 

over-the-counter market are largely confined to investment grade counterparties, . 

The maximum exposure to credit risk before the consideration of coflateral or other credit enhancements received is represented by the canying 

amounts ofthe financial assets that are carried in the statement of financial position, including derivatives with positive market value. 

The Group also obtains guarantees, collateral, credit enhancements, and insurance to manage, reduce or minimise other credit risk. As at 31 December 

2010, the fair value of such eoflaterals and credit enhancements, including cash deposits, parent company guarantees, letters of credit and credit 

insurances, was US$2,435,782,000 (2009: US$1,750,914,000). 

As at 31 December 2010, trade receivables at nominal value of US$53,357,000 (2009: US$51,976,000) were impaired and ftflly provided for. 

Movements in the pro\ision for impairment of receivables were as follows: 

2010 2009 

U S $ ' o o o US$'ooo 

At 1 Januaiy 

Provision for impairment 

Amounts wTitten off 

51,976 

11,337 
(9,956) 

52,702 

23.216 

(23,942) 

At 31 December 

As at 31 December, the analysis of trade receivables outstanding 

2010 

2009 

Total 
US$'ooo 

2,061,274 

1,140,571 

< 30 days 

US$'ooo 

2 ,008,757 

1,083,714 

with no provision for impairment is as folio 

31-60 days 

US$'ooo 

18,119 

26,808 

61-90 days 

US$'ooo 

8 8 7 

7,509 

53,357 

ws: 

91 -120 days 

US$'ooo 

24,437 

11,218 

51,976 

> 120 days 

US$'ooo 

9,074 

11,322 

(c) Polit ical a n d c o u n t r y r i sk 

The Group trades its products in many countries and manages its exposure to country risk through its insurance department located in Hong Kong and 

Singapore. We mitigate our political and countiy risk by transferring such risk to or othenvise covering such risk with major financial institutions and 

in the political risk insurance market. The Group may be required to i-etain a srnafl portion ofthe risk in conjunction with the transfer of the risk. 

(d) Liquidi ty r i sk 

The Group's liquidity risk management strategy includes: (a) projecting cashflo^vs from operations and investment activities by major currency 

(b) maintaining sufficient cash and liquid investments, (c) availing of funding through access to committed credit facilities, (d) accessing to a diverse 

number of banking facilities under bi-lateral credit facilities, (e) maintaining a diversified tenor of financing instruments to reduce re-financing risk, 

and (f) creating market access to a diverse array of funding products ivith i-vhich to access a broad investor base ivliile creating additional flexibility with 

respect to terms and conditions, interest rate mix, and other financial considerations. 

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of US$1,605,589,000 (2009: US$937,287,000). As at 31 December 2010, the 

Group had committed banking facflities totaling US$6,970,038,000 (2009: US$3,843,800,000), under which the Group had access to the issuance 

of letters of credit and guarantees as wefl as revolving credit loans and margin deposit facflities of which US$3,619,528,000 was available (2009: 

US$1,810,810,000). 
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36 . FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 

(d) Liquidi ty r i sk (continued) 

The Group also possesses bi-lateral bank facilities with over 60 banks totaling US$7,582,974,000 (2009: US$5,145,480,000) under which the Group 

had access to cash borrowings and trade finance products. 

The table below summarises the maturity profile ofthe Group's financial liabflities at 31 December based on contractual undiscounted payments. 

G r o u p 

Trade and Guarantees 

other payables Derivative given in 

Convertible Senior and accrued financial connections with 

Bank debts bonds notes liabilities instruments facflities granted Total 

USS'ooo US$'ooo US$'ooo US$'ooo US$'ooo US$'ooo US$'ooo 

2010 

On demand 

< 3 months 

3 -12 months 

1 - 5 years 

> 5 years 

6,855 

1,177,781 

343,614 

1,451,319 
154,625 

310,841 

-
-
-

1,182,467 

1.496,777 

1,679,039 
1,806,980 

178,181 

-
-

354,413 
648,295 

954.509 

467,557 
16,081 

-
-

696 

-
-

2,040,307 

3.633,056 

1,787,841 

3,101,343 

1.667,483 

Total 3,134,194 310,841 2,679,244 3 ,664 ,200 2 ,440 ,855 6 9 6 12 ,230,030 

2009 

On demand 

< 3 months 

3-12 months 

1 - 5 years 

> 5 years 

3,711 

369,959 

235,498 

1,103,125 

29,934 

280,039 

-
-
-

494,026 

1,024,847 

1,996,977 
371,142 

64,218 

-
-

209,679 
188,410 

631.239 
149,962 

2,613 

2,210,367 

929,511 

930,955 
2,027,152 

1,057.394 

Total 1,742,227 2 8 0 , 0 3 9 1,518,873 2,432,337 1,181,903 7,155,379 

C o m p a n y 

Bank debts 

US$'ooo 

513,993 
7,800 

1,099,687 

-

Convertible 

bonds 

US$'ooo 

-
310,841 

-
-

Senior 

notes 

US$'ooo 

-
-

1,182,467 

1,496,777 

Accrued 

liabilities 

US$'ooo 

2,385 

73,574 
40,868 

-
-

Derivative 

financial 

instruments 

US$'ooo 

5,232 

13,118 

15,772 

7,324 

Guarantees 

given in 

connections with 

facilities granted 

US$'ooo 

1,329,237 

744,896 

295,883 

300,926 

122,971 

Total 

US$'ooo 

1,331.622 

1,337,695 
668,510 

2,598,852 

1,627,072 

2010 

On demand 

< 3 niontiis 

3 -12 months 

1 - 5 years 

> 5 years 

Total 1,621,480 310,841 2,679,244 116,827 41,446 2,793,913 7,563,751 

2009 

On demand 

< 3 months 

3-12 months 

1-5 years 

> 5 years 

-
41,372 

1,786 

933,457 

-

-
-
-

280,039 

-

-
-
-

494,026 

1,024,847 

2,896 

34,726 

15.533 

-
-

-
18,847 
22,074 

17,219 
2,073 

190,026 

403,679 
665,926 

245,061 

24,695 

192,922 

498,624 

705,319 
1,969,802 

1,051,615 

Total 976,615 2 8 0 , 0 3 9 1,518,873 53,155 60,213 1,529,387 4 ,418,282 
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37. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Group recognises all derivative financial instruments on the statement of financial position at fair value. The Group's definition of a derivative 

financial instrument includes forward purchase and sale contracts for commodities which do not form part of the Group's manufacturing or processing 

activities. Derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedges are adjusted to fair value through the income statement. If a derivative 

financial instrument is a cash flow hedge, changes in the fair value ofthe derivatives are recognised in a separate component of equity untfl the hedged 

item is recognised in earnings. Any ineffective portion of a hedging derivative's change in fair value is i-ecognised in the income statement. 

The fair values of derivative financial instruments as other receivable/other payable as at 31 December 2010 are included in the statement of financial 

position as follows: 

Matur i ty 

Less than 1 year 
US$'ooo 

1 - 2 years 
US$'ooo 

2 - 3 years 
US$'ooo 

3 - 4 years 
US$'ooo 

Over 4 years 
US$'ooo 

Total 
\JS$'ooo 

2010 
' Fo r t r a d i n g p u r p o s e s r e c o r d e d in : 

Odier receivables 

Commodity contzacts 

Foreign exchange contracts 

Interest rate swap 

2,041,069 

85,379 

2,877 

333,191 

59,923 

2,877 

174,196 

18,168 

1.439 

23,265 

13.485 

42,121 

1,101 

2,613,842 

178,056 

7.193 

Other payables 

Connnodity contracts 

Foreign exchange contracts 

Interest rate swap 

F o r cashflow hedges p u r p o s e s r eco 
Other receivables 

Commodity contracts 

Foreign exchange contracts 

(1,649,590) 

(7-079) 

r d e d in : 

15.717 
28,274 

(270,466) 

1,177 

2,353 

(73,097) 

(84) 

-

(27,973) 

-

(14,521) 

(2,550) 

-

(2,035,647) 

(7.079) 

(2,634) 

16,894 
30,627 

Other payables 

Commodity contracts 

Foreign exchange contracts 

Interest rate swaps 

(283,345) 

(1,149) 

(16,054) 

(35,643) 

(6,886) 

(34,098) 

(5.197) (3,475) (9,648) 

(353,086) 

(1,149) 
(41,260) 

2 0 0 9 
For t r a d i n g p u r p o s e s r e c o r d e d in : 

Other receivables 

Commodity contracts 

Foreign exchange contracts 

792,416 

21,906 

165,063 14,133 55.227 16,719 1,043,558 

21,906 

Other payables 

Commodity contracts 

Foreign exchange contracts 

Fo r cashflow hedges p u r p o s e s r eco 
Other receivables 

Commodity contracts 

Foreign exchange contracts 

(948,890) 

(5,404) 

r d e d in : 

7,040 

30,497 

(73,832) 

(253) 

8,513 

-

1,586 

(1,140) 

-

-

: 

(1,023,862) 

(5,657) 

7.040 

40,596 

Other payables 

Commodity contracts 

Foreign exchange contracts 

Interest rate swaps 

(31,823) 

(23.835) 

(19.376) 

(17,472) 

(10,521) 

(23,007) 

(3,065) 

(7,320) 

(2,248) 

(10,259) 

(3,458) 

(89,881) 

(23,835) 
(38,668) 

Cashflow hedges 

As at 31 December 2010, the Group entered into foreign exchange fonvard contracts designated as hedges for the purcliases of raw materials and 

settlement of selling and administrative expenses; interest rate swaps designated as hedges for finance costs on bank debt; foiward freight agreements 

designated as hedges for vessel chartering contracts; and oil and coal swap contracts designated as hedges for the sales of coal produced from the 

Group's coal mines. 

The cash flow hedges were assessed to be highly effective. Included in equity as at 31 December 2010 were net unrealised losses after non-controlling 

interests in aggregate of US$279,882,000 (2009: US$161,398,000). 
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3 8 . FAIR VALUE OF FINANCLVL INSTRUMENTS 

Canying 
2010 
i'ooo 

amount 
2009 

US$'ooo 

Fair value 

2010 
U S $ ' o o o 

2009 
US$'ooo 

Convertible bonds 

Senior notes 
322,534 

2,679,244 

291,732 
1,518,873 

453,513 

2,894,124 

397,115 

1,641,413 

# Convertible bonds comprise the liability component and the equity component of US$310,841,000 (2009: US$280,039,000) and US$11,693,000 
(2009: US$11,693,000), respectively. 

The Group's long term investments and derivative financial instruments are carried in the statement of financial position at their fair values. The 
canning amounts of the Group's bank borrowings which bear floating interest rates approximate to their fair values. 

Market values have been used to determine the fair value of listed convertible bonds, listed senior notes and listed long term investments. The fair 
value of bank debts and borrowings has been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates. The fair value ofthe 
majority of commodity fonvard purchase and sale contracts and other derivative financial instruments are determined by reference to quoted market/ 
futures prices at the close of business at the statement of financial posflion date. Certain commodity forwards are valued using valuation models that 
make use of management estimates in addition to quoted market data. US$41,000,000 (2009: US$43,ooo,ooo unrealised gains) was recognised as 
unrealised losses for tho j'car in the income statement in relation to these contracts. 

The following iinanciai assets and liabilities are not carried at fair value in the statement of financial position: 

(i) Unlisted long term equity investments 
Certain unlisted long term equity investments are generally carried at cost as their fair values could not be reliably measured. 

(ii) Bank balances, trade receivables and payables, other receivables and payables, and all receivable and payable balances with subsidiaries, jointly 
controlled entities and associates. The canying amounts of these balances approximate to their fair values because of the immediate or short 
term maturity of these financial instruments. 

Fair va lue h i e r a r c h y 
The Group uses die following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique: 

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabflities. 

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on obsei'vable market data. 

Assets /Liabi l i t ies m e a s u r e d at fair va lue : 

G r o u p 
As at 31 December 2010 

Level 1 
US$'ooo 

Level 2 
US$'ooo 

L e v e l s 
US$'ooo 

Total 
US$'ooo 

Financial assets 
Derivative financial instruments 

Commodity contracts 
Foreign exchange contracts 
bitcrcst rate s\vaps 

615,867 
68,419 

2,014,869 
140,264 

7,193 

2,630,736 
208,683 

7,193 

Ix)ng term investments 81,526 75,522 329,000 486,048 

Financial liabflities 
Derivative financial instruments 

Commodity contracts 
Foreign exchange contracts 
Interest rate swaps 

(1,365,530) 
(5,932) 
(4,743) 

(1,023,203) 
(2,296) 

(39,151) 

(2,388,733) 
(8,228) 

(43,894) 

As at 31 December 2009 

Financial assets 
Derivative financial instruments 

Commodity contracts 
Foreign exchange contracts 

300,432 
36,922 

750,166 
25,580 

1.050,598 
62,502 

Long term investments 30,174 56.541 86,715 
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3 8 . FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 

Assets /Liabi l i t ies m e a s u r e d a t fair va lue (continued) 

31 December 2010 

G r o u p (continued) 
As at 31 December 2009 (continued) 

Level 1 
US$'ooo 

Level 2 
US$'ooo 

L e v e l s 
US$'ooo 

Tota l 
US $'000 

Financial liabflities 
Derivative financial instruments 

Commodity contracts 
Foreign excliange contracts 
Interest rate s^vaps 

(489,068) 
(7,946) 

(624,675) 
(21,546) 
(38,668) 

(1.113,743) 
(29,492) 
(38,668) 

The movement in fair value measurement in level 3 during the years are as foflows: 

I/>ng term investment - unlisted 
2010 

U S $ ' o o o 
2009 

US$'ooo 

At 1 Januaiy 

Total gains recognised in other comprehensive income 3 2 9 , 0 0 0 

At .'31 December 3 2 9 , 0 0 0 

C o m p a n y 
As at 31 December 2010 

Level 1 
US$'ooo 

Level 2 
US$'ooo 

Level 3 
US$'ooo 

Total 
US$'ooo 

Financial assets 
Derivative financial instruments 

Foreign exchange contracts 
biterest rate swaps 

21,628 

7,193 

21,628 

7,193 

Ixjng term investments 55,622 55,622 

Financial liabilities 
Derivative financial instruments 

Foreign exchange contracts 
Interest rate swaps 

(2,296) 

(39,150) 
(2,296) 

(39,150) 

As at 31 December 2009 

Financial assets 
Derivative financial instruments 

Foreign exchange contracts 
Interest rate swaps 

15.035 
1,880 

15,035 
1,880 

Long term itivcstinents 21,743 21,743 

Financial liabilities 
Derivative financial instruments 

Foreign exchange contracts 
Interest ratesu'aps 

(21,545) 
(38,668) 

(21,545) 
(38,668) 

During the year, there were no transfer into or out of level 3 fair value measurement (2009: Nil). 

http://iim.es
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3 9 . CAPITAL MANAGEMENT' 

The Groujj's capital management focuses on ensuring the ability to continue as an ongoing concern in order to provide an adequate return to our 

shareholders and economic benefits for our other stakeholders. 

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in consideration of many factors including (a) the changes in general 

economic conditions, (b) the availability of comparatively advantageous financing strategies, (c) the cost of financing and (d) the impact of changes 

in our liquidity and funding to our commercial activities. In order to adjust or maintain the capital stnicture, the Group may issue debt of either 

a fixed or floating nature, arrange committed debt facilities, issue new shares, adjust dividend payments, or consider investments in or the sale of 

assets or businesses. 

The Group is permitted to purchase its own shares in the market and keeps them as treasuiy shares under a shareholder approved plan which permits 

a 20% share buyback policy. The policy is reviewed annually and re-approved at the general shareholders' meeting each year. 

The Group assesses the o\'erall need for capital to be utilised in its business acti\ities taking into account the intended use of the capital. In addition, we 

assess the use ofthe capital with respect to several factors including its cost, avaflabflity, and our abiUtyto generate adequate returns in the future. Our 

primaiy use of capital in 2010 was for working capital and capital investments. 

We calculate the level of capital required to finance our working capital requirements using traditional and modified financial metrics including 

working capital/sales and adjusted working capital to sales (to take into account non-cash items in working capital). In addition, we utiHse debt 

capital to finance a portion of our working capital requirements and monitor the level of working capital debt using net adjusted working capital which 

takes into account the application of cash. The net adjusted working capital ofthe Group increased from US$2,642 miflion at 31 December 2009 to 

US$3,547 million at 31 December 2010 due primarily to the increase in commodity price levels which in tiirn increased revenue levels. 

The Group assesses the level of debt capital used to finance capital investment in respect ofthe projected risk and retm-ns of these investments 

using a number of traditional investment and analytical models including discounted cash flows. We also assess the use of debt capital to fund such 

investments relati\'e to the impact on the Group's overall debt capital position and capital structure. 

Generally, tiie Group will look to maintain a capita! structure w^hich maintains a debt/capital mix which allows the Group to maintain a satisfactory 

debt sei-vicing ability within historical levels as well as to achieve or maintain investment grade ratings fi-om the international credit rating agencies. 

We monitor the le\'el of debt by calculating the Group's net adjusted financial debt (gross debt less cash) to take into account that inventoiy which 

has been pre-sold or hedged. We believe this modified metric is meaningful as it reflects the quality, liquidity, short duration and existence of widely 

available markets with which we can readily convert our im-entory assets to cash. 

At 31 December 2010 the Group's financial debt exceeded its liquid assets (being cash and cash equivalents plus readily marketable inventories) by 

US$833 million (2009: Liquid assets exceeded financial debt US$645 mfllion). 

In order to ensure we have adequate capital we regularly assess and quantify the potential capital requirements of the Group in respect to both 

statement of financial posflion use as well as the use of capital in respect of our trading positions. 

Ca])ital is calculated as the total debt and equity which is available to the Group. At present we calculate the sum of total bank and capital market debt 

and equity capital ofthe Group to be US$10,097 miflion (2009: US$6,496 miflion) consisting of US$6,124 million (2009: US$3,541 miflion) of short 

and long term debt and US$3,973 niillion (2009; US$2,g55 million) consisting of equity capital. During the year the level of equity capital rose mainly 

due to issue of cajiital securities, new share issues, increased retained earnings less dividends paid. We assess the overall level of debt in the capital 

structure by calculating the Group's total debt/book capitahsation. At 31 December 2010 the ratio was at 61% (2009: 55%). 

The increase in debt capital reflected management's determination tiiat the debt capital could be deployed to obtain higher returns for shareholders. At 

31 December 2010 the Group's return on opening shareholders' capital after payment of those interest and related costs was 20.5% compared to 30.0% 

at 31 December 2009. 
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4 0 . OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 

(a) As lessor 

The Group leases its vessels under operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging ft-om 19 days to 72 months 

(2009: 19 days to 3.8 months). Future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due as at 

31 December 2010 were as foflows: 

2010 

U S $ ' o o o 

2009 

US$'ooo 

Within one year 

til the second to fifth years, inclusive 

After Ave years 

33,745 

65,571 

11,498 

9,955 

110,814 9,955 

(b) As lessee 

The Group leases certain of its vessels and office properties under operating lease arrangements for terms up to 20 years. Future minimum lease 

rentals payable under non-canceflable operating leases as at 31 December 2010 were as follows: 

2010 

U S $ ' o o o 

2009 

US$'ooo 

Witiiin one year 

In die second to fifth years, inclusive 

After five years 

168,928 

313,394 

330 ,935 

131,929 

251,407 

184,908 

813,257 568,244 

41 , CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 

At 31 December 2010, the Group has entered into contracts to acquire certain property, plant and equipment of US$185,568,000 

(2009: US$261,400,000) which have not been provided for in the financial statements. 

4 2 . CONIINGENT'LIABILITIES 

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had US$696,000 contingent habflities in respect of guarantees given to the banks and financial institutions 

for banking facilities granted. As at 31 December 2009, the Group had no contingent liabflities. 

TJic Company liad contingent liabilities as follovra: 

2010 
U S $ ' o o o 

11,693,099 
2,215,908 

4,316,878 

578 ,005 

2009 
US$'ooo 

7,689,426 

1,349,335 

2,393,308 

180,052 

Guarantees given to the banks and financial institutions for banking facilities granted 

Utilised facilities 

Guarantees given to trade counterparties 

Utilised facilities 
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4 3 , RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

During the year, die Group made sales to, purchases and commission income from associates of US$7,323,000 (2009: US$54,000), US$172,338,000 

(2009: US$n6,030,ooo) and US$7,039,000 (2009: US$2,889,000) respectively. The directors considered that the sales, purchases and commission 

income were made according to prices and conditions simflar to those offered to other vendors and customers ofthe associates. 

Details of the Group's balances with jointly controfled entities and associates as at the statement of financial position date are included in notes 17 and 

18 to tiie financial statements, respectively. 

In addition to the above transactions, the Company had the following income and expense from the subsidiaries and associates: 

2010 

U S $ ' o o o 

2009 

US$'ooo 

Interest income 

Interest expense 

Commission on guarantee provided 

198,086 

(37,520) 

20 ,401 

109,185 
(13,906) 

1,263 

Details of the key head office management personnel's remuneration are included in note 6 to the financial statements. 

4 4 . EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 

Subsequent to the statement of financial position date, the directors recommend the payment of a cash dividend of US 2.5 cents per share. The 

dividend proposals arc subject to the shareholders' approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting. 

In addition, under tiie Company's Scrip Dividend Scheme (the "Scheme"), shareholders entitied to this dividend may elect to receive either cash or an 

allotment of ordinary shares in the Company credited as fully paid in lieu of cash. The payment ofthe scrip dividend wifl be subject to the receipt of 

in-prhiciple approval from the SGX-ST for the listing and quotation of the new shares wiiich may be issued under the Scheme in connection with the 

final dividend. 

The Group announced on 20 December 2010 its intent to acquire Cerradnho Acuar, Etanol eEnergia S.A. and its two sugar mifls, Catanduva and 

Potirendaba, botii fully operational in Sao Paulo State in Brazfl. The acquisition was in progress at the end ofthe reporting period. 

4 5 . COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 

The presentation of the consolidated income statement has been revised to achieve a more precise representation of the revenue sources of 

the Group. Accordingly, certain comparative amounts have been reclassified and restated to conform with the current year's presentation and 

accounting treatment. 



notes to iiiiancial statements 

31 December 2010 

4 6 . LIST OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 

Name 

Place of incorporation 

/registration 

Nominal value of 

issued share capital Principal activities 

Chongqing Xiiifu Food Co., Ltd" 

Cocaf Ivoire. S.A.' 

Donaldson Coal Holdings Limited' 

Donaldson Coal Pty Ltd -' 

Evera Sociedad Anonima Comerical' 

Fleet Management Limited' 

Fleet Ship Management Inc. 

Gloucester Coal Ltd ' 

Longkou Xinlong Edible Oil Co., Ltd." 

Nantong Noble Grain and Protein 

Co., Ltd." 

Newcastie Coal Company Pty Limited 

Nohle Americas Corp. 

Noble Americas Energ>' 

Solutions LLC 

Noble Americas Gas & Power Corp. 

Noble Argentina S.A.' 

Noble Brasil S.A.' 

Noble Canada Inc. 

Noble Carbon Credits Limited -

Noble Chartering Inc. 

Noble Chartering Limited' 

Noble Clean Fuels Limited' 

The PRC 

Ivoiy Coast 

Australia 

Australia 

Uruguay 

Hong Kong 

British Virgin Islands 

Australia 

The PRC 

The PRC 

Australia 

United States of America 

United States of America 

United States of America 

Argentina 

Brazfl 

Canada 

Ireland 

British Virgin Islands 

Hong Kong 

United Kingdom 

USDl2,000,000 

Francs CFA 

2,100,000,000 

AUD200,682,78i 

AUD3,636,ii5 

UYU43,20o,ooo 

HK$2 

USD20 

AUD28,o89,4i2 

USD20,ooo,ooo 

USD30,ooo,ooo 

AUD2,ooi,429 

USDS 

USD3i,83i,856 

USDi,ooo 

Argentina Peso 

188,910,508 

BRL739.9i6,2i5 

Common CADi 

Redeemable CAD5,i72,ooo 

EURi 

USD50,ooo 

HK$2 

Ordinary GBPi,25O,O00 

Redeemable USDio,ooo,ooo 

Soybean crushing and 

refining activities 

Supply of agricultural products 

Holding company 

Coal mining 

Supply of agricultural products 

Technical shipment semces 

Technical ship management services 

Coal mining 

Soybean crushing and 

refining activities 

Soybean crushing and 

refining acti\ities 

Coal mining 

Supply of industrial and 

energy products 

Retafl power energy and 

electricity marketer 

Supply of energj'products 

Supply of agricultural products 

Sugar crushing and 

ethanol production 

Supply of agricultural and 

energj' products 

Trading of carbon emission credits 

Ship chartering 

Provision of management services 

Supply of energy products 
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4 6 . LIST OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (contimied) 

Name 

Place of incoiporation 

/registration 

Nominal value of 

issued share capital Principal activities 

Noble Petro Inc. 

Noble Resources UK Limited ' 

Noble Europe Limited" 

Noble Mount Investments Limited -

Noble Netheriands B.V. 

Noble Paraguay Sociedad Anonima" 

Noble Resources Limited * 

Noble Resources Group Limited 

Noble Resources Pte. Ltd.' 

Noble Resources SA' 

Noble Trade Finance Hong Kong Limited * 

PT Pelayaran Nasional Tanjungriau Sei-vics 

PTSanga Coal Indonesia' 

PT Henrison Inti Persada " 

Qinzliou Dayang Cereals 

and Oils Comi)any Limited'' 

Stelmont Group Limited 

Summer Fortune Limited -' 

United States of America 

United Kingdom 

United Kingdom 

Hong Kong 

Netherlands 

Paraguay 

Hong Kong 

British Virgin Islands 

Singapore 

Switzerland 

Hong Kong 

Indonesia 

Indonesia 

Indonesia 

The PRC 

British Virgin Islands 

Hong Kong 

USDi,ooo 

GBP50,ooi 

GBP520 

HK$i 

EURi44,ioi,400 

PYGio,ooo,ooo,ooo 

HK$io,ooo 

USD253,702,965 

S$287,8io,092 

CHF3,900,ooo 

HK$2 

RP57,66o,000,000 

RPi8,240,ooo,ooo 

RP276,744,ooo,ooo 

RMBioo,ooo,ooo 

USD38,o64.267 

HK$i 

Supply of energy products 

Supply of industrial and energy products 

Provision of management semces 

Ship ownership 

Investment holding 

Operation of ports elevators 

Supply of industrial products 

Investment holding 

Supply of agricultural, 

industrial and energy products 

Supply of agricultiiral, 

industrial and energy products 

Provision of trade finance semces 

Barge operation 

Coal mining 

Supply of agricultural products 

Soybean crushing and 

refining activities 

Investment holding 

Ship ownership 

# Statutory auditor - Ernst & Young 
* Statutory auditor ~ Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore 
^ Statutory auditor - other CPAjirm 

31ie Company held 100% equity interests in all the above subsidiaries as at 31 December 2010 and 2009, except Gloucester Coal Ltd and PT Henrison 

Inti Persada in which the Company held a 65.3% (2009: 87.7%) and a 51% (2009: nil) interest respectively as at 31 December 2010. 

All the subsidiaries, other than Noble Resources Group Limited, are indirectly held by the Company. The above list of subsidiaries of the Company, in 

the opinion ofthe directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion ofthe net assets ofthe Group. To give detafls of 

otiicr subsidiaries would, in the opinion ofthe directors, result in particulars of excessive length. 
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDERS 

Authorised share capital 

Issued and fully paid-up capital 

Class of shares 

Voting rights 

HK$3,ooo,ooo,ooo 

HK$i,585,ii7,907-50 

Share of HK$o.25 each 

The rights and privileges ofthe shares are stated in the Bye-laws ofthe Company 

Size of s h a r e h o l d i n g s 

1 -999 

1,000 - 10,000 

10,001-1,000,000 

1,000,001 & above 

Total 

No. of s h a r e h o l d e r s 

1.407 

14,983 

5.932 

39 

22,361 

% of s h a r e h o l d e r s 

6.29 

67.01 

26.53 

0.17 

1 0 0 . 0 0 

No . of s h a r e s 

550,319 

72,341,202 

212,825,609 

6,054,754,500 

6,340,471,630 

% o f s h a r e s 

0.01 

1.14 

3.36 

95-49 

1 0 0 . 0 0 

?i Based on information provided in die Register of Members and the Depositoiy Register as of 11 March 2011. 

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS* 

N a m e 

Noble Holdings Limited'^ 

, I^xdale International Limited 

Best Investment Corporation* 

(China Investment Corporation) 

Direc t i n t e r e s t 

No . of S h a r e s He ld 

1,414,545,125 

372,450,705 

933,298,479 

% of Sh a reh o l d i n g s 

22.31 

5-87 

14.72 

D e e m e d in t e r e s t 

No. of S h a r e s He ld 

16,948,227 

-

-

% of Sha reho ld ings 

0.27 

-

-

The shareholding spread ofthe Company complies with Rule 723 of the Listing Manual as of 11 March 2011. 56.44 percent of the Company's Shares was held 

in the hands ofthe public. 

* Based on nolijications received from substantial shareholders, and as shown in the Register of Substantial Shareholders, 

'̂  Noble Holdings Limited (''NHL'Ts aggregate interest is 1,431,493,352 shares comprising (a) 1,414,545,125 shares as direct interest (being shares held by NHL); and (b) 
16,948,227 shares as deemed interest (being shares held by Temple Trading Asia Limited, a whoUy-owned subsidiaiy of NHL). 

# The 933,298,479 shares held by Best Investment Corporation ("Best Investmeyd") are registered in tlie name of Best Investment's depository agent, HSBC (Singapore) 
Nominees Pte Ltd. Best Investment is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation ("CIC"). By virtiwe of Section 7 ofthe Companies Act, Chapter 50 of 
Singapore, CIC is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Best Investment. 
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2 0 LARGF.ST SHAREHOLDERS 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

N a m e of s h a r e h o l d e r s 

DBSN SERVICES PTE LTD 

HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD 

CITIBANK NOMINEES STORE PTE LTD 

DBS NOMINEES PTE LTD 

RAFFLES NOMINEES (PIT.) LTD 

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES PTE LTD 

MERRILL LYNCH (STORE) PTE LTD 

UOB KAY HIAN PTE LTD 

ROYAL BANK OF CANADA (ASIA) LTD 

DB NOMINEES (S) PTE LTD 

MORGAN STANLEY ASIA (STORE) SECURITIES PTE LTD 

BNP PARIBAS SECURITIES SERVICES SINGAPORE 

OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LTD 

PHILLIP SECURITIES l ^ E LTD 

BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES STORE PTE LTD 

ABN AMRO NOMINEES S'PORE PTE LTD 

DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (S) PTE LTD 

CIMB SECURITIES (S'PORE) PTE LTD 

KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE LTD 

V-NEEYEH 

Total 

No . of s h a r e s 

2,042,939,091 

1,241,646,092 

996,622,567 

876,502,721 

203,556,322 

172,122,031 

142,153,718 

116,816,842 

44.707.950 

44,641,565 

34.115,193 

29,666,277 

19.085,651 

14.790,259 

14,514,322 

13.677.994 

5,893,435 

4,890,356 

3,373,193 

2,754,000 

6 ,024,469,579 

% of shai 'es 

32.22 

19.58 

15-72 

13-82 

3-21 

2.71 

2.24 

1.84 

0.71 

0.70 

0.54 

0.47 

0.30 

0.23 

0.23 

0.22 

0.09 

0.08 

0.05 

0.04 

95-00 

CAPITAL SECURITIES 

The US$350,000,000 8.5% Perpetual Capital Securities ("PCS") issued by Noble Group Limited on 1 November 2010 are in registered form and 

are currently represented by beneficial interests in a global certificate (the "Global Certificate"). As at 11 March 2011, Deutsche Bank AG London, a 

nominee for the common depository of Euroclear Bank S.A./N.A., as operator ofthe Euroclear System and Clearstream Banking S.A., is entered in the 

register of holders as the iiolder ofthe Global Certificate with a balance of US$350,000,000. Tlie identity of the holders ofthe beneficial interests in 

the PCS is not currently known to Noble Group Limited. 

BOND HOLDER OF ZERO COUPON CONVERTIBLE BONDS DUE 2014 

Due date 

Conversion price (using a fixed exchange rate of S$i.5i58 to US$i) 

Conversion period 

13 June 2014 

S$i.49* 
13 July 2007 to 13 May 2014 

The US$250,000,000 zero coupon Convertible Bonds due 2014 issued by Noble Group Limited on 13 June 2007 (the "Convertible Bonds") are in 

registered form and are currently represented by beneficial interests in a global certificate (the "Global Certificate"). As at 11 March 2011, Citivic 

Nominees Limited, a nominee for the common depository of Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., as operator ofthe Euroclear System and Clearstream Banking 

S.A., is entered in the register of holders as the holder of the Global Certificate with a balance of US$249,990,000. Tlie identity ofthe holders ofthe 

beneficial interests in the Convertible Bonds is not currently known to Noble Group Limited. 

* The conversion price ofthe bonds was adjusted to $$1.49 per share with effect fi-om 21 May 2010 due to scrip dividend of six new ordinary shares for every eleven shares held. 


